
 

 

 

 

                                                                      4900 EARHART ROAD • LOVELAND, CO 80538   

  

MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2023 

3:30PM – 5:00PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

CONSENT AGENDA  

1. OCTOBER 19 MEETING MINUTES – P. 2 

2. OCTOBER FINANCIAL STATEMENT – P. 6 

3. OCTOBER DIRECTOR’S REPORT – P. 8 

4. UTILITY EASEMENT FOR NEW TERMINAL FACILITY – P. 52 

5. TAXIWAY B&D AND TAXILANE REHABILITATION DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENTAL – 

P. 58 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

AIRPORT DIRECTOR’S REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 

REGULAR AGENDA 

6. REMOTE TOWER UPDATE – P. 144 

7. 2024 RATES AND FEES RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCILS FOR ADOPTION – 

P. 150 

8. BUSINESS FROM MEMBERS 

 

PULLED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

ADJOURN 

 
 

Meeting Planning Calendar
December 21

•Draft Land Use/Development Review 
Plan

•Legal: Commission Roles and 
Responsibilities Training

•Election of Officers for 2024

•Meeting Schedule for 2024

January 18

•2023-2024 Strategic Plan Update

•Planning & Development 
Subcommittee (PDSC) Charter 
Update

February 15

•Terminal Construction Update



2



 

 

1 

 

Meeting Minutes for October 19, 2023 

 
CALL TO ORDER Chair Overcash called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m. 

  

ROLL CALL Chair Overcash, Commissioners Adams, Burgener, DiMartino, 

Stooksbury, and Williams were present. Commissioner Arndt was 

absent. 

 

Chair Overcash welcomed the new Commissioner, Mick Williams, as the Fort Collins 

Appointed Citizen Member. 

Chair Overcash requested to move the Director’s Report prior to Public Comment. All 

Commissioners present consented. 

MONTHLY REPORT  David Ulane, Director of CDOT Aeronautics, provided an update 

regarding Searidge’s resignation from the Remote Tower project. 

 The Remote Tower is the FAA’s project, and they have not 

yet provided a response to Searidge’s letter. The FAA 

selected Searidge and the FNL site, and they own the 

equipment. 

 It is prudent to take the first steps toward building a physical 

tower while still moving forward with the Remote Tower 

project. 

 CDOT continues to pursue the Remote Tower and sees value 

in utilizing technology as other countries have. 

 Currently, a timeline is not available for a physical tower. 

 Jackie Marsh, Mayor to the City of Loveland, requested 

notes and meeting minutes for the Remote Tower Update 

Meeting held on August 2, 2023. 

The RFP for C-hangar repairs is open for submittals until October 

26th. The environmental study for hangar demolition is underway. 

Terminal construction is on track with Hensel Phelps. 

Snow and Ice Control Plan training with staff and stakeholders is 

complete. 

Pavement repairs are in progress in multiple locations. 

PUBLIC COMMENT Martin Lind with Discovery Air suggested abandoning the remote 

tower project to build a brick-and-mortar tower and expressed 

safety concerns for air traffic. 

Kelly Freeland with the Flying School requested information on what 

the airport is doing to oversee hangar use for non-aeronautical 

purposes, as well as clarification on runway 6-24 landing procedures 

3



 

 

2 

 

and 15-33 widening impacts. 

Erin Black stated that there needs to be a safe place for students to 

practice. 

Bob Massaro stated that the tower is essential and encouraged the 

Commission to make moves now to quit losing money from 

commercial service providers. 

Gayland Bode presented a noise complaint caused by student pilots 

flying too low over his residence repeatedly. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Commissioner Williams moved to approve Consent Agenda. The motion, seconded by 

Commissioner DiMartino, carried with all Commissioners present voting in favor thereof.  

Pulled Items: None 

Consent Follow up: None 

Public Comments: None 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

  

6. 5-Year Capital 

Improvement Plan 

(ACIP) Draft Review 

Aaron Ehle, Airport Planning and Development Specialist, presented 

this item in accordance with the staff report. 

The Airport Capital Improvement Plan is updated annually to identify 

and prioritize projects for the next five years while maintaining 

accurate project cost estimates and the status of available resources. 

Projects must be identified on the 2020 Master Plan for the FAA to 

evaluate and potentially fund them. 

The Airport will request reimbursement for the brick and mortar 

tower survey and environmental study if the CIP needs to be 

amended due to changes with the remote tower project. 

The new fuel farm site pre-construction work was pushed to 2025 at 

the direction of the FAA. The City would have to fund any 

environmental and design work conducted in 2024, and then 

potentially be reimbursed later on. 

Commissioner Williams requested to have a project manager from 

the FAA visit the remote tower on-site. 

Martin Lind with Discovery Air commented that the private sector 

may be interested in funding a parallel runway if they have a say in 

timeline, decisions, and other factors since the airport does not 

currently have the infrastructure to support commercial service. 

 

4



 

 

3 

 

Commissioner Stooksbury moved to approve the draft ACIP. The motion, seconded by 

Commissioner Williams, carried with all Commissioners present voting in favor thereof. 

7. Planning and 

Development 

Subcommittee (PDSC) 

Charter Update 

Item tabled for a future Commission meeting. 

10. Business from 

Members 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT Chair Overcash adjourned the meeting at 5:12 p.m. 

  

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Commission Chair, Don Overcash 

5



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 2 

MEETING DATE: November 16, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Francis Robbins, Operations & Maintenance Manager 

 

TITLE 

Monthly Financial Statement 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Staff recommend acceptance of the preliminary financial statement as presented. 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Neutral 
 

SUMMARY 

Financial highlights for the month of October include: 

 The monthly statement indicates just over $6.76 million within the net position 

available for use. This amount includes $6 million as approved by the Airport 

Commission and City Councils to be applied toward the terminal project. Within 

this amount $2 million is from the CARES Act operations and maintenance grant, 

which has been fully drawn down and input in the account, $2 million for the local 

matching contribution, and $2 million in City Contributions. 

o An accurate net position available for use is $760,000. Grant 

reimbursement requests will continue throughout the terminal project and 

this figure will vary depending on timing of pavements to contractors and 

reimbursements from the FAA.  
 

ATTACHMENT 

Preliminary monthly financial statement for October. 

 

6



Y-T-D 2023 Actual Y-T-D 2022 Actual Y-T-D 2023 Budget 2023 Total Budget

% of Total 

Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

Hangar Rental 175,497 179,332 191,250 255,000 69%

FBO Rent 78,476 70,629 70,603 94,134 83%

Gas and Oil Commissions 226,272 253,767 142,497 190,000 119%
Aviation Fuel Tax Reimbursement 214,602 145,392 124,875 166,500 129%

Land Lease 522,465 399,077 375,003 500,000 104%

Land Lease PD Training Ctr 309,128 285,114 293,706 391,600 79%

Terminal Lease and Landing Fees 35,823 8,999 9,306 12,400 289%

Parking 0 0 0 0 0%

Miscellaneous 69,730 84,803 108,675 144,900 48%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,631,993 1,427,112 1,315,915 1,754,534 93%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal Services 691,043                539,793.28                 817,155.00 1,089,540 63%

Supplies 74,139                  77,495.20                   96,062.00 124,900 59%

Purchased Services 503,148                345,667.46              1,120,267.03 1,496,860 34%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,268,330 962,956 2,033,484 2,711,300 47%

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) 363,662 464,156 (717,569) (956,766)

NONOPERATING 

REVENUES (EXPENSES)
City Contributions 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 2,000,000 100%

Passenger Facility Charge 0 0 0 0  

Interest Income 59,207 18,040 38,250 51,000 116%

Capital Expenditures (3,202,927) (831,319) (23,168,754) (30,891,667) 10%

TOTAL NONOPERATING 

REVENUES (EXPENSES) (1,143,720) (813,279) (21,130,504) (28,840,667)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (780,058) (349,122) (21,848,073) (29,797,433)

Capital Contributions 1,743,119 637,740 23,436,000 31,248,000 6%

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 963,061 288,618 1,587,927 1,450,567

NET POSITION, Beginning 21,237,480 19,864,422 

NET POSITION, Ending 22,200,541 20,153,040 

Investment in Capital Assets 15,440,026 15,805,175 
Net Position Available for use 6,760,515 4,347,865 

Airport Statement of Revenues and Expenses

From 01/01/2023 - 10/31/2023

PRELIMINARY

7



Date: November 16, 2023 

To: Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 

From: David Ruppel, Airport Director 

Re: October Airport Report 

Report Highlights 

 The C-Hangar repair requirements are being evaluated by the contractor, Iron Fly  Steel

Fabrication, to determine phasing and scheduling.  The work is expected to be completed in

January.

 Environmental review of the A and B Hangar demolition is ongoing.  Asbestos and lead paint

testing has been completed and sent out for evaluation.  Coring and soils testing is underway

this week.

 The Remote Tower Project Team is working with the FAA to identify a follow-on vendor to

replace Searidge, who submitted a letter in October stating its intention to withdraw from

the project.

 Hensel Phelps has been running a couple of weeks ahead of schedule but has had to reset to

their original schedule due to construction delays.  Slabs will be installed in early December

and steel erection will begin in late December or early January.

Airport Activity Dashboard 

 Flight operations for the month of October averaged 328 per day, and the twelve-month

rolling average is 306.

 Wholesale fuel ordered by the jetCenter FBO was 141,103 gallons for the month of October, a

decrease of just over 1% compared to the previous October at 142,981 gallons.

o Total year to date fuel for jetCenter is down 14% year over year.

o Total fuel flowage through October is 1,121,628 gallons compared to 1,298,163 gallons in 2022.

 Business jet activity for October compared to the same month in 2022 was up 12%, going from

361 to 408 operations.

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

F
e

b

M
a

r

A
p

r

M
a

y

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

S
e

p

O
ct

FNL Business Jet Activity 

13-Months

375

298

223

270279
296

320
293

317
304

334339328

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

F
e

b

M
a

r

A
p

r

M
a

y

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

S
e

p

O
ct

Airport Operations 8am - 6pm 

Daily Avg/Month

8



 

Airport Owned T-Hangars Update 

 

Iron Fly Steel Fabrication, the company that won the C-Hangar Repair contract, is evaluating 

what will be required for the repairs on each hangar and determining phasing and scheduling.  

They will be working with the individual tenants concerning whether they will need to be 

moved into a vacant hangar or merely move their plane out for the repairs.  Some repairs are 

expected to take less than a day and Iron Fly will be developing an overall plan and schedule.  

The work is expected to be completed in January. 

 

Remote Tower 

 

The Remote Tower Project Team continues to work with the FAA to identify a follow-on vendor 

to replace Searidge, who submitted a letter in October stating its intention to withdraw from the 

project.  A company named Frequentis who is partnered with Raytheon for the development of 

Remote Tower Technology, has been accepted into the FAA Tech Center in Atlantic City and is 

evaluating the opportunity to run a parallel track for their airport system at FNL.  This is a tactic 

that the FAA is open to and would significantly accelerate the certification process for Frequentis.  

Frequentis has already completed the document intake portion of the System Design Approval 

process and  visited FNL this week to evaluate their options here. 

 

Terminal 

 

Foundation work continues with installation of the final Grade Beams to support the slab 

installation in early December. Grade Beams, concrete placement and formwork removal are 

complete on about most of the project. Backfilling and final preparation for the slab installation is 

underway.  Construction is on schedule to begin steel installation in late December or early 

January. 

 

The DiTesco construction summary is attached. 

 

Mobile Tower Line-of-Sight  

 

Serco, the company that provides the ATC Controllers, is still working with the FAA on whether FNL will 

need to continue to NOTAM Runway 6/24 closed during Tower operation hours. We are expecting a 

response from the FAA on the final determination by the ATO to resolve this issue.   

  

FNL is still working with the FAA and the Remote Tower Project Team to get approval for a STARS repeater 

display in the Mobile ATCT. The controllers and Air Traffic are in favor of this proposal since it will support 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

Jan Feb Ma Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Fuel YoY Comparison

2020 2021 2022 2023

9



better situational awareness and a safer operating environment at FNL. Installation of a STARS display in a 

Mobile ATCT is considered a non-standard configuration and must be approved by ATO.  STARS is the 

Airport Radar system installed with the Remote Tower System. 

 

Governance Study 

  

The internal support team is working with both Cities to determine the best format for evaluating 

the Governance options presented by DSR LLC.  Once the two Cities agree on the best structure 

for evaluation of the options, DSR LLC and the two Cities legal staffs will facilitate those 

discussions to determine the best path forward for Airport Governance. 

 

Parking Lot Pavement 

 

The airport has contracted with Goltz Asphalt to replace the failing asphalt in the bus lane 

with compacted asphalt millings that can be repaired more easily than the existing asphalt.  

Airport staff have also been working with TSA to obtain a change to our Security Program that 

would aloe the LandLine buses to pick up and drop off on the airside.  The approval for that 

change came through this month and we are working with LandLine to train drivers and other 

staff for the new operation.  The training is expected to be completed after Thanksgiving and 

the airside operation will begin at that time.  Passengers will proceed through the Terminal 

and load on the buses similar to airline passenger loading. 

 

Airport Scheduled Events 

 None this month. 

 Airport Administration Offices will be closed on November 23 and 24 for the Thanksgiving Holiday. 

 

Attachments 

1. Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal Construction Report 

2. Loveland Fire and Rescue Authority ARFF monthly report 

3. Remote Air Traffic Control Contract Progress Report #28 

1. Snow and Ice Training for Pilots 

 

10



$2,589,594

MAJOR MILESTONES

• Site water, storm, and 

sanitary utility installation  

is complete. 

• Building foundation 

grade beam formwork, 

reinforcement, and concrete 

placement is underway. 

• Underslab utility installation 

is underway.

WORK UPCOMING

• Foundation waterproofing 
application. 

• Foundation backfill. 
• Building slab concrete 

placement. 

• Building steel frame 

erection. 

EXPENDITURE
TO DATE

1% 

CHANGE ORDER  
PERCENTAGE

CONTRACT VALUE: $15,036,433

106
DAYS CHARGED TO DATE

ORIGINAL CONTRACT: 422 DAYS

17%
COMPLETE
(IN CONTRACT VALUE)

Building foundation progress

419 CANYON AVENUE STE 200  |  FORT COLLINS, COLORADO  |  970.224.1191  |  108 EAST LINCOLNWAY  |  CHEYENNE, WYOMING  |  307.635.5710  |  www.VFLA.com

07/28/22VE LEVEL 4 - AIRSIDE VIEW NORTHERN COLORADO REGIONAL AIRPORT TERMINAL

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

MONTHLY REPORT: OCTOBER 2023

Underslab conduit installation

Underslab sanitary drain installation

LOOK AHEAD SCHEDULE OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY

Building foundation grade beam concrete placement

Underslab utility installation

Foundation backfill

Building slab concrete placement

Building steel frame erection

11



Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 11/10/23
Tasks underway/completed 11/06/23 - 11/10/23: Grade beam seven concrete placement. Pier cap concrete placement at D-6 and D-7. Pier condition verification and repair work underway. Work scheduled for 11/13/23 - 11/17/23: Backfill of piers following
condition verification and repair completion. Remaining under slab electrical installation. Grade beam waterproofing application and insulation installation.

Photos

Weekly Report

Taken On

11/08/2023

Description

Pier exposure and
condition
verification.

Weekly Report

Taken On

11/09/2023

Description

Under slab utility
trench backfill.

Printed on Mon Nov 13, 2023 at 01:25 pm MST

Ditesco, LLC
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd
Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 1 of 2

12

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Weekly Report

Taken On

11/09/2023

Description

Grade beam seven
concrete placement.

Weekly Report

Taken On

11/09/2023

Description

Pier cap concrete
placement

Printed on Mon Nov 13, 2023 at 01:25 pm MST

Ditesco, LLC
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd
Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 2 of 2

13

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 11/03/23
Tasks underway/completed 10/30/23-11/03/23: Grade beam four and six concrete placement completed. Under slab plumbing trench excavation and bedding installation underway. Pier condition verification underway. Work Scheduled for 11/06/23-11/10/
23: Remaining pier verification, remediation and backfill. Under slab plumbing installation. Under slab electric installation. Grade beam seven formwork, reinforcement, and concrete placement.

Photos

Weekly Report

Taken On

11/02/2023

Description

Grade beam six
concrete placement.

Weekly Report

Taken On

11/02/2023

Description

Under slab sanitary
drain installation.

Printed on Tue Nov 7, 2023 at 07:11 am MST

Ditesco, LLC
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd
Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 1 of 2

14

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Weekly Report

Taken On

11/02/2023

Description

Grade beam four
concrete placement.

Weekly Report

Taken On

11/02/2023

Description

Under slab
electrical/
communication
conduit installation.

Printed on Tue Nov 7, 2023 at 07:11 am MST

Ditesco, LLC
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd
Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 2 of 2

15

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 10/20/23
Tasks underway/completed 10/20/23-10/27/23: Grade beam 4 and 6 reinforcement installation completed. Under slab plumbing trench excavation and bedding installation underway. Work Scheduled for 10/30/23-11/03/23: Drilled pier placement condition
verification and remediation prior to grade beam 4 and 6 concrete placement. Under slab plumbing installation. Under slab electric installation.

Photos

Weekly Report

Taken On

10/24/2023

Description

Grade beam
formwork and
reinforcement
installation.

Weekly Report

Taken On

10/25/2023

Description

Electrical conduit
installation

Printed on Mon Oct 30, 2023 at 11:02 am MDT

Ditesco, LLC
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd
Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 1 of 2

16

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Weekly Report

Taken On

10/25/2023

Description

Grade beam
formwork and
reinforcement

Weekly Report

Taken On

10/26/2023

Description

Underslab sanitary
drain trench
excavation and
bedding placement.

Printed on Mon Oct 30, 2023 at 11:02 am MDT

Ditesco, LLC
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd
Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 2 of 2

17

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 10/20/23
Tasks underway/completed 10/16/23-10/20/23: Grade beam 4 concrete placement and formwork removal complete. Grade beam 5 form work and reinforcement installation underway. Under slab utility trenching underway. Work Scheduled for 10/23/23-10/

27/23: Grade beam 5 concrete placement. Under slab plumbing excavation.

Photos

Weekly Report

Taken On

10/18/2023

Description

Grade beam 4

concrete placement.

Weekly Report

Taken On

10/19/2023

Description

Grade beam 4

formwork removal.

Printed on Fri Oct 20, 2023 at 04:16 pm MDT

Ditesco, LLC

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd

Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 1 of 2

18

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Weekly Report

Taken On

10/19/2023

Description

Grade beam 5

formwork and

reinforcement

Weekly Report

Taken On

10/19/2023

Description

Underslab electrical

conduit installation.

Printed on Fri Oct 20, 2023 at 04:16 pm MDT

Ditesco, LLC

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Terminal

4825 Earhart Rd

Loveland, Colorado 80538

Page 2 of 2

19

https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315
https://app.procore.com/2501511/project/images/show_album?id=13596315


Happy November!  

Airport:
With regards to the notification of Searidge leaving the Remote Tower... please note that the mobile ATC tower is NOT going

anywhere.  We will continue ATC operation as it has been since 2020.  The Remote Tower Project will be on hold until there is a new

operational company to oversee it.  There will be no change to our response procedures.

Get connected to Denver flights through Landline!  You can search your favorite travel site (ie. Priceline, Expedia) and enter Fort Collins

(FNL) as your departure airport. 

Kids ride free and parking at NoCo Regional is free!   There are over 8 trips a day to Denver International!  

https://landline.com/

Airport Commission meeting will be held on November 16th, 3:30-5:00pm at the Fire Station conference room

Airport terminal construction is ahead of schedule and well underway!   Please see the www.flynoco.com website for all airport

commission updates involving the terminal construction!

ARFF: 

So far in 2023, we've had-

16 Alert incidents

10 Diversion flights from DIA due to weather

51 Scheduled air-carrier flights

We have already matched our incident numbers from 2022.


***Scheduled Air-Carrier Flights for November: 
****Squad 46 will be assigned to scheduled air-carrier flights unless otherwise assigned by the LFRA Shift BC.

Day Date Flight # Airline Arrival Time Departure Time Aircraft Team/Notes

Fri Nov. 3 4951 Allegiant 1624 RON A320/19 Idaho Fooball IN

Sat Nov. 4 8237 Sun Country 1049 1135 B737-800 Casino Charter IN

Sat Nov. 4 4952 Allegiant RON 1830 A320/19 Idaho Fooball OUT, JC Crew here 1600

Fri Nov. 10 4670/4671 Allegiant 1030 1230 A320/19 UNC Football OUT

Fri Nov. 10 8611 Sun Country 1605 RON B737-800 San Diego St Football IN

Sat Nov. 11 4672/4673 Allegiant 1958 2048 A320/19 UNC Football IN

Sat Nov. 11 8611 Sun Country RON 2200 B737-800 San Diego State FB OUT

Fri Nov. 17 4066 Allegiant 1515 RON A320/19 Nevada Football IN

Sat Nov. 18 4067 Allegiant RON 1830 A320/19 Nevada Fooball OUT, JC Crew here 1630

Mon Nov. 27 8237 Sun Country 1855 1945 B737-800 Casino Charter

Fri Dec. 1 8241 Sun Country 0950 1035 B737-800 Casino Charter

Color Codes

Casino RON = Remain Overnight Recent Time Change

UNC Football

20

mailto:Gina.Gonzales@lfra.org
mailto:LFRA@lfra.org
mailto:jpietrangelo@poudre-fire.org
mailto:Dustin.DeBaere@poudre-fire.org
mailto:mwilliams@wsfr.us
mailto:djaques@wsfr.us
mailto:tvess@wsfr.us
mailto:Spencer.Rice@poudre-fire.org
mailto:mike.wilson@poudre-fire.org
mailto:tom.johnson@poudre-fire.org
mailto:braisley@poudre-fire.org
mailto:mhaynie@wsfr.us
mailto:jseaman@wsfr.us
mailto:bpegg@wsfr.us
mailto:tgrenz@wsfr.us
mailto:Francis.Robbins@cityofloveland.org
mailto:Aaron.Ehle@cityofloveland.org
mailto:Simeon.Anderson@cityofloveland.org
mailto:Jeremy.Rynders@cityofloveland.org
mailto:Emma.Speshock@cityofloveland.org
mailto:David.Ruppel@cityofloveland.org
mailto:Ron.Simms@poudre-fire.org
mailto:Mike.Pottle@poudre-fire.org
mailto:tom.pickles@poudre-fire.org
mailto:jgreer@wsfr.us
mailto:David.Ruppel@cityofloveland.org
mailto:PoliceCommunications@cityofloveland.org
mailto:Teresa.Richards@cityofloveland.org
mailto:bgarcia@poudre-fire.org
mailto:nromero@berthoudfire.org
mailto:sforman@tvems.com
mailto:Jan.Burreson@cityofloveland.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b72688f0af7f489d847bbf602eeee9d0-06500d69-d9
mailto:keith.matas@state.co.us
https://landline.com/
http://www.flynoco.com/


CSU Football

CSU/UNC/ Wyo Opp.

 

Have a great month!!!
 

Gina Gonzales
ARFF Lead Engineer

Loveland Fire Rescue Authority

LFRA Fire Station 4, Northern Colorado Regional Airport

970-568-6026 – business cell – for messages as well

gina.gonzales@lfra.org - email

www.lfra.org  

 

www.flynoco.com
 

**Like the flight attendant says, “First put the oxygen mask on yourself… only then can you help someone else with

theirs”
 

 

21

mailto:gina.gonzales@lfra.org
http://www.lfra.org/
http://www.flynoco.com/
http://www.flynoco.com/


 
   
 
October 31, 2023 
 
From:  William E. Payne, P.E. 
To: Colorado Division of Aeronautics 
 
Section A – Remote Air Traffic Control Contract Progress Report #28 

 
Re: Period:  October 1 through October 31, 2023 
 
 

Remote Tower Implementation

STARS Operational at FNL 11/25/2022 12/15/2022 Local Adaption and Mapping Complete  

Remote Tower System 

        System Upgrade - Tech Refresh In-Progress

Remote Tower Testing

FAA Stop Work Order 10/7/2022 11/11/2022 Vendor Addressing Deficiencies

OVR Ver 2.1 3/4/2023 3/4/2023 Delivered to Vendors

4K Camera and Display Test at FNL 3/27/2023 3/31/2023 Complete

Vendor Requests Extension of Stop Work Order 4/14/2023 4/14/2023 FAA Consider Request on 4/27/2023

FAA Considers Stop Work Order Extension 4/27/2023 4/27/2023 FAA Grants 6 Month Extension 

Install Full System Upgrades

Meet with NextGen 10/16/2023 10/16/2023 Complete

Meeting with succesor vendor - Site Survey 11/2023 11/2023

Phase 1B - Passive Re-testing TBD TBD

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD FAA Forecast Schedule 1 week duration 

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD FAA Forecast Schedule 6 months 

Phase 2 - Active Testing           TBD TBD Subject to FAA Phase 1 SRMD Signatures

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD

Phase 3 - Validation & Verification  TBD TBD Subject to FAA Phase 2 SRMD Signatures

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD

Operational Viability Decision (OVD) TBD TBD

Phase 4 - Post OVD Validation &Verification TBD TBD Subject to FAA Phase 3 SRMD Signatures

Safety Risk Manage Panel TBD TBD

Safety Risk Management Document Signed TBD TBD

Certification/Commissioning TBD TBD

Colorado Remote Tower Project                                            

Activity Status

Note: All dates reflect latest FAA proposed schedule and are subject to change based on FAA SME's ability to travel to FNL

Remarks

Status/Start 

Date 

(Projected)

Activity
Finish Date 

(Projected)

October 3, 2023 Searidge Sends letter to FAA withdrawing from the Project

 
 
 
 
 22



2 

 

Remote Tower Project Narrative: 

 
As of this writing the FAA has not formally responded to the Searidge letter of October 8, 
2023, indicating its desire to withdraw from the remote tower project unless FAA lifts the 
Stop Work Order. In the letter, Searidge indicated its desire to continue discussions with 
an eye toward co-funding the project in order to keep it moving.  The FAA can either elect 
to lift the Stop Work Order and permit Searidge to complete the project or, failing to do 
so, accept Searidge’s withdrawal which will pause the project until a suitable alternative 
can be implemented to allow airport traffic control to continue at the Northern Colorado 
Regional Airport (FNL).   

On October 16th the Aeronautics Director, FNL interim Manager and I met with NextGen 
leadership to begin to discuss the path forward. We sent the attached proposal outlining 
the two options that would preserve airport traffic control at FNL.  The preferred option, 
should Searidge not continue, would be to bring on a successor vendor to complete the 
project. To that end, I have been meeting with a series of candidate vendors for the past 
several months in anticipation of the eventuality of Searidge not being in a position to 
complete the project.  

The airport is understandably anxious over the prospect of losing airport traffic control. In 
the proposal, we requested that the FAA admit the airport into the Federal Contract Tower 
Program with an operational mobile ATCT until such time as they implement a permanent 
solution. It should be realized that FNL has been the beneficiary of airport traffic control, 
at no cost to the airport, since March 2020 as a result of being selected as the site for the 
Colorado Remote Tower Program in September 2015.  

The attached presentation was prepared to present the two options in the eventuality the 
FAA elects not to move forward with Searidge. It lays out the advantages and 
disadvantages of each and shows a draft timeline for each as well as the process that will 
be followed at the FAA’s Technical Center to qualify the follow-on vendor. To support the 
decision, I am preparing a detailed cost estimate for each option and comparative 
analysis to illustrate the economic impacts of each. 

The State of Colorado and the FAA have invested significant funds in the remote tower 
project at FNL. If the FAA will support the State’s efforts to enlist a successor vendor to 
complete the project, it will be a win for the State, FAA and FNL--the State by realizing a 
tangible return on its investment, the FAA by having a successful remote tower project 
and FNL which will receive, at a fraction of the cost of a traditional ATCT, airport traffic 
control services.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



3 

 

Proposed Remote Tower Testing Phases: 
 
   

     

                                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

            TBD*                                TBD*                                TBD*                            TBD*   
 

Projected Start Date 
 

*Dependent on local resources’ ability to travel to FNL and COVID status. 

 
Schedule Note: This status is based on the latest proposed schedule and is 

dependent upon availability of FAA resources to staff the remote 
tower and support the Phase 1 SRMP.  

 
Note: The FAA has replaced the term Initial Operating Capability (IOC) with 

Operational Viability Decision (OVD). This may change again as the 
terminology of remote tower certification is in flux.  

 
 
REMOTE TOWER PROJECT PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

 
Program Description/Background 

 
The Program Manager for this project, William E. Payne, will serve as a technical 
subject matter expert to represent the Division’s investment and interest in the 
Remote Tower and facilitate the project’s forward progress to FAA certification and 
deployment. The Program Manager will participate in and assist with the 
development of all evaluation, testing, and certification activities, as well as attend 
all project meetings, and will serve as the technical representative for the Division 
of Aeronautics during all phases of the project as enumerated below. 
 

  

Operational 
Viability 
Decision 

(OVD)      

Phase 1 B    
In-person Re-
test (Passive) 

Phase 2        
Operational 

Testing (Active)   

Phase 3       
Validation & 
Verification 

(V&V)      

Phase 4         
Certification 

System Design 
Approval 

(SDA) 

Phase 1 
SRMP        
TBD      

24



4 

 

Tasks: 
 

1. Provide Technical Representation and Oversight of the Project 
 

Effort this Period:  Completed. 
 

2. Participate in Development of the FAA’s Operational Safety Assessment 
(OSA) Basis for Evaluation of Non-Federal Remote Tower Equipment  
 

Effort this Period: The OSA is still in draft form and is continuing to be 
developed as the project proceeds toward System Design Approval. 
 

3. Participate in Development of the Operational Visual Requirements 
(OVR) 
 

Effort this Period:  The OVR Version 2.1 has been issued.  
 

4. Participate in Development of the Requirements/Specifications for Non-
Federal Tower Equipment 

 
Effort this Period: Participated in the FAA TechOps review and commented 
on the Remote Tower Requirements Document and prepared comments on 
OVR 2.1.  Completed. 
 

5. Assist with Development of System Configuration 
   

 Effort this Period:  The system configuration will be modified based on 
lessons learned 4K cameras and displays for demonstration onf March 27, 
2023. 

 
6. Modify System Configuration Based on Testing Phase Comments 

 
Effort this Period: Completed by Searidge. 
 

7. Run Periodic Tests of the Remote Air Traffic Control Tower System 
During Periods of Evaluation/Testing Inactivity 

 
Effort this Period: Complete. 
 

8. Attend System FAA Technical Interchange Meetings (TIM) 
 

Effort this Period: Provided SME representation in the recent FAA 
discussion of OVR 2.1.  Completed. 
 

9. Participate in FAA Configuration Review Board (CRB) Activities 
 

Effort this Period: NextGen has yet to establish the CRB. This effort may be 
rolled into development of the Remote Tower AC. 
 

25



5 

 

10. Evaluate an Air Situation Display in Preparation for Testing Against 
Standard Terminal Automation Replacement System Radar Equipment 
(STARS). 
 

Effort this Period: Complete.   
 

11. Collaborate with FAA on Alternate Phase 1 Virtual/Remote Testing 
 

Effort this Period: Complete  
 

12. Work with FAA to develop and Implement Phase 1 Passive Remote Tower 
Testing 
 

Effort this Period: Complete 
 

 
13. Work with FAA to Develop and Implement Phase 2 Active Remote Tower 

Testing 
 

Effort this Period: There has been no activity on this task this period.  
 

14. Work with FAA and FNL on Phase 3 Industry-Led Initial Operational 
Capability (IOC) 

 
Effort this Period: This task has been renamed Validation & Verification 
(V&V.) There has been no activity on this task this period. Phase 3 Active 
Remote Tower Testing will begin after Phase 2 Active Remote Tower 
testing is complete and the SRMD has been signed. 
 

15. Work with FAA on Phase 4 Remote Tower System Certification and 
Commissioning 

 
Effort this Period: There has been no activity on this task this period. Phase 
4 System Design Approval and Commissioning will begin after the 
conclusion of Phase 3 V&V and the SRMD has been signed. 
 

16. Participate in Development of the FAA’s Advisory Circular (AC) for 
Remote Tower Systems for Non-Federal Applications 

 
Effort this Period: Continue participation in the FAA TechOps TIM to review 
and comment on the Remote Tower Advisory Circular. 
 

17. Provision of Regular Written Reports, Presentations and Updates on the 
Project’s Progress to Internal and External Stakeholders 

 
Effort this Period: Preparation of the monthly Program status report. 
 

18. Travel as Needed (In-State and Out of State) for Meetings with FAA, 
Airport and Division Personnel 

26



6 

 

 
Effort this Period:  Travel to FNL for meetings with Airport Board and the 
Cities of Fort Collins and Loveland. 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT OF POTENTIAL ENHANCED SITUATIONAL AWARENESS TOOLS 
FOR NON-TOWERED AIRPORTS 
 
Tasks: 
 

1. Explore the Potential Development of a System Consisting of Existing 
and New Surveillance Sources that can be Deployed, Owned and 
Operated by Non-Towered Airports to Provide Airport Staff with Improved 
Visibility into the Local Airspace and on the Airport Surface, with the 
Ultimate Goal of Improving Aviation Safety and System Efficiency. 

 
Effort this Period: No activity this period. 
 

2. Prepare System Requirements to be Used by Airports and/or the Division 
when Seeking Vendor Proposals to Implement a Situational Awareness 
System. 

 
Effort this Period: No activity this period. 

   
 
  

27



7 

 

 
 

Glossary of Project Technical Acronyms 

 
ADS-B   Automatic Dependent Surveillance – Broadcast 
AGL   Above Ground Level 
ARTCC   Air Route Traffic Control Center 
ASDE-X  Airport Surface Detection Equipment – Model X 
ASOS   Automatic Surface Observation System 
ASR-9   Airport Surveillance Radar – Model 9 
AWOS   Automatic Weather Observation System 
ATC   Air Traffic Control 
ATIS   Automatic Terminal Information System 
AJT   Air Traffic Services 
AJI   Safety Technical Training Services 
AJV   Mission Support Policies and Procedures  
CTAF   Common Traffic Advisory Frequency 
ERAM   En Route Automation Modernization 
FAA   Federal Aviation Administration 
FAT   Factory Acceptance Test (alternately - First Article Test) 
FDIO   Flight Data Input/Output 
FTI   Federal Communications Infrastructure (Harris Corp.) 
GA   General Aviation 
HITL   Human In the Loop 
HMI   Human Machine Interface 
ILS   Instrument Landing System 
IOC   Initial Operating Capability 
IMC   Instrument Meteorological Condition 
LOA   Letter of Agreement 
MLAT   Multilateration 
MSL   Mean Sea Level (above) 
NAS   National Air Space 
NATCA   National Air Traffic Controllers Association 
NESG   NAS Enterprise Security Gateway 
NextGen   Next Generation Air Transportation System 
NORDO   No Radio 
OSA   Operational Safety Assessment 
OTW   Out of the Window 
OVD   Operational Viability Decision 
RSA   Runway Safety Area 
SAT   Site Acceptance Test 
SDA   System Design Approval 
SMR    Surface Movement Radar 
SMS   Safety Management System 
SRA   Safety Risk Assessment 
SRMD   Safety Risk Management Document 
SRMDM  Safety Risk Management Document Memorandum 
SRMP   Safety Risk Management Panel 
SHA   System Hazard Analysis 
SSHA   Sub-System Hazard Analysis 
STARS   Standard Terminal Automation Replacement System 
SWIM   System Wide Information Management 
TAMR   Terminal Automation Modernization and Replacement 
TRACON  Terminal Radar Control Facility 
UHF   Ultra High Frequency 
VFR   Visual Flight Rules 
VHF   Very High Frequency 
VMC   Visual Meteorological Condition 

28



8 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

 
1. FNL “Draft Graphic Remote Tower Timeline” as of October 31, 2023. 
2. FAA Proposal. 
3. Presentation of  FNL Options for the Colorado Aeronautics Board. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



2023

Colorado Remote Tower Timeline
(Draft)

Abbreviation Key
SRMP - Safety Risk Management Panel
SRMD – Safety Risk Management Document
STARS – Standard Terminal Automation Replacement System
SDA – System Design Approval (System Type Certification) 
Ops – Operations
TBD – To Be Determined
OVD – Operational Viability Decision
V&V – Validation & Verification

Complete

Upcoming activity

Critical Path Item

220° Camera Array

220° Camera Array

360° Camera Array

2024

Vendor 
Requests Stop 

Work Order 
Extension   

4/14/ 2023 

FAA Grants 6 
Month Extension 

to Stop Work 
Order 4/27/2023 

Searidge  letter to 
FAA withdrawing from 
the Colorado Remote 

Tower Project 
10/3/2023 

Continue 
discussions with 

successor 
vendors 

Investigate 
Alternative paths 
forward should 
vendor fail to 
complete SDA

Meet with the 
FAA to craft a 

solution to 
continues  

Remote Tower 
Testing at FNL           

10-16-23 

Successor 
Vendor meeting 
and site survey

November 2023 

30



 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

October 9, 2023 

 

Background: 

On October 3, 2023, Searidge Technologies sent the attached letter to the FAA withdrawing 
from the cooperative remote tower project at the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) if 
an agreement cannot not be reached to remove the stop work order. This places the FAA in a 
difficult position. Without a vendor to continue the remote tower project, the FAA will not be 
able to continue to support the mobile airport traffic control tower (ATCT) that became 
operational in March 2020 as the safety mitigator during testing of the remote tower at FNL.  
This situation places the airport in the untenable position of possibly losing its airport traffic 
control services upon which the airport users rely for safe operation.  

Termination of airport traffic control services represents a significant safety hazard that will 
result in an unacceptable level of risk given the airport’s operational level. FNL has between 
300–350 operations daily from training aircraft, corporate jets, Part 135, and charter 
operations.  This level of activity, as a non-towered airport, will present challenges to both 
local and transient traffic. Illustrating this point, prior to installation of the mobile ATCT at 
FNL, two accidents occurred that could have been prevented had the airport been controlled: 

1. On December 14, 2014, a Cirrus S-22 was damaged from the downwash of an Army UH-
60 Black Hawk helicopter, due to inadequate separation. 

2. On January 26, 2018, a midair collision between a Beechcraft Bonanza and a helicopter 
occurred on Runway 15-33. Both aircraft sustained substantial damage, but no serious 
injuries resulted.  

Proposed Path Forward: 

As a financial partner of this paradigm shifting project, the State of Colorado and the Northern 
Colorado Regional Airport request the following be considered to maintain continuity of airport 
traffic control services at FNL and to explore a path forward to make the remote tower system 
at FNL a success. The State and the airport would propose the following to reach these goals: 

1. As FNL has been accepted as a candidate into the Federal Contract Tower (FCT) Program 
(see attached letter), the State and the airport request that the FAA allow FNL into the 
FCT Program based on air traffic control being provided by the mobile ATCT for a period 
of 5 years until a suitable alternative solution can be determined. 

2. As Colorado values its early role in the FAA’s development of emerging remote tower 
initiatives across the nation, and given its $8.8 million investment in this project, the 

31



State and the airport are keenly interested in working with the FAA to pursue 
identification of a suitable successor vendor to continue and complete the remote tower 
project at FNL. 

3. Simultaneously, FNL will pursue siting of a traditional ATCT as an additional alternative 
to continue airport traffic control services. 

4. Until a permanent solution can be implemented, the airport will fund the lease of the 
mobile tower. 

Equipment and Infrastructure Disposition: The equipment and infrastructure that is 
government furnished equipment (GFE) including the camera tower masts, remote tower 
facility and FCT minimum equipment list (MEL) will remain to support the interim and final 
solution. 

32



FNL Air Traffic Control Options
Draft

1. Remote Tower  Implementation at FNL: (Preferred Option)
a. Advantages:

1) Shortest path to permanent air traffic control 12-18 months.
2) Most economical path to permanent air traffic control.
3) Existing infrastructure and equipment.
4) Minimal on airport construction, least disruption to airport.

b. Disadvantages:
1) Risk that successor vendor does not achieve SDA at the Tech Center
2) Will require additional funding
3) FAA must agree to this approach.
4) Will require funding the mobile tower for a period of 12-18 months at $10,200/month

2. Traditional ATCT - Site, Design and Construct: (Alternative Option)
a. Advantages:

1) Well understood process.
2) Least risk.

b. Disadvantages:
1) Cost - $8.5 - $11 Million.
2) FAA must agree to this process
3) Must secure funding. 
4) Longer process 5-7years.
5) Will require funding the mobile tower for at least 5 years at $10,200/month.
6) Requires FAA to support FNL inclusion into the FCT program based on the mobile tower in.
7) Colorado Division of Aeronautics and the State of Colorado get zero return on their $8.8 million program investment in 2014.

33



Secure 
Funding Siting Environmental

Site 
Design

7460-1

Permitting 

2 months 0 months 0 months 0 months 1 months

2 months0 months

System 
Installation 

3 months

Remote Tower Process and Timeline
Agreement with 

FAA
1 month

28 Months – 2.3+ years 
Operational Year 2026

OVE & OVD SDA – System Design Approval
OVE – Operational Viability     

Evaluation
OVD – Operational Viability 

Decision
FAD – Functional Acceptance 

Decision

2 months

Commissioning

FNL

FNL

Activity Location

SDA                  

18 months

Tech Center

FAD                    Agreement*

In Principle
with Vendor

* CDOT, FAA & FNL

TBD

34



35



Apply for & Secure 
BIL Funding

Siting Phase 1 ESA* Design7460-1 Bidding

Permitting 

12 months

3 months 4 months 3 months 4 months12 months

4 months

Construction 

12 months

Certification 

1 month

Traditional ATCT Process and Timeline
Draft

FAA 
Reimbursable 

Agreement

6 months

61 Months – 5+ years 
Operational Year 2029

* ESA – Environmental Site Assessment

36



FNL Winter Operations 

Annual Operator Training

September 2023

37



Agenda

• Introduction

• Winter Operations
• What’s New? 
• FAA Requirements
• Winter Weather Event Planning
• Pavement Prioritization
• Equipment and Tactics
• Runway Condition Code (RwyCC) and Runway Condition Assessment Matrix (RCAM) 

Communication
• NOTAM Manager

• ATC Update

• Open to additional questions

• Equipment Familiarization 

2
38



Introduction

• Purpose: Provide information 
needed to maintain safe 
operations and understand 
airport procedures during winter 
conditions. 

• Safety is paramount

• Provide information on Airport 
Security

3
39



2023 Updates

• Mobile ATC tower will remain active during the 2023/24 winter 0800-1800 Local

• TOWER/CTAF 118.400 MHz  GROUND 121.650 MHz

• Aircraft De-Ice Frequency

• JetCenter 130.575 MHz *ICEMAN*

• Type I Safewing MP1 Mixed 50/50 Hot  Type IV Safewing MP IV Cold 

• Deicing location now expanded commercial apron area or stall #3

• FNL Snow Bosses

• Francis Robbins - Manager  Simeon Anderson – Lead OPS Tech 

• Office: 970.962.2853   Office: 970.962.2860

• Mobile: 970.699.2893   Mobile: 970.531.5590

• Francis.Robbins@cityofloveland.org Simeon.Anderson@cityofloveland.org 

4
40

mailto:Francis.Robbins@cityofloveland.org
mailto:Simeon.Anderson@cityofloveland.org


FAA Regulatory Requirements

• FNL is classified as a certificated airport under Title 14 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR/FAR) Part 139 

• Requires the highest levels of safety and security practices to include a FAA 
approved Snow and Ice Control Plan.

• Regulations guide our standards and priorities.

• FNL is required to have sufficient equipment to clear the primary runway and 
movement area taxiways of 1 inch of snow in ½ hour. 

• Runway 15/33 will be closed during NIL breaking action (or Runway Condition 
Code of 0) and remain closed until conditions are improved.

• Runway 6/24 does not receive an RCAM code

5
41



Snow Event Planning

6
42



Snow Event Planning

• Snow Boss

• Designated prior to the start of the snow event 

• Has authority to:

• Close and/or open any surface (Runway or Taxiway), 

• Assign personnel to duties (Equipment, Location)

• Call for De-ice chemical

• Ensures sufficient food and bathroom breaks for staff

• Primary contact point for pilots

• Never needs sleep, food, or bathroom breaks

• Communication

• Use CTAF only during hours that the tower is not operating (118.4) and Cell 
Phones

7
43



Pre-Planning Snow Event

• Determine scope of snow event
• Overnight vs multi day

• Check scheduled flights
• Based Operators 
• Scheduled with FBO

• Determine initial attack plan
• Start Time  (Immediate vs Overnight 

Runway Closure)

• Communicate plan with 
stakeholders
• Direct contact (phone and email)
• NOTAMS (In advanced where 

possible)

• TRACON once on Runway

8
44



Pavement Priorities

Aircraft safety is our top 
priority.

Priority 1 -Primary runway, 
taxiway, parking, and 
Emergency Access. 

Priority 2 - Secondary 
runway and taxiways. 

Priority 3 -Remaining ramp 
and between hangars.

Priority 4 -Landside parking 
and access streets. 

***Earhart Rd is plowed by 
the City of Loveland Snow 
Plows***

9
45



Snow Removal Equipment

10
46



Airfield Snow Removal 

Equipment

• Broom Trucks             QTY: 2
• Best removing up to ½ inch snow

• Runway Plows QTY: 3
• Best removing over ½ inch snow

• High Speed Blower QTY: 1
• Best removing piled snow

• Articulating Plow QTY: 1
• Best removing snow on apron and 

hangars

• De-Ice Machines QTY: 3
• 1 Granular with Pre-wet  and 2 

Liquid

11
47



Committed to Safe Snow Placement

Safe Snow Piles Unsafe Snow Piles

12
48



Runway Condition Reporting 

Changes

• Advisory Circular 150/5200-30D issued 2016

• Does Away with reporting Mu values

• Runway condition based on contaminant type and depth

• Evaluate surface with Runway Condition Assessment Matrix (RCAM)

• Evaluate each third of the runway based on contaminate

• FNL Touchdown, Midpoint, Rollout

• NOTAMs will include Runway Condition Codes (RwyCC) 

• RwyCC 6 = Clear Dry Pavement   

• RwyCC  Publishable Range 5-1

• RwyCC 0 = Nil Breaking Action RUNWAY REQUIRED TO BE CLOSED

• TRACON Notification

13
49



14

R

C

A

M

50



Additional Questions?

17
51



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 4 

MEETING DATE: November 16, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Aaron Ehle, Airport Planning & Development Specialist 

 

TITLE 

Utility Easement for New Terminal Facility  
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Provide recommendation to Fort Collins City Council to approve easement 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Neutral 
 

SUMMARY 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport is jointly owned and operated by the Cities of Fort 

Collins and Loveland. In 2015, the Cities entered into an intergovernmental agreement 

(IGA) that formed the Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission, which is 

delegated certain powers and authority to operate and maintain the Airport. However, 

only the City Councils have the authority to grant easements as permanent property 

rights at the Airport. 

 

In connection with the planned Airport Terminal Project, the City of Loveland has 

requested a permanent non-exclusive easement for electrical infrastructure.   

 

ATTACHMENT 

Utility Easement 

52



Rev. 1-2021 

GRANT OF UTILITY EASEMENT 

 

THIS GRANT OF UTILITY EASEMENT is made and entered into by and between the 

City of Loveland, Colorado, a municipal corporation, with an address of 500 E Third Street, 

Loveland, CO 80537, and the CITY OF FORT COLLINS, COLORADO, a municipal 

corporation (“Grantors”), with an address of  300 Laporte Ave, Fort Collins, CO 80521, and the 

CITY OF LOVELAND, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation (“City”), 

with an address of 500 E Third Street, Loveland, Colorado 80537. This Grant of Utility 

Easement is effective as of the date of the City’s Official Acceptance in the City’s signature 

block below.    

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the adequacy and receipt of which 

is hereby acknowledged, Grantors have this day bargained, sold, conveyed, transferred, and 

delivered unto the City, its successors, and assigns, in perpetuity, a non-exclusive easement in, 

over, under, through, and across the real property described below for purposes of constructing, 

repairing, replacing, relocating, inspecting, operating, maintaining, and accessing City-owned 

utility systems across, through, upon, and under the real property described on the attached 

Exhibits A and B (the “Easement Area”); provided, however, that the City shall restore the 

ground surface to its prior condition after any disturbance of such surface. The term “City-owned 

utility systems,” means above and below ground wires, lines, cables, ducts, conduits, pipes, 

pumps, pedestals, risers, poles, vaults, manholes, fire hydrants, pull boxes, and any other 

equipment, appurtenances, and structures associated with electric systems that are owned and 

operated by the City.   

 

Grantors are prohibited from constructing or placing on any part of the Easement Area 

without prior written approval from the City any fence or gate, building, above or below ground 

utility systems or appurtenances not owned or maintained by the City, or any other permanent or 

substantial structure.  Grantors are prohibited from making or permitting any use of the 

Easement Area that would impair, impede, or interfere with the City’s access to or along the 

easement, or the City’s full free use and exercise of the easement. The City shall be permitted to 

immediately remove without liability for damages any obstruction prohibited by this easement 

that interferes with the City’s access to the City-owned utility systems or impairs the City’s full 

free use and exercise of the easement. 

 

This easement is and shall be subordinate to the provision of existing and future 

agreements between the Grantors and the United States relative to the operation or maintenance 

of the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (the “Airport”), the execution of which has been or 

may be required as a condition precedent to the obtaining or expenditure of federal funds for the 

benefit of the Airport. 

 

The Grantors or their successors and assigns owns the trees and other vegetation on the 

Easement Area, and the Grantors acknowledge, for themselves and for all successors and 

assigns, that this easement provides the City with the authority to cut and remove trees and other 

vegetation that encroaches upon the Easement Area if, in the sole discretion of the City, such 

trees or vegetation interfere with the City’s use and enjoyment of this easement.   

53



Rev. 1-2021 

 

 The Easement Area hereby granted, situated in Larimer County, Colorado, is described as 

follows: 

 

 Exhibit A – Easement Description 

 Exhibit B – Easement Drawing 

 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said easement unto the City, its successors, and assigns 

forever. This perpetual easement and the rights, benefits, and obligations created hereby 

constitute a burden upon the estate of Grantors in the underlying lands and shall run with the 

land and be binding upon Grantors and their successors, personal representatives, assigns, and 

heirs.  Grantors doe hereby covenant with the City that it is lawfully seized and possessed of the 

real property above described, that it has a good and lawful right to convey the easement herein 

granted, that the easement is free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, and that it will forever 

warrant and defend the title thereto against lawful claims of all persons whomsoever. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this Grant of Utility Easement on the 

date below. 

 

      GRANTOR: 

 

      By:        

 

      Date: ____________________________________ 

       

Print Name:         

 

      Title:        

 

State of __________________ ) 

     ) ss 

County of ________________ ) 

 

Acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 20___, by (Name) 

______________________________ as (Title) _____________________________. 

 

Witness my hand and seal.  My commission expires: ____________________. 

 

 

(S E A L)     

 Notary Public 

 

 

OFFICIAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LOVELAND 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________________      ______________________ 

54



Rev. 1-2021 

 Stephen C. Adams, City Manager           Assistant City Attorney 

 

ATTEST:      

 

_____________________         ________________    

City Clerk Date       

55



 

 

NORTHERNENGINEERING.COM   |   970.221.4158 LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

FORT COLLINS   |   GREELEY 1 | 2 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND EXHIBIT 

DESCRIPTION 

 

A tract of land being a portion of Tract “B” of Barnstorm Second Addition, recorded August 12, 1986, as 

Reception No. 19860044345 of the Records of Larimer County and situate within Sections Twenty-eight (28) and 

Thirty-three (33), Township Seven North (T.6N.), Range Sixty-eight West (R.67W.) of the Sixth Principal Meridian 

(6th P.M.), City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado, being more particularly described as follows; 

 

Considering the easterly line of the Southeast Quarter of the said Section 28 as bearing North 00° 07' 30" East, an 

assumed bearing, and with all bearings contained herein relative thereto: 

 

COMMENCING at the Southeast Corner of the said Section 28, THENCE along said easterly line, North 00° 07' 30" 

East for a distance of 40.00 feet to the northerly line of the right-of-way of Earhart Road; THENCE continuing 

along said northerly right-of-way line South 86° 23' 26" West for a distance of 501.01 feet; THENCE North 89° 01' 

49" West for a distance of 864.74 feet to the beginning of a non-tangential curve; said curve being concave to the 

south, with a Delta of 118° 34' 06", having a radius of 50.00 feet, a length of 103.47 feet and a long chord bearing 

South 84° 48' 58" West for a distance of 85.97 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE continuing said curve, being concave to the southeast,  with a Delta of 11° 42' 44", having a radius of 

50.00 feet, a length of 10.22 feet and a long chord bearing South 19° 40' 33" West for a distance of 10.20 feet; 

THENCE departing said right-of way North 58° 52' 32" West for a distance of 45.90 feet; 

THENCE North 54° 29' 20" West for a distance of 41.93 feet; 

THENCE North 72° 52' 32" West for a distance of 36.35 feet; 

THENCE North 82° 18' 50" West for a distance of 36.39 feet; 

THENCE North 78° 52' 32" West for a distance of 29.97 feet; 

THENCE North 71° 34' 33" West for a distance of 66.11 feet; 

THENCE South 31° 34' 41" West for a distance of 12.79 feet; 

THENCE South 70° 07' 28" West for a distance of 46.59 feet; 

THENCE South 19° 52' 32" East for a distance of 2.50 feet; 

THENCE South 70° 07' 28" West for a distance of 15.00 feet; 

THENCE North 19° 52' 32" West for a distance of 15.00 feet; 

THENCE North 70° 07' 28" East for a distance of 15.00 feet; 

THENCE South 19° 52' 32" East for a distance of 2.50 feet; 

THENCE North 70° 07' 28" East for a distance of 43.10 feet; 

THENCE North 31° 34' 41" East for a distance of 7.92 feet; 

THENCE North 19° 52' 32" West for a distance of 10.59 feet; 

THENCE North 70° 07' 28" East for a distance of 2.59 feet; 

THENCE North 19° 52' 32" West for a distance of 69.71 feet; 

THENCE South 70° 07' 28" West for a distance of 2.50 feet; 

THENCE North 19° 52' 32" West for a distance of 16.00 feet; 

THENCE North 70° 07' 28" East for a distance of 15.00 feet; 

THENCE South 19° 52' 32" East for a distance of 16.00 feet; 

THENCE South 70° 07' 28" West for a distance of 2.50 feet; 

THENCE South 19° 52' 32" East for a distance of 69.71 feet; 

THENCE North 70° 07' 28" East for a distance of 2.41 feet; 

THENCE South 19° 52' 32" East for a distance of 10.89 feet; 

THENCE South 71° 34' 33" East for a distance of 63.56 feet; 

THENCE South 78° 52' 32" East for a distance of 29.03 feet; 

THENCE South 82° 18' 50" East for a distance of 36.92 feet; 

THENCE South 72° 52' 32" East for a distance of 38.79 feet; 

THENCE South 54° 29' 20" East for a distance of 43.16 feet; 

THENCE South 58° 52' 32" East for a distance of 43.49 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

The above-described tract of land contains 4,483 square feet or 0.10 acres, more or less (±), is meant to surround 

the as-constructed location of the utility, and may be subject to easements and rights-of-way now on record or 

existing. 

 

Exhibit attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 

 

 

NORTHERN ENGINEERING  

301 North Howes Street, Suite 100 

Fort Collins, Colorado 80521 

(970) 221-4158 

 

September 11, 2023 

TJK 
S:\Survey Jobs\297-012\Dwg\Descriptions\297-012 Easement Description.docx 

PR
ELIM

IN
A
R
Y

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N
, R

EC
O
R
D
IN

G

PU
R
PO

SES, O
R
 IM

PLEM
EN

TA
TIO

N

56



E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

POINT OF BEGINNING

E

E

E

ETRACT "B"
BARNSTORM 2ND ADDITION

OWNER NAME:
CITY OF FORT COLLINS

CITY OF LOVELAND

TRACT "B"
BARNSTORM 2ND ADDITION

OWNER NAME:
CITY OF FORT COLLINS

CITY OF LOVELAND

C1

L1

L2

L3
L4

L5

L6

L7

L8
L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14 L1
5

L16
L17

L18

L19

L20

L21 L22

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27
L28 L29

L30

L31

L32

C2

  4,483 SQ. FT. +/-
0.10 ACRES +/-

10.0'

10.0'

10.0'

LINE TABLE
LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

BEARING

N58° 52' 32"W

N54° 29' 20"W

N72° 52' 32"W

N82° 18' 50"W

N78° 52' 32"W

N71° 34' 33"W

S31° 34' 41"W

S70° 07' 28"W

S19° 52' 32"E

S70° 07' 28"W

N19° 52' 32"W

LENGTH

45.90'

41.93'

36.35'

36.39'

29.97'

66.11'

12.79'

46.59'

2.50'

15.00'

15.00'

LINE TABLE
LINE

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L21

L22

BEARING

N70° 07' 28"E

S19° 52' 32"E

N70° 07' 28"E

N31° 34' 41"E

N19° 52' 32"W

N70° 07' 28"E

N19° 52' 32"W

S70° 07' 28"W

N19° 52' 32"W

N70° 07' 28"E

S19° 52' 32"E

LENGTH

15.00'

2.50'

43.10'

7.92'

10.59'

2.59'

69.71'

2.50'

16.00'

15.00'

16.00'

LINE TABLE
LINE

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

L32

BEARING

S70° 07' 28"W

S19° 52' 32"E

N70° 07' 28"E

S19° 52' 32"E

S71° 34' 33"E

S78° 52' 32"E

S82° 18' 50"E

S72° 52' 32"E

S54° 29' 20"E

S58° 52' 32"E

LENGTH

2.50'

69.71'

2.41'

10.89'

63.56'

29.03'

36.92'

38.79'

43.16'

43.49'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

DELTA

118°34'06"

11°42'44"

RADIUS

50.00'

50.00'

LENGTH

103.47'

10.22'

BEARING

S84°48'58"W

S19°40'33"W

CHORD

85.97'

10.20'

N
00

°0
7'

30
"E

26
47

.7
1'

B
A

SI
S 

O
F 

B
EA

R
IN

G
S

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
S.E. COR. OF SEC. 28 T6N R68W

LOT 1, BARNSTORM 1ST
OWNER NAME:

CITY OF FORT COLLINS
CITY OF LOVELAND

N00°07'30"E
40.00'

S86°23'26"W
501.01'

NORTH RIGHT OF WAY
OF EARHART RD.

EA
ST

ER
LY

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

EA
ST

Q
U

AR
TE

R
 O

F 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 2
8

N89°01'49"W
864.74'

E. 1/4 COR. OF SEC. 28 T6N R68W

NOTE: THIS EXHIBIT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE A
MONUMENTED LAND SURVEY. ITS SOLE PURPOSE IS AS A
GRAPHIC REPRESENTATION TO AID IN THE VISUALIZATION
OF THE WRITTEN PROPERTY DESCRIPTION WHICH IT
ACCOMPANIES. THE WRITTEN PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
SUPERCEDES THE EXHIBIT DRAWING.

PAGE 2 OF 2
S:\SURVEY JOBS\297-012\DWG\EXHIBITS\297-012 EASEMENT EXHIBIT.DWG

EXHIBIT
A TRACT OF LAND BEING A PORTION OF TRACT "B" OF BARNSTORM SECOND ADDITION, BEING

SITUATE WITHIN SECTIONS 28 & 33, TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6th P.M., CITY
OF LOVELAND, COUNTY OF LARIMER, STATE OF COLORADO

PRELIMINARY

09-11-2023

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, RECORDING

PURPOSES. FOR REVIEW ONLY.

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

E PROPOSED ELECTRIC CONDUIT

EASEMENT LINE
RIGHT OF WAY

SECTION CORNER

EARHART RD.
(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES)

LE
AR

 D
R

.
(6

0'
 W

ID
E

PR
IV

AT
E 

D
R

.)

E ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT

SECTION LINE

57



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 5 

MEETING DATE: November 16, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Francis Robbins, Operations & Maintenance Manager 

 

TITLE 

Taxiway B&D and Taxilane Rehabilitation Design and Environmental 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Make a motion to recommend the Loveland City Manager execute a contract with 

Dibble Engineering for Design and Bid Phase Services for the Taxiway B&D and 

Taxilane Rehabilitation 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Negative, the contract amount is $234,040.38. 

$155,473 is eligible for grant reimbursement.  
 

SUMMARY 

This is an administrative item requesting for the Commission to recommend that the 

Loveland City Manager approve a contract with Dibble Engineering for professional 

services totaling $234,040.38. The Airport currently has an on-call contract with Dibble 

Engineering as its consultant on record through 2024. The contract was awarded after a 

thorough qualification-based selection process that included staff from both Cities 

serving on the selection committee. 

 

This project is important for general aviation aircraft safety and pavement longevity. 

Construction is scheduled for 2024. The project is included in the adopted Airport 

Master Plan and Capital Improvement Plan. The rehabilitation is planned to include an 

asphalt mill and overlay with localized reconstruction. 

 

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) will provide the Airport with a grant funding 

the eligible portion of the project design and construction in 2024. The project is 

organized in two schedules to separate FAA eligible and non-eligible areas of work. The 

Taxiway B and D area is defined as Schedule I and is eligible for Federal grant 

reimbursement to the amount listed in the table below. The General Aviation (GA) 

Taxilanes rehabilitation is not eligible for federal or state grant programs and will be 

funded locally. The rehabilitation will include asphalt milling and resurfacing with 

localized areas of reconstruction where pavements are at are near failure point. 

58



              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission Page 2 of 2 

 

Constructing both phases in a single project bid leverages economies of scale and 

reduces downtime to affected users. 

 

 

Scope FAA Grant State Grant Local  Total 
Taxiway B And D $147,291 $8,182 $8,182 $163,656 
GA Taxilanes $0 $0 $70,354 $70,354 
Total $147,291 $8,182 $78,536 $234,040 

*Amounts rounded to nearest dollar 

 

ATTACHMENT 

Project Presentation Slides 

Airport Services Contract with Dibble  

 

 

59



11/14/2023

1

Taxiway & Taxilane
Rehabilitation

Presentation to the Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 
November 16, 2023. 

Background
• Rehabilitation of these pavements is identified in the Airport Master 

Plan
• It is a project identified in the Capital Improvement Plan adopted on

October 19, 2023. 
• The pavements have been regularly maintained with crack seal and 

seal coat to increase longevity.
• Current pavement condition is aging beyond the help of crack 

seal/seal coat effectiveness and rehabilitation is next maintenance 
step. 
• FAA Kick off meeting held October 25th

1

2

60



11/14/2023

2

3

4

61



11/14/2023

3

Timeline
• Contracting November 2023
• Environmental Cat Ex Determination December 2023
• Grant Application and 30% design January 2024.
• Final bid documents February 2024
• Bid Construction Award March 2024
• Construction Second Quarter 2024

Financial Impact

Design and Bid Phase (Quoted)

TotalLocal State GrantFAA GrantScope
$163,656$8,182$8,182$147,291Taxiway B And D

$70,354$70,354$0$0GA Taxilanes
$234,040$78,536$8,182$147,291Total

Total Project thru Construction (estimated)

TotalLocal State GrantFAA GrantScope
$1,027,776$51,288$51,288$925,000Taxiway B And D

$600,000$600,000$0$0GA Taxilanes
$1,627,776$651,288$51,288$925,000Total

5

6

62



11/14/2023

4

Staff Recommendation

• Make a motion to recommend the Loveland City Manager execute a 
contract with Dibble Engineering for Design and Bid Phase Services 
for the taxiway and taxilane rehabilitation project.

7

63



 

Page 1 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

AIRPORT SERVICES CONTRACT 

 
This contract (“Contract”) is entered into this   day of    , 20

 , by and between the City of Loveland and the City of Fort Collins (the “Cities”), acting by 
and through the Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission (“NCRAC”), and Dibble 

Engineering (“Contractor”). 
 

Whereas, the Cities and the Contractor, referred to herein jointly as the “parties,” desire to 
contract with one another to complete the following project: Taxiway B & D Rehabilitation. 
 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, 
the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Services.  The Contractor shall perform the services set forth in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference (“Services”).  The Contractor represents that it has the 
authority, capacity, experience, and expertise to perform the Services in compliance with the 
provisions of this Contract and all applicable laws. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
performance of all duties hereunder. The Cities reserve the right to remove any of the Services and 
costs associated with such Services from Exhibit A upon written notice to the Contractor.  In the 
event of any conflict between this Contract and Exhibit A, the provisions of this Contract shall 
prevail. 
 

2. Price.  The City of Loveland shall pay the Contractor a sum not to exceed 
$234,040.38.  The City of Loveland shall make payment within thirty (30) days of receipt and 
approval of monthly invoices, which shall identify the specific Services performed for which 
payment is requested.  Upon final payment, all work completed by the Contractor, including but 
not limited to all designs, plans, reports, specifications, drawings, data, analysis, and other services 
rendered by the Contractor, shall become the sole property of the Cities. 

 
3. Term.  This Contract shall be effective from November 16, 2023 through 

November 30, 2024.  This Contract may be extended or renewed by written agreement of the 
parties.  

 
4. Appropriation.  To the extent this Contract constitutes a multiple fiscal year debt or 

financial obligation of either of the Cities, it shall be subject to annual appropriations pursuant to 
the Municipal Charters of each of the Cities and Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution.  
Neither of the Cities shall have any obligation to continue this Contract in any fiscal year in which 
no such appropriation is made and a termination in such a fiscal year shall not be considered 
default. 

 

64



 

Page 2 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

5. Independent Contractor.  The parties agree that the Contractor is an independent 
contractor and is not an employee of either of the Cities.  The Contractor is not entitled to 

workers’ compensation benefits from the Cities.  The Contractor is obligated to pay federal 

and state income tax on any money earned pursuant to this Contract.   
 

6. Insurance Requirements.   
 

a. Policies.  The Contractor and its subcontractors, if any, shall procure and 
keep in force during the duration of this Contract the following insurance policies, and shall 
provide the Cities with a certificate of insurance evidencing the same upon execution of 
this Contract: 

 
(i) Comprehensive general liability insurance insuring the Contractor 

and naming the Cities as additional insureds with minimum combined single limits 
of $1,000,000 each occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate.  The policy shall be 
applicable to all premises and operations.  The policy shall include coverage for 
bodily injury, broad form property damage (including completed operations), 
personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee acts), blanket 
contractual, independent contractors, products, and completed operations.  The 
policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. 

 
(ii) Comprehensive automobile liability insurance insuring the 

Contractor and naming the Cities as additional insureds against any liability for 
personal injury, bodily injury, or death arising out of the use of motor vehicles and 
covering operations on or off the site of all motor vehicles controlled by the 
Contractor which are used in connection with this Contract, whether the motor 
vehicles are owned, non-owned, or hired, with a combined single limit of at least 
$1,000,000.   

 
(iii) Professional liability insurance insuring the Contractor against any 

professional liability with a limit of at least $1,000,000 per claim and annual 
aggregate.  (Note: this policy shall only be required if the Contractor is an architect, 

engineer, surveyor, appraiser, physician, attorney, accountant, or other licensed 

professional.) 

 
(iv)   Workers’ compensation insurance and all other insurance required 

by any applicable law.  (Note: if under Colorado law the Contractor is not required 

to carry workers’ compensation insurance, the Contractor shall execute a 

Certificate of Exemption and Waiver, attached hereto as Exhibit B and 

incorporated herein by reference.) 

 

65



 

Page 3 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

b. Requirements.  Required insurance policies shall be with companies 
qualified to do business in Colorado with a general policyholder’s financial rating 
acceptable to the Cities.  Said policies shall not be cancelable or subject to reduction in 
coverage limits or other modification except after thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
the Cities.  The Contractor shall identify whether the type of coverage is “occurrence” or 
“claims made.”  If the type of coverage is “claims made,” which at renewal the Contractor 
changes to “occurrence,” the Contractor shall carry a six-month tail.  Comprehensive 
general and automobile policies shall be for the mutual and joint benefit and protection of 
the Contractor and the Cities.  Such policies shall provide that the Cities, although named 
as additional insureds, shall nevertheless be entitled to recover under said policies for any 
loss occasioned to it, its officers, employees, and agents by reason of negligence of the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or business invitees.  Such 
policies shall be written as primary policies not contributing to and not in excess of 
coverage of the Cities. 

 

7. Data Security.  Pursuant to the Colorado Protections for Consumer Data Privacy 
Act, C.R.S. §24-73-101, et seq., Contractor will destroy all paper and electronic documents 
containing personal identifying information within six (6) months of termination of this agreement, 
unless otherwise required under the law. If other laws are applicable, such information will be 
securely destroyed to protect personal identifying information. Contractor shall implement and 
maintain security procedures that are consistent with generally accepted industry standards to 
protect personal identifying information and that are designed to protect the information from 
unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. If Contractor discovers or is 
informed of a security breach, Contractor will give the Cities notice in the most expedient time 
and without unreasonable delay, no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after it is determined a 
security breach occurred. Contractor shall cooperate with the Cities in the event of a security 
breach that compromises computerized data, if misuse of personal information about a Colorado 
resident occurred or is likely to occur. Cooperation includes sharing with the Cities information 
relevant to the security breach.  Contractors shall be liable for any damages caused by such security 
breach. 
 

8. Indemnification.  The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Cities, 
their officers, employees, and agents, including members of the NCRAC, as applicable, from and 
against all liability, claims, and demands on account of any injury, loss, or damage arising out of 
or connected with the Services, if such injury, loss, or damage, or any portion thereof, is caused 
by, or claimed to be caused by, the act, omission, or other fault of the Contractor or any 
subcontractor of the Contractor, or any officer, employee, or agent of the Contractor or any 
subcontractor, or any other person for whom the Contractor is responsible.  The Contractor shall 
investigate, handle, respond to, and defend against any such liability, claims, and demands, and 
shall bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including court costs and attorneys’ fees. If 
the Contractor is providing architectural, engineering, design, or surveying services, the obligation 

66



 

Page 4 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

to indemnify and pay costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees, is limited to the amount represented by 
the degree or percentage of negligence or fault attributable to the Contractor, or the Contractor’s 
agents, representatives, employees, servants, subcontractors, or suppliers as determined by 
adjudication, alternative dispute resolution, or otherwise resolved by mutual agreement between 
the Contractor and the Cities. The Contractor shall notify Cities and provide a copy of any and all 
written claims or demands within two (2) business days of receipt. The Contractor’s 
indemnification obligation shall not be construed to extend to any injury, loss, or damage to the 
extent caused by the act, omission, or other fault of the Cities.  This paragraph shall survive the 
termination or expiration of this Contract. 

 
9. Governmental Immunity Act.  No term or condition of this Contract shall be 

construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the notices, requirements, 
immunities, rights, benefits, protections, limitations of liability, and other provisions of the 
Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101 et seq. and under any other applicable 
law. 

 
10. Colorado Open Records Act. The parties understand that all the material provided 

or produced under this Contract, including items marked Proprietary or Confidential, may be 
subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, section 24-72-201 et seq. of the Colorado Revised 
Statutes.  If the Contractor objects to the disclosure of any information in its statement of work, 
Exhibit A, or other document provided to the Cities under this Contract, the Contractor must mark 
it clearly as confidential.  The Cities are required to make a determination under the Colorado 
Open Records Act, and may only withhold documents that are confidential under the law.  If the 
Cities release records in compliance with the Colorado Open Records Act, the Contractor waives 
any claims for liability or damages.  Contractor further agrees to defend, indemnify, save and hold 
harmless the Cities, its officers, agents and employees from any claim, damages, expense, loss, or 
costs arising out of the Contractor’s intervention to protect and assert its claim of privilege against 
disclosure under this Paragraph, including but not limited to prompt reimbursement to the Cities 
of all reasonable attorney’s fees, costs, and damages that the Cities may incur directly or may be 
ordered to pay by such court. 
 

11. Prohibited Terms.  Any term included in Exhibit A, or any other exhibit, that 
requires the Cities to indemnify or hold the Contractor harmless; requires the Cities to agree to 
binding arbitration; limits the Contractor’s liability for damages caused by the Contractor; 
determines choice of law, conflicts of law, or venue and forum-selection, or defense or control of 
litigation or settlement; requires the Cities to pay attorneys’ fees or costs; requires the Cities to 
name the Contractor as an additional insured; requires the Cities to agree to confidentiality; or that 
conflicts with this provision in any way shall be void ab initio. Designations of venue, choice of 
law, enforcement actions, and similar provisions shall not be construed as a waiver of sovereign 
immunity. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Contract shall not be strictly construed, 

67



 

Page 5 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

either against or for either party, except that any ambiguity as to sovereign immunity shall be 
construed in favor of the Cities. 

 

12. Online Agreement Disclaimer and Additional Terms.  Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary herein, the Cities shall not be subject to any provision included in any terms, 
conditions, or agreements appearing on the Contractor’s website or any provision incorporated 
into any click-through or online agreements related to the Services. Any terms the Contractor 
wishes to include must be directly included in Exhibit A or another exhibit to this Contract, not 
refenced as a website, separate set of terms, included as a clicked-through agreement, or any 
similar set of additional terms not attached hereto. 
 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, including the ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations of the 
Cities, as applicable. The Contractor shall solely be responsible for payment of all applicable taxes 
and for obtaining and keeping in force all applicable permits and approvals. 
 

14. Termination. 
 

a. Without Cause.  NCRAC, acting on behalf of the Cities, the Cities, acting 
jointly on their own behalves, or the Contractor may terminate this Contract without cause 
upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice to the other.  The Cities shall be liable to pay 
the Contractor for Services satisfactorily performed as of the effective date of termination, 
but shall not be liable to the Contractor for anticipated profits.   

 
b. For Default.  Each and every term and condition hereof shall be deemed to 

be a material element of this Contract.  In the event either party fails to perform according to 
the terms of this Contract, such party may be declared in default.  If the defaulting party does 
not cure said breach within ten (10) days of written notice thereof, the non-defaulting party 
may terminate this Contract immediately upon written notice of termination to the other.  
In the event of such termination,  Cities shall be liable to pay the Contractor for Services 
satisfactorily performed as of the effective date of termination, but the Cities shall not be 
liable to Contractor for anticipated profits or consequential damages; provided, however, 
that the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the Cities for any damages sustained 
by the Cities by virtue of any default under this Contract, and NCRAC, acting on behalf of 
the Cities, or the Cities may withhold payment to the Contractor for the purposes of setoff 
until such time as the exact amount of damages is determined. 

 
15. Notices.  Written notices shall be directed as follows and shall be deemed received 

when hand-delivered or emailed, or three (3) days after being sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested: 
 

68



 

Page 6 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

To the City of Loveland:  To the Contractor: 
David Ruppel  Kenneth Snyder 
City of Loveland  Dibble Engineering 
4900 Earhart Road  2696 S Colorado Blvd, Suite 330 
Loveland, CO 80538  Denver, CO 80222 
Email: 
David.Rupple@cityofloveland.org 

 Email: ken.snyder@dibblecorp.com 

 
To the City of Fort Collins: 
City Attorney 
PO Box 580 
Fort Collins, CO 80522 
 
16. Special Provisions.  This contract is awarded to the Engineer of Record as 

established by Airport Engineering and Architectural Services agreement entered into January 
23rd, 2020. In the event of any conflict between this Contract and the contract dated January 23rd, 
2020, the provisions of this Contract shall prevail.  

 
17. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in performance of the Services and is 

a significant and material term of this Contract. 
 

18. Miscellaneous.  This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties relating 
to the subject matter hereof and, except as provided herein, may not be modified or amended except 
by written agreement of the parties.  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction holds any 
provision of this Contract invalid or unenforceable, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision of this Contract.  The Contractor shall not assign this Contract 
without the Cities’ prior written consent.  This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State 
of Colorado, and venue shall be in the County of Larimer, State of Colorado. 
 

19. Personal Services and Non-Assignment.  It is understood that the Cities enter into 
this Contract based on the special abilities of the Contractor and that this Contract shall be 
considered as an agreement for personal services.  Accordingly, the Contractor shall neither assign 
any responsibilities nor delegate any duties arising under this Contract without the prior written 
consent of the Cities.   

 
20. Subcontractors. Contractor may not subcontract any of the Services without the 

prior written consent of the Cities, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. If any of the Serices 
are subcontracted hereunder (with the consent of the Cities), then the following provisions shall 
apply: (a) the subcontractor must be a reputable, qualified firm with an established record of 
successful performance in its respective trade performing identical or substantially similar work, 
(b) the subcontractor will be required to comply with all applicable terms of this Contract, (c) the 

69



 

Page 7 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

subcontract will not create any contractual relationship between any such subcontractor and the 
Cities, nor will it obligate the Cities to pay or see to the payment of any subcontractor, and (d) the 
work of the subcontractor will be subject to inspection by the Cities to the same extent as the work 
of the Contractor. 

 
21. Acceptance Not Waiver.  The approval by the Cities of any documents, reports, and 

incidental work or materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve the Contractor of 
responsibility for the quality or technical accuracy of the Services. The Cities approval or 
acceptance of, or payment for, any of the Services shall not be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights or benefits provided to the Cities under this Contract. 
 

22. Representative. The Cities designate the Airport Manager as its project 
representative who shall make, within the scope of his or her authority, all necessary and proper 
decisions with reference to the Services.  All requests for contract interpretations, change orders, 
and other clarification or instruction shall be directed to the representative.  The Cities may change 
is designated representative by written notice to the Contractor. 
 

23. Legal Authority.  The person signing and executing this Contract on behalf of the 
Contractor hereby warrants and guarantees that they have been fully authorized by the Contractor 
to execute this Contract on the Contractor’s behalf and to validly and legally bind the Contractor 
to all terms, performances, and provisions set forth herein. 

 
24. Signatures.  This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, including 

by facsimile or electronic mail, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall 
constitute one and the same Contract.  By affixing an image of one’s own signature to this Contract 
in an electronic format, the person is signing the Contract as if it were an original, wet ink 
signature.  
 
Signed by the parties on the date written above. 
 
 

 

 

 

Contractor 

 
Signature:  ______________________________ 
 
Printed Name: ______________________________ 
 
Title:   ______________________________ 

70



 

Page 8 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

 
 
Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission 

acting on behalf of the City of Loveland, Colorado 

and the City of Fort Collins, Colorado 
 

Signature:  ______________________________ 
 
Printed Name: ______________________________ 
 
Title:   ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________ 
Assistant City Attorney 

The City of Loveland and City of Fort Collins are committed to providing an equal opportunity for services, 

programs and activities and does not discriminate on the basis of disability, race, age, color, national origin, 

religion, sexual orientation or gender. For more information on non-discrimination or for translation 

assistance, please contact the City of Loveland’s Title VI Coordinator at TitleSix@cityofloveland.org or 970-

962-2372. The City of Loveland will make reasonable accommodations for citizens in accordance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). For more information on ADA or accommodations, please contact the 

City of Loveland’s ADA Coordinator at jason.smitherman@cityofloveland.org or 970-962-3319.  

La Ciudad de Loveland y la Ciudad de Fort Collins están comprometidas  a proporcionar igualdad de oportunidades 
para los servicios, programas y actividades y no discriminar en base a discapacidad, raza, edad, color, origen nacional, 
religión, orientación sexual o género.  Para más información sobre la no discriminación o para asistencia en traducción, 
favor contacte al Coordinador Título VI de la Ciudad de Loveland al TitleSix@cityofloveland.org o al 970-962-2372.  
La Ciudad realizará las acomodaciones razonables para los ciudadanos de acuerdo con la Ley de Discapacidades para 
americanos (ADA).  Para más información sobre ADA o acomodaciones, favor contacte al Coordinador de ADA de 
la Ciudad de Loveland en jason.smitherman@cityofloveland.org o al 970-962-3319. 
  

71

mailto:TitleSix@cityofloveland.org
tel:970-962-2372
tel:970-962-2372
mailto:jason.smitherman@cityofloveland.org
tel:970-962-3319
mailto:TitleSix@cityofloveland.org
mailto:jason.smitherman@cityofloveland.org


 

Page 9 
 

Form Approved by Loveland City Attorney 7/7/2022[Laurie Wilson, LW, 7/7/22] 

Form Approved by Fort Collins City Attorney 7/7/2022[Judy Schmidt, JS, 7/7/22] 

For use in accordance with Section 4.A of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement for the Joint 

Operation of the Fort Collins-Loveland Airport dated January 22, 2015 (the "IGA"), as amended by First 

Amendment dated June 7, 2016 ,  

 

EXHIBIT A – SERVICES 

 

Engineering Services Proposal Taxiways B and D Rehabilitation 37 pages and 
Engineering Services Proposal GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation 33 pages  
 
 

72



p 303.872.5756 2696 South Colorado Blvd, Suite 330 d ib b leco r p .co m  

f 303.353.4068 Denver, CO 80222 

 

 

October 27, 2023 
 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport 

4900  Earhart Road 

Loveland, CO 80538 
 

Attention: David Rupel 

Interim Airport Director 
 

RE: ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL 

  City Project Number: TBD 

  FAA AIP No. TBD 

  Design and Bid Phase Services 

  Taxiw ays  B an d D Re h abilitatio n   
  

We appreciate the opportunity to provide design and bid services for the Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation  
project at the Northern CO Regional Airport (FNL).  This proposal has been prepared in accordance with the 
direction provided by the FAA and FNL and with the information discussed during the FAA Project Kick-Off 
Meeting held on October 25th. 

Dibble, as the prime consultant, is proposing to complete the Scope of Work as included in this proposal for 
as follows: 

A. De s ign  an d Bid Ph as e  Se rvice s : 

1. Dibble (Civil)………………………………………………………………………… 

2. NorthStar Engineering and Surveying (Survey)..………………………. 

3. Terracon (Geotechnical)…………………….………………………………….. 

Subto tal……………… 

 

Transmitted herewith is our proposed Scope of Work, Project Exhibit, Pre-design Construction Cost Estimate, 

Preliminary Project Schedule, Fee Summary, Derivation of Fee Proposal, Estimated Manhours matrix, 

Estimated Direct Costs worksheet, and full subconsultant proposals for your review.  
 

We are very grateful for the opportunity to work with FNL on this project.  If you need additional information 

or have questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

J ared Bass, P.E.        

Vice President - Sr. Project Manager     

$126,456.72

$9,800 .00

$27,400 .00

$ 16 3 ,6 56 .72

73



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   Ta xiw a y s  B & D R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 1 of 7         

 
 

SCOPE OF W ORK 

Northern CO Regional Airport  

Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitat ion 

FAA AI P No. TBD 

October 2 7 , 2 0 2 3  
In tro ductio n  
 
Dibble (Engineer) has been requested by the Northern CO Regional Airport (FNL or Airport) to provide design 
and bid phase services for the Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation project.  
 
CDOT Aeronautics last performed a surface pavement inspection in 2022 and determined the Taxiway B 
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) to be 64, with a projected PCI of 62 in 2024.  The Taxiway D PCI was 36 in 2022, 
with a projected PCI of 30  in 2024.  Dibble performed another site visit and inspected the pavement in August 
2023 and found the pavement to be in the same general condition as expected from the CDOT PCI report.   
 
Dibble also gathered the project history on the two taxiways, which was limited.  Taxiways B and D were 
constructed around the year 1980 .  No pavement rehabilitation has been recorded, although the pavement 
condition does show that crack seals and seal coats have been performed in the past.  CH2M performed a 
Pavement Condition inspection in 2013 and documented the pavement section of Taxiways B and D to be 4-inches 
AC (P-401) on 10-inches ABC (P-209) on 12-inches P-158 (Fly-Ash Stabilized Subgrade).  The estimated subgrade 
CBR was 12 in 2013. 
 
This project will consist of a minimum 2-inch mill and overlay of approximately 8,800  square yards of existing 
pavement along Taxiways B and D.  It is anticipated that there will be a few areas where full depth pavement 
rehabilitation will be needed due to the width of existing full-depth cracking and localized pavement failures.  See 
pictures below and reference the Project Exhibit included after the scope of work document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Taxiw ay B        Taxiw ay D 
 
FNL anticipates funding the design and bid phases locally, while seeking reimbursement with a 2024 federal 
grant, that will also cover the construction costs.  The current estimated total project cost is $1.027M, see attached 
Pre-Design Cost Estimate. 
 
It should also be noted that this project will be combined with a locally-funded (FNL only) GA Taxilanes project.  
That project Exhibit is included with this project for reference.  The Taxiways B and D project will be Bid Schedule 
I and the GA Taxilanes project will be Bid Schedule II. 
 
This proposal (design and bid phase services only) is based on a 4-month design phase (December 2023 –  March 
2024).  The bid phase is anticipated to occur March-April 2024 with a bid hold of 120-calendar days (notice of 
award required around the end of August 2024).   

74



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   Ta xiw a y s  B & D R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 2  of 7         

 
The following Dibble staff are expected on this project: 

 Project Principal and Quality Manager –  Ken Snyder 

 Senior Project Manager –  J ared Bass 

 Senior Engineer –  Nora Sami 

 Project Engineer –  Derek Williams 

 Senior Designer –  Travis Woodman  

 Administrative Support –  J im Hodge 
 
The following subconsultants are anticipated on this project (their respective proposals are attached): 

 Survey: NorthStar Engineering and Surveying 

 Geotechnical: Terracon 
 

Design Phase Services ( Lum p Sum )  

 

1 )  General Project  Managem ent  and Pre- Design Tasks: 
 

a) Project Management and Administration: provide and direct all project management and coordination 
of the design team and provide coordination between design team members, the Airport, and other 
interested stakeholders, including the FAA.  Administration tasks such as file coordination and 
miscellaneous project communications throughout the course of the design phase and project printing 
and packaging at each submittal level will also be included under this task.  

 

b) Project Meetings:  The following are anticipated meetings throughout the design phase: 

i. FAA Design Kick-Off Meeting: this meeting is generally held prior to the development of the full 
proposal with FAA and FNL staff to review and finalize the scope of work required by the FAA 
in the Design, Bid, and Construction Phases. 

ii. Internal Design Kick-Off Meeting: this meeting will be held at the beginning of the project with 
FNL to review the scope of work, design schedule, design budget, and critical design elements 
that require coordination with various airport stakeholders.  The team will also coordinate the 
Survey and Geotechnical efforts with FNL staff.   

iii. 30% Design Review Meeting:  this meeting will be held with FNL, FAA, CDOT Aeronautics, and 
Dibble Team members to review comments received on the 30% design documents and the 
next critical steps in the process.  

iv. 100% Design Review Meeting:  this meeting will be held with FNL, FAA, CDOT Aeronautics, and 
Dibble Team members to review the final submittal items and obtain approval to move into the 
Bid Phase.  
 

c) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Annual Goal and Program:  Dibble will assist with the 
development of the 2023/ 2024 DBE program and goals related to this project. Additionally, Dibble will 
assist in tracking the DBE participation throughout the course of the project in preparation and 
submittal of the final, year-end DBE Performance in 2024 to the FAA Civil Rights Office (i.e. Sonia Cruz).  

  

d) Federal Grant Application: Dibble will create the 2024 FAA Grant Application required for this project to 
cover Design, Bid, and Construction Phase services.  This task item will also include effort to help with 
the coordination and submittal to the FAA, as well as address any review comments from the FAA.  The 
following elements shall be included in the development of the FAA Grant Application (varies for the 
design and construction applications): 

 Standard 424 Form 

 Project Exhibit 

 Detailed Construction Cost Estimate 

 Exhibit “A” (colored exhibit with AIP identification) 

 Federal Grant Assurances 

 Verification of Sponsor’s UEI and SAMS (CCR numbers) 

 Project Approval Information 

 SF 5100-100 , Parts II, III and IV 

75



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   Ta xiw a y s  B & D R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 3  of 7         

 CIP Pre-application Data Sheet for Construction Projects 

 Standard DOT Title VI Assurances 

 Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 Title VI Pre-Award Sponsor Checklist 
 

2 )  Design Start - Up and Data Collect ion: 
 

a) Existing As-Built Document Research and Review: gather and review all available as‐built or record 
drawings, utility maps, surveys, design plans, studies, reports and miscellaneous projects at the airport, 
relevant to this project.  This item shall also consist of reviewing the existing data available for the 
current pavement and subsoil conditions.  All of this information will be coordinated with the surveyors 
and geotechnical engineers so that any specific data important to the design of this project can be 
identified and obtained during the field activities. 

 

b) Private and City Utility Coordination:  coordinate with the known private and City utilities that are on 
the airport (Water, Wastewater, Drainage, and Electrical, and Public Works Departments), specifically 
within or adjacent to the project limits.  Plans shall be modified to include all received information from 
those departments on the plans.   

 

c) Survey and Coordination and Review: all survey work shall be conducted in compliance with FAA AC 
150-5300-16/ 17/ 18. Survey efforts shall include documentation of the survey methodology used for data 
collection and accuracies thereof, along with use of existing Airport Geodetic Control, Primary and 
Secondary Airport Control benchmarks, (PACS and SACS).  The survey shall utilize a robotic total 
station, GPS, and differential leveling, collecting topographic features along the project areas, (NAD 83 
and NAVD 88, US Survey Feet).   

 
All survey data shall meet or exceed the Level 1A horizontal and vertical minimum requirements for 
submittal to the OE/ AAA website. 
 
It is anticipated that the survey will be conducted during the daytime. 

 

d) Base Map Development and Coordination: develop multiple CAD basemaps including demolition, 
geometric layouts, grading and drainage, pavement elevations, and utility infrastructure features 
collected from the topographic field survey, existing design files, field investigations (pictures and notes), 
and record drawings.  Also included in this item is the setup of all construction plan sheets including 
survey, pavement sections, pavement marking details, notes, etc.  All work will be consistent with FAA 
and City standards, as applicable. 
 

e) Geotechnical and Coordination and Review: investigations in the form of drilling test borings will be 
conducted in accordance with FAA AC 150/ 5320-6F. Preparatory work will include coordinating access, 
conducting site reconnaissance of existing conditions and obtaining utility clearances for field borings.  
The FAA AC 150/ 5320-6G Pavem ent Design  recommends cores taken every 200-feet for new or full 
reconstruction of taxiways.  Given this is a mill and overlay project we will take two (2) cores along 
Taxiway B and four (4) cores along Taxiway D.  

 
It is anticipated that the geotechnical investigations will be conducted during the daytime. 
 
The geotechnical consultant shall sample six (6) test borings along the existing taxiways to adequately 
determine pavement and subsoil conditions and provide samples for laboratory testing. Pavement cores 
will be cut before digging and patched after completion.  Non-shrink grout shall be used to fill the cores. 
Depth of investigation shall be 10-feet below existing ground surface, or auger refusal, whichever comes 
first.  
 
Laboratory Analysis:  Conduct sufficient laboratory tests to properly classify soils encountered and 
provide data for engineering design, including: 
 

 Taxiway Pavement Depths 

 Grain Size Analysis  

 Plasticity Index  

76



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   Ta xiw a y s  B & D R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 4  of 7         

 Moisture Density Relations 

 Existing CBR 

 Existing PCR 

 In-place Density 

 Moisture Content 
 
Geotechnical Report:  Analyze the data obtained from field and laboratory testing and prepare a draft 
and final report presenting all data obtained, including individual Log of Test Borings, and Tabulation of 
Test Data. 

 

3 )  3 0 %  Progress Subm it ta l: 
 

a) 30% Design Plans: progress the design to the 30% level.  30% plans are anticipated to include the 
following:  

 Cover Sheet 

 General Construction Notes (FAA and City) 

 Design Legend, Abbreviations, Sheet Index 

 Quantities Sheet 

 Survey Control Plan (establishment of survey control) 

 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan and Details (1 sheet) 

 Airport Site Plan  

 Project Site Plan  

 Construction Phasing and Barricade Plan (2 sheets) 

 Pavement Section and Typical Section Details and Profiles 

 Demolition Plan (1 sheet) 

 Geometric Control Plans (2 sheets) 

 Paving and Grading Plans (2 sheets) 

 Pavement Marking Plans and Details (2 Sheets) 

 Geotechnical Boring Location Map and Boring Logs (2 sheets) 
 

Total Sheet Count estimated at the 30% Submittal = 20  
 

b) Draft Engineer’s Design Report: the draft Engineer’s Design Report shall be prepared in accordance with 
the latest FAA –  Northwest Region suggested outline.  The Draft Report shall provide design criteria and 
standards anticipated to be used in developing the construction documents (i.e. plans and technical 
specifications).  The Draft Report shall document the upfront investigative results such as taxiway 
conditions, geotechnical investigations, and design concepts.  The report shall cover the following (at a 
minimum), however, some of the sections below may not be included in the Draft Report but will be 
covered in the Final Report and are identified below for consistency:  

  

 Project Background 

 History of Applicable Airport Facilities 

 Project Scope of Work 

 Photographs of the Project Site 

 List of anticipated and applicable Design Standards (FAA AC 150/ 5300-13B) 

 Discussion of Environmental Actions and Determinations (see CATEX Section 3.e) 

 Geotechnical Investigations (Pavement and Soils Conditions and Site Requirements) 

 Pavement Design and Standards (FAA AC 150/ 5320-6G) 

 Material Availability 

 Pavement Markings (FAA AC 150/ 5340-1M) 

 FAA Owned Facilities (as applicable) 

 Non-AIP Work (as applicable) 

 Engineer’s Cost Estimate (i.e. Total Project and Construction Cost) 

 DBE Participation  

 Construction Safety and Phasing 

 Miscellaneous Work Items 

 Pre-Design Meeting Minutes 

77



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   Ta xiw a y s  B & D R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 5  of 7         

 Reference Documents (i.e. applicable FAA Advisory Circulars, ALP, etc.) 
 

c) FAA Categorical Exclusion (CATEX): A federal CATEX has been developed and approved previously for 
this project.  There will be minor coordination with FAA over the course of the design phase.  Dibble will 
include a discussion on the history of the federal environmental process that took place and the FAA’s 
overall approval.  The FAA’s determination (CATEX) will be included as an appendix to the overall 
engineer’s design report. 

 

d) 30% Quantities and Engineer’s OPCC: based on the 30% construction plans and technical specifications, 
the Engineer will develop a 30% Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC).  The unit pricing for 
each line item will be based on recent bid tabulations from comparative projects, locations, materials, 
and quantities available at that time.   

 

e) Draft Contract Documents and Technical Specification: The draft contract documents, and technical 
specifications will be developed by the Engineer in a manner consistent with the regulations and 
standards set forth by the funding agencies anticipated for construction, (i.e. FAA and City).  Contract 
documents shall include all bidding requirements, Federal General Provisions that control the work of the 
Contractor, Federal Assurances specific to this project, Federal Wage Rates, Buy American Provisions, 
City Special Provisions (if any), and Federal Technical Specifications for the materials with measurement 
and payment controlled on a unit price basis. The Draft Contract Documents will be submitted to the City 
for review of legality and then submitted for review by the FAA.  The Technical Specifications will be 
consistent with the latest, available version of FAA AC 150/ 5370-10 .  Technical Specifications will include 
the following (at a minimum): 

 

 C-100  Contractor Quality Control Program 

 C-102 Temporary Air and Water Pollution, Soil Erosion and Siltation Control 

 C-105 Mobilization 

 C-110 Method of Estimating Percent Within Specification Limits 

 P-101 Preparation/ Removal of Existing Pavement 

 P-152 Excavation and Embankment 

 P-401 Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Pavements 

 P-603 Bituminous Tack Coat 

 P-608 Emulsified Asphalt Seal Coat 

 P-620  Airfield Pavement Marking 
 

f) FAA FAARFIELD Existing Pavement Section Analysis: the Engineer will coordinate the data from the 
geotechnical investigations and provide an analysis of the existing pavement sections and subgrade 
conditions. The Engineer will also calculate new Pavement Condition Ratings (PCR) for the existing 
pavement taxiway sections and anticipated life cycle. 

 

g) Draft Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP): a Draft CSPP will be developed to be included in the 
contract documents as guidance to the contractor on important safety standards and regulations that are 
typically required on airport construction projects.  The CSPP will be prepared in accordance with the 
latest, available FAA AC 150/ 5370-2.  Guidance will be provided to direct the Contractor awarded the 
project for standards and safety while performing construction activities on an airport.  Construction 
phasing and barricade plans will also be provided in  this report for reference during construction. 
 
This Plan will be submitted to the FAA for review and any comments received by the FAA will be 
addressed.  Once finalized, the Engineer will submit the Plan on the FAA airspace review website, 
Obstruction Evaluation and Airport Airspace Analysis (OE/ AAA), (after the 30% Submittal). 

 

h) 30% Internal QA/ QC Project Review: in addition to the continual quality assurance reviews performed 
by senior practice staff, Dibble will perform additional quality control reviews prior to each submittal 
utilizing standardized checking processes by a Senior QC Manager.  Each subconsultant will be 
responsible for their own Quality Control, however, the Senior QC Manager will review all combined 
project documents for consistency amongst the design elements before each submittal as well. 
 

78



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   Ta xiw a y s  B & D R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 6  of 7         

i) 30% Plan-In-Hand Site Visit: perform a plans-in-hand site visit to visually compare the plans and survey 
data to existing field conditions.  Design elements will be reviewed and/ or confirmed in the field such as 
utility infrastructure and structures (visible in the field), pavement markings, grades, project limits, 
drainage conditions, etc.  Inconsistencies found during the field investigations (if any) will be corrected 
on the construction documents.  

 

4 )  1 0 0 %  Final Docum ents ( Bid Ready) : 
 

a) 100% Final Plans: sealed, 100% plans shall have all internal and external review comments by the Airport 
and FAA incorporated and addressed.  The plans will be prepared for the bidding phase. 
 

b) Final Contract Documents and Technical Specification: the final bid contract documents and technical 
specifications shall have all internal and external review comments by the Airport, City, and FAA 
incorporated and addressed.  The contract documents and technical specifications will be prepared for the 
bidding phase. 
 

c) 100% Quantities and Engineer’s OPCC: based on the final construction plans and technical specifications, 
the Engineer shall provide a final bidding schedule in the contract documents and an OPCC based on a 
unit price basis, reflecting recent bid tabulations from comparative projects, locations, materials, and 
quantities available at that time. 
 

d) Final Engineer’s Design Report: The Final Engineer’s Design Report shall provide all the design criteria 
and standards used in developing the construction documents (i.e. plans and technical specifications) and 
document the work and results of investigative efforts.  The final report shall also address any review 
comments received from all internal and external reviews, including the Airport, City, and FAA. 
 

e) Final Internal QA/ QC Project Review: in addition to the continual quality assurance reviews performed by 
senior practice staff, Dibble will perform additional quality control reviews prior to each submittal 
utilizing standardized checking processes by a Senior QC Manager.  Each subconsultant will be 
responsible for their own Quality Control, however, the Senior QC Manager will review all combined 
project documents for consistency amongst the design elements before each submittal as well. 

 

Bid Phase Services ( Lum p Sum )  
 

5 )  Bid Phase Services: 
 

a) Bid Phase Management and Administration: Provide all project management and coordination of the 
design team and the FNL and FAA during the 1-month bidding phase.   
 

b) Pre-Bid Meeting and Site Visit: Attend the pre-bid meeting and assist the Airport in conducting the 
meeting.  The Engineer, upon the direction of the Airport, will provide a brief overview of the project and 
contract components, identifying important elements within the documents that the Contractors should 
be particularly familiar with prior to submitting a bid.  The Engineer shall also assist the Airport in 
developing and submitting the pre-bid meeting minutes to all plan holders. 
 
The Engineer will also assist the Airport with the airfield site visit for all interested parties. 
 

c) Contractor Questions: The Engineer will coordinate, address, and appropriately respond to all contractor 
communications and questions during the bidding process.  Responses will be submitted through 
addenda as needed.  All communication will be in compliance with the Airport regulations and 
requirements. 
 

d) Bid Addenda: Pending contractors’ reviews, comments, and questions, the Engineer will assist the Airport 
in developing, issuing any necessary addenda, and notifying all planholders/ bidders. Addenda may 
include revision to construction documents (i.e. plans and technical specifications).  It is anticipated that 
a maximum of two (2) addenda will be issued for this project. 
 

79



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   Ta xiw a y s  B & D R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 7 of 7         

e) Bid Opening Meeting: The Engineer will attend the bid opening meeting to assist the Airport and City in 
reviewing and organizing the bidding documents from each contractor. 
 

f) Bid Tabulation and Letter of Recommendation of Award: The Engineer will evaluate each bid submitted 
for mathematical/ calculative errors and for comparative purposes against the Engineer’s OPCC and other 
bids submitted.  The Engineer will provide a bid summary letter stating all inconsistencies and results and 
a recommendation for the lowest responsible, responsive bidder.  Included with this effort will be the 
review and evaluation support of the other contract components such as the DBE subcontractor 
evaluation.  
 
The Engineer will further assist the Airport and City with review of the bidder’s compliance with the other 
required contract documents included in the bidding documents. 

 

6 )  Miscellaneous and Assum pt ions: 

a) Design Schedule: this proposal (design and bid phase only) is based on a 4-month design phase 
(December 2023 –  March 2024).  The bid phase is anticipated to occur March-April 2024 with a bid hold 
of 120-calendar days (notice of award required by end of August 2024).   

b) All plans are to be prepared in AutoCAD Civil 3D 2021.  

c) This proposal has been prepared to reflect effort to produce plans and specifications for a single bid 
package, (i.e. no alternates). 

d) The following number of trips are anticipated by the Project Manager for the Design Phase to cover all the 
on-site meetings identified in this scope: 

1. Design Phase –  3 Trips (two staff members each trip): 

i. Project Kick-Off Meeting  

ii. 30% Project Review Meeting and Site Visit 

iii. Final Site Visit and Plan Review 

2. Bid Phase –  2 Trips 

i. Pre-Bid Meeting 

ii. Bid Submittal 
 

7 )  Exclusions To This Scope of W ork: 

a) Construction Phase Services. 

b) Landscape, Irrigation, and Environmental Design Services. 

c) Structural Engineering, Mechanical, or Architectural Design Services. 

d) Revisions to the most current offsite watershed hydrology model(s). 

e) Drainage design. 

f) FEMA Letters of Map Revision. 

g) Permit-Ready Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP) (Contractor’s Responsibility). 

h) Single bid Phase effort (Bid Phase in early 2024) 

i) Attending or participation in a Safety Risk Management Meeting (SRM) or developing the SRM report. 

j) Utility Locating or potholing. 

k) FAA Modifications to Standards. 

l) FAA Title VI  and Community Participation Plan (FAA Form 5100-145). 

80



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

Ta
xi

la
ne

 N
or

th
ro

p

Ta
xi

la
ne

 S
te

ar
m

an

Ta
xi

la
ne

 G
ru

m
m

an

Runway 15-33

General Aviation Apron

Taxiway A

Ta
xi

w
ay

 B

Taxiway D

Ea
rh

ar
t R

d

Terminal Area

Commercial Apron

Legend:

Scale based on a 11"x17" sheet.

Northern Colorado Rgnl'
Taxiway B & D Rehabilitation
Project Exhibit
Date: 10.17.23

0' 150' 300'

N

Existing Facilities

Existing Property Line

Taxiway B & D Rehab

Notes:
· N/A

81



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

Ta
xi

la
ne

 N
or

th
ro

p

Ta
xi

la
ne

 S
te

ar
m

an

Ta
xi

la
ne

 G
ru

m
m

an

General Aviation Apron

Taxiway A

Ta
xi

w
ay

 B

Taxiway D

Ea
rh

ar
t R

d

Lindbergh Dr

Terminal Area

Commercial Apron

Legend:

Scale based on a 11"x17" sheet.

Northern Colorado Rgnl'
GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation
Project Exhibit
Date: 10.17.23

0' 200' 400'

N

Existing Facilities

Existing Property Line

GA Taxilanes Rehab

Notes:
· N/A

82



CIVIL
1 Contractor Quality Control 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00

2 Mobilization 1 LS $40,000.00 $40,000.00

3 SWPPP 1 LS $12,000.00 $12,000.00

4 Airfield Safety/ Security 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00

5 Sawcut AC Pavement (2‐inch Depth) 600 LF $10.00 $6,000.00

6 Mill AC Pavement (2‐inch Depth) 8,800 SY $20.00 $176,000.00

7 AC Pavement (2‐inch Depth) 1,000 TON $185.00 $185,000.00

8 Crack Seal 1,600 LF $20.00 $32,000.00

9 Tack Coat 8,800 SY $4.00 $35,200.00

10 Pavement Marking 1,500 SF $4.00 $6,000.00

$537,200.00

Electrical
11 Electrical 0 LS $0.00 $0.00

$0.00

$537,200.00

$190,000.00

$727,200.00

$175,000.00

$125,000.00

$0.00

$1,027,200.00

Airport Admin

Civil Subtotal

PROJECT TOTAL

Engineering

Construction Admin

Electrical Subtotal

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL

Misc & Other Unknown Items

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

PRE‐DESIGN COST ESTIMATE

NORTHERN CO REGIONAL AIRPORT
TAXIWAYS B & D Mill and Overlay

LINE 
No. DESCRIPTION

APPROX. 
QTY. UNIT

UNIT           
PRICE AMOUNT

10/24/2023 Page 1
83



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: Taxiway B & D Task Number: TBD
Design and Bid Phase Services Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: TBD

Date: 10/27/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

Dibble Subs

A. Design and Bid Phase Services
Fee Type

1 Dibble Engineering………………………………………………………………… $126,456.72 Lump Sum $126,456.72
2 NorthStar Engineering and Surveying (Survey)…..................... $9,800.00 Lump Sum $9,800.00
3 Terracon (Geotech)………………………………………………………………… $27,400.00 Lump Sum $27,400.00

TOTAL Dibble Subconsultants
Total…………………………………………………………….……………………… $163,656.72 $126,456.72 $37,200.00

Summary

84



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: Taxiway B & D Task Number: TBD
Design and Bid Phase Services Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: TBD

Date: CDOT Number: TBD

1 Principal $295.00

2 Senior Project Manager $225.01

3 Project Manager $205.02

4 Senior Engineer $205.02

5 QA/QC Manager $295.00

6 Project Engineer $172.01

7 Senior Designer $146.99

8 Admin Assistant $85.01

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES DIRECT COSTS

Item Cost
1 Submittal Printing (Dibble)……………………………………………………… $868.00
2 Travel (Dibble)………………………………………………………………………… $426.00
3 Meals (Dibble)………………………………………………………………………… $690.00

Sub‐Total for Direct Costs..................................................... $1,984.00

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES SUBCONSULTANTS

Firm Cost
1 NorthStar Engineering and Surveying (Survey)…........................ $9,800.00
2 Terracon (Geotech)………………………………………………………………… $27,400.00

Sub‐Total for Subconsultants: ............................................. $37,200.00

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES TOTAL FEE

TOTAL FEE........................................................................ $163,656.72

10/27/2023

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES SUMMARY

Classification Total
Hours

Billing
Rates

Total
Costs

8 $2,360.00

140 $31,501.40

0 $0.00

138 $28,292.76

16 $4,720.00

170 $29,241.70

164 $24,106.36

50 $4,250.50

Totals: 686 $124,472.72

Type of
Compensation
Direct Cost
Direct Cost

Lump Sum

Direct Cost

Type of
Compensation

Lump Sum

85



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: Taxiway B & D Task Number: TBD
Design and Bid Phase Services Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: TBD

Date: 10/27/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

SENIOR 
PROJECT PROJECT SENIOR  QUALITY PROJECT SENIOR ADMIN 

TASK PRINCIPAL MANAGER MANAGER ENGINEER MANAGER ENGINEER DESIGNER ASSISTANT

1   General Project Management and Pre‐Design Tasks

1a Project Management & Administration 40 10 50

1b Project Meetings 8 8 8 8 8 8 48

1c Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) Annual Goal and Program 2 8 10

1d Federal Grant Application 2 8 8 18

2   Design Start‐Up and Data Collection

2a Existing As‐Built Document Research and Review 4 12 16

2b Private and City Utility Coordination 4 6 6 16

2c Survey and Coordination and Review 4 6 10

2d Base Map Development and Coordination 8 40 48

2g Geotechnical Coordination and Review 8 8 16

3   30% Progress Submittal

3a 30% Design Plans 8 12 24 60 104

3b Draft Engineer's Design Report 4 24 8 4 40

3c FAA Categorical Exclusion (CATEX) 2 2 12 2 18

3d 30% Quantities and Engineer's OPCC 2 2 8 8 20

3e Draft Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 4 16 24 44

3f FAA FAARFIELD Existing Pavement Section Analysis 4 8 12

3g Draft Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) 4 32 4 40

3h 30% Internal QA/QC Project Review 8 8

3i 30% Plan‐In‐Hand Site Visit 4 4 8

4  100% Final Documents (Bid Ready)

4a 100% Final Plans 8 8 12 24 52

4b Final Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 6 8 8 22

4c 100% Quantities and Engineer's OPCC 2 2 6 6 16

4d Final Engineer's Design Report 4 8 4 16

4e Final Internal QA/QC Project Review 8 8

5  Bid Phase Services

5a Bid Phase Management and Administration 8 2 10

5b Pre‐Bid Meeting and Site Visit 2 2 4

5c Contractor Questions 2 4 6

5d Bid Addenda 4 4

5e Bid Opening Meeting 2 2

5f Bid Tabulation and Letter of Recommendation of Award 2 6 6 6 20

TOTAL HOURS BY CLASSIFICATION 8 140 0 138 16 170 164 50 686

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES ‐ ESTIMATED   MANHOURS

TOTAL HOURS
BY TASK

86



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering Project Number: TBD

Project: Taxiway B & D Task Number: TBD
Design and Bid Phase Services Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: TBD

Date: 10/27/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

1. PRINTING ( 30% and 100% 'Bid Set' Submittals)

a. 2 Submittals of 20 sheets = 20 Sheets @ $1.50 /sheet $120
  (2 Copies Full‐Size Bond Plans)

b. 2 Submittals 20 sheets = 20 Sheets @ $0.30 /sheet $48
  (4 Copies Scaled 1/2‐Size Plans)

c. 2 Plotting 20 sheets = 20 Sheets @ $1.50 /sheet $120

d. 2 Submittals for Spec Book @ 700 Sheets @ $0.10 /sheet $280
(2 copies @ 650 pages each) (double‐sided)

e. 2 Submittals for Eng. Report @ 300 Sheets @ $0.25 /sheet $300
(2 copies @ 300 pages each) (single‐sided)

2. Lodging

a. 0 Day 0 Staff $113.00 /Day $0
(2023 Federal Per Diem)

3. Travel

a. 5 Trips 130 miles $0.655 /mile $426
(2023 Federal Per Diem)

4. Meals

a. 5 Days 2 Staff $69.00 /Day $690
(2023 Federal Per Diem)

$1,984DESIGN AND BID PHASE TOTAL

DESIGN AND BID PHASE SERVICES DIRECT COSTS 

87



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17 015 14 
October 20, 2023 
 
Dibble Engineering 
2696 South Colorado Boulevard, Suite 585 
Denver, CO  80222 
 
Attn: Jared Bass, Senior Project Manager 
 
Via: email:  <jared.bass@dibblecorp.com> 
 
Re: Loveland FNL TW B and D Rehab Surveying Support services. 
 
We are pleased to present this “Work Authorization Agreement” for performing Professional 
Engineering and Surveying services with regard to the above referenced project.  Please find a 
list below of the services that are to be provided:  
 
TASK A: ASBUILT AREAS OF TAXIWAYS B AND D, THE LIMITS OF WHICH ARE 

DESCRIBED BELOW AND ON EXHIBIT PROVIDED BY DIBBLE INCLUDING: 
 

1. All survey work to be executed in compliance with FAA AC 150-5300-
16/17/18, documenting the survey methodology used for data collection 
and accuracies thereof (Pictures and Notes), along with use of existing 
Airport Geodetic Control, PACS and SACS.  The survey shall utilize a 
robotic total station, GPS, and differential leveling, collecting topographic 
features along the project areas based on NAD 83 Horizontal coordinates 
and NAVD 88 vertical datum.  Coordinates shall be area ground modified 
State Plane, Colorado South Zone.  The survey shall meet the vertical and 
horizontal tolerances of a Level 1A survey. 

2. Edge of asphalt in highlighted area 
3. Taxiway pavement 50’ grid, and centerline 
4. All electrical lighting, signage, and handholds/manholes 
5. All pavement markings 
6. Locations of soil samples/cores on runway pavement, if applicable 
7. Final deliverable:  preconstruction “Asbuilt” basemap in AutoCAD 2021 or 

later format. 
 

TOTAL TASK A: (lump sum) ...................................................................................... $8.200.00
  

 

111 E. 5th Street (719) 544-6823 
Pueblo, CO 81003 (719) 544-6825 Fax 

Michael L Cuppy, P.E., P.L.S. 

88



TASK B: Survey Control Sheet,  to include: 
 

1. Prepare Survey Control Sheet and update for 2 submittals per FAA criteria and 
specifications. 

2. Survey Control sheet to meet all requirements outline in Task A item 1. 
 

TOTAL TASK B: (lump sum) ..................................................................................... $1,600.00  

 
THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL (A formal Proposal for 
any of these services can and will be prepared at Client request): 
   

1. Asbuilt survey of any item not specifically listed above.  
 

General Conditions 
NorthStar Engineering and Surveying, Inc. (“NorthStar”) will perform the services listed above, 
subject to the conditions listed below. Our fees for providing these services will be as indicated 
above. Any additional services required to complete the project will be billed per our current 
Time and Materials rates. Any additional work required by NorthStar or by the Client to complete 
the project shall be acknowledged by the Client and made a portion of the Work Authorization 
Agreement (“Agreement”).  This Agreement may not be amended, nor any obligations 
hereunder waived, except by written agreement signed by all parties to the Agreement. 
 
NorthStar Services 
NorthStar will perform its services in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by other design professionals in the same geographic area as the 
underlying project.  
 
NorthStar does not have control over, and is not responsible for, construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures. 
 
Construction observation services are not a part of this Agreement unless specifically identified 
above. Construction staking or survey control staking is not construction observation, nor is it an 
inspection, ratification, or approval of prior work performed by others, including but not limited 
to, design and/or construction professionals.  
 
Estimates of cost are NorthStar’s opinions of probable cost, based on NorthStar’s experience 
and familiarity with the construction industry.  NorthStar cannot guarantee that bids or final 
construction costs will not vary from NorthStar’s estimate or opinion. 
 
Payment    
Any permit fees or title company fees are the responsibility of the client and are not included in 
this Agreement. Also, all direct reimbursable expenses incurred in performance of this project 
will be invoiced at cost plus ten percent. 
 
NorthStar’s policy is to invoice the address listed above by the 1st day of every month. Payment 
is due on receipt of invoice and to be received no later than the 25th day of that month. Client 
shall advise if a different invoice date is required.  
 

89



The Client agrees that the balance stated on the invoice from NorthStar to Client is correct, 
conclusive, and binding on the Client, unless the Client notifies NorthStar of objections or 
inaccuracies within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.  
 
Payment not received by NorthStar by the 25th day of the month will cause all work to stop on 
the project, and an assessment of interest at the rate of two percent monthly.  
 
Client agrees to pay NorthStar’s costs of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fees, for any 
amounts that remain unpaid 90 days after billing.  
 
In the event the Client wishes to terminate the services of NorthStar, the Client shall pay 
NorthStar Time and Materials rates up to the date of termination.  
 
Limitation of Liability/Damages 
NorthStar’s total liability to Client, for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages 
arising out of this Agreement shall not exceed the amount of the fee paid by Client to NorthStar.  
NorthStar’s tender of payment in this amount shall constitute a fulfillment and complete 
satisfaction of any and all of NorthStar’s liabilities, obligations, representations or warranties 
related to or arising from this Agreement.  
 
NorthStar and Client mutually agree to waive all claims of consequential damages arising from 
claims, disputes, or other matters related to this Agreement.   
 
Statute of Limitations 
The statute of limitations for any claims arising from NorthStar’s work shall begin to run as of the 
date that NorthStar submits an invoice for 100% of the fee listed above. 
 
Indemnity 
The Client shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless NorthStar and its personnel from and 
against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of NorthStar’s work, provided that any 
such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in whole or in part by the negligent act or 
omission of the Client, or anyone directly or indirectly retained or employed by the Client (except 
NorthStar).  This indemnification includes, but is not limited to, claims or losses due to the 
presence of hazardous materials.  This indemnification includes, but is not limited to, claims 
alleged to have arisen from the contractor’s performance or the alleged failure of the 
contractor’s work to conform to the design intent and the contract or project documents. 
 
Instruments of Service 
NorthStar provides services, the scope of which are set forth above, not a product.  Sketches, 
designs, computations, survey notes, reports, specifications, and other original documents of 
any sort are instruments of that service; they are the written depiction of NorthStar’s intellectual 
process. NorthStar retains sole and exclusive ownership of these documents, unless the 
documents are required to be filed for public record by a governmental agency having proper 
jurisdiction.  
 
Any use or reuse of original or altered physical documents or electronic files or CADD 
adaptation of NorthStar plans or documents for any use other than the specific purpose 
intended by NorthStar, without the prior written permission of NorthStar, is prohibited.  The 
Client agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless NorthStar from any and all claims, suits, 

90



or liability arising from the unauthorized use of NorthStar’s work by person or entities not party 
to this Agreement.  
 
Additional Provisions 
Client agrees that NorthStar shall be entitled to recover all costs incurred in enforcing any 
provision of this Agreement, including court costs and attorney’s fees.   
 
 
This Agreement is not intended to be, and shall be construed to be, intended for the benefit of 
any person or entity that is not a signatory party to this Agreement.  No person or entity, other 
than signatory parties, will have any right or cause of action under this Agreement.  
  
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. Venue for any litigation 
arising from this Agreement shall be in the Pueblo County District Court. 
 
 
With the exception of actions by NorthStar to recover amounts due and owing, all other disputes 
or claims arising from this Agreement shall be submitted first to non-binding mediation, and then 
to binding arbitration if mediation is unsuccessful.  Arbitration shall be conducted by a single 
arbitrator, mutually chosen by the parties.  If the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, a party 
seeking enforcement of this arbitration agreement may request, as part of a petition for 
enforcement, that a Pueblo County District Court judge appoint an arbitrator.   
 
If any clause or provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected 
thereby and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Please review this Work Authorization Agreement carefully, for it represents a binding contract 
when signed.  If this Agreement is acceptable, please have a duly authorized representative 
sign on the space provided below and return the original to us as notice of authorization to 
proceed.  We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. 
 
NorthStar Engineering and Surveying, Inc. 
 

 
 
Michael L. Cuppy, P.E., P.L.S. 
President/Principal 
 
Accepted By: _____________________________ 
 
Title: ___________________________________ 
Date: ________________________________ 
 
 
 

91



111 East 5th 

Street p 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF STANDARD TIME AND MATERIAL RATES 
(January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2024) 

 

OFFICE ENGINEERING AND PLANNING:  
Principal .............................................................................................. $180.00/hr.  
Registered Professional Engineer (Project Manager) ......................... $150.00/hr.  
Licensed Land Surveyor (Project Manager). ...................................... $140.00/hr.  
Project Engineer (EI)/Surveyor (SI) ................................................... $125.00/hr.  
Engineer/Planner ................................................................................. $110.00/hr.  
Designer / GIS .................................................................................... $ 100.00/hr.  
AutoCAD Technician ......................................................................... $ 90.00/hr.  
Accounting .......................................................................................... $ 70.00/hr.  
Clerical ................................................................................................ $ 50.00/hr.  
Messenger ........................................................................................... $ 35.00/hr.  

FIELD ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING:  
3-Man Survey Crew ............................................................................ $175.00/hr.  

Overtime Rate ........................................................................ $200.00/hr.  
2-Man Survey Crew ............................................................................ $160.00/hr.  

Overtime Rate ........................................................................ $180.00/hr.  
1-Man Survey Crew ............................................................................ $125.00/hr.  

Overtime Rate ........................................................................ $145.00/hr.  
Construction Manager ......................................................................... $130.00/hr.  
Construction Inspector ........................................................................ $115.00/hr.  
Survey Crew – Out of Town Drive Time ........................................... $120.00/hr.  
GPS Equipment: Standard Survey Crew Rate Plus ............................ $ 50.00/hr.  

REIMBURSABLE RATES:  
Blueline Prints ...................................................................................... $ 0.70/sq.ft.  
Mylar Prints ......................................................................................... $ 2.85/sq.ft.  
Color Bond ........................................................................................... $ 2.20/sq.ft.  
Xerox Copies ....................................................................................... $ 0.20/ea.  
Color Copies (8.5x11) .......................................................................... $ 2.25/ea.  
Large Xerox Copies ............................................................................. $ 2.20/ea.  

SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES AND SPECIAL EQUIPMENT:  
Mileage – Trucks and Autos ................................................................ $ 0.60/mile  
Direct Costs plus 15%  

 

NOTE: In the event Principals are involved for an extended period on a project, rates charged 
will be commensurate with work performed. 

 

Michael L. Cuppy, P.E., P.L.S. 

(719) 544-6823 

Fax (719) 544-6825 

92



1901 Sharp Point  Dr ive, Suite C

Fort  Collins, Colorado 80525

P ( 970)  484-0359

F (970)  484-0454

Ter ra con.com

Facilities  |  Environmental  | Geotechnical | Materials

Pro p o sa l Co v e r Pa g e

Oct ober 27, 2023

Dibble & Associat es Consult ing Engineers,  I nc.

2696 South Colorado Bou levard, Suit e 585

Denver , Colorado 80222

At tn : Mr.  Jared Bass,  P.E.

P: ( 303)  872-5756

E: j ared.bass@dibblecorp.com

RE: Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services

Northern Colorado Regional Airport  Taxiway B & D Rehabilit at ion

4900 Earhart  Road

Loveland,  Colorado

Terracon Proposal No. P20235064

Dear  Mr . Bass:

We appreciate the opportunit y  to subm it  this proposal to Dibble & Associates Consult ing

Engineers,  I nc. ( Dibble)  t o provide Geot echnical Engineering services for the project

referenced above. The fol lowing are exhibit s to this proposal.

Exhibit  A Project  Underst anding

Exhibit  B Scope of Services

Exhibit  C Com pensat ion  and Project  Schedule

Exhibit  D Site Locat ion and Nearby Geot echnical Dat a

Exhibit  E Ant icipated Explorat ion Plan

Our  est im at ed base fee to per form  the Scope of Services descr ibed in  this proposal is

$27,400. Fees associat ed w ith private ut i lit y  locat ing and pavem ent  cor ing services are

included in our  est im ated base fee provided above. However ,  t hey  will be invoiced at

cost  plus 15 percent  so our proposed fee m ay change slight ly . Exhibit  C includes det ails

of our fees and considerat ion of  addit ional serv ices as well as a general breakdown of

our ant icipated schedule.

93



94



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Exhibit  A –  Project  Understanding

Our  Scope of  Services is based on our understanding of  the project  as descr ibed by

Dibble and the ant icipat ed condit ions as described below. We have not  v isited the

project  site to confirm  the inform at ion prov ided.  Aspect s of the project ,  undefined or

assum ed, are highlight ed as shown below. We request  Dibble and/ or  the design t eam

ver ify  all inform at ion pr ior  to our  ini t iat ion of f ield explorat ion act iv it ies.

Planned Const ruct ion

I t em Descr ipt ion

I n form at ion

Provided

The proj ect  inform at ion descr ibed below is based on t he

following:

■ Em ailed request  for  a proposal received f rom  Dibble on

Oct ober 17, 2023 wit h a det ailed scope of  work

■ FNL TW B&D Rehab – Proj ect  Exhibit .pdf

Proje ct

Descr ipt ion

Taxiways B and D at  the Northern Colorado ( NoCo)  Regional

Airport  are const ruct ed of asphalt  pavem ent . The proj ect

includes the planned rehabil it at ion of t he t wo tax iways by m i ll

and overlay . Approx im at ely  925 feet  of  Taxiway B and 1,150

feet  of  Tax iway D are planned for  rehabilit at ion.  We underst and

the m il l and over lay will  be non-st ructural and no changes are

planned t o t he overall pavem ent  t hicknesses. We also

underst and no pavem ent  condit ion assessm ent  is required for

th is work . A pavem ent  condit ion assessm ent  of  airport

pavem ent s was per form ed in 2022 by the Colorado Departm ent

of Transpor tat ion ( CDOT) . The planned m ill and over lay

operat ion is based on the result s of  CDOT’s assessm ent .

We do not  ant icipate any other  im provem ent s ( i .e. ,  st ruct ures,

ut il it ies, et c. )  are planned as part  of  t h is project .

Grading/ Slopes

Due to t he planned m ethod of rehabil it at ion, we ant icipat e

m inor cut s and fil ls on the order of 1 foot  or  less ( if  any)  will be

required to ach ieve proposed grades for th is project .

95



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

I t em Descr ipt ion

Pa vem ent s

New t axiway pavem ent  planned as par t  of  this project  will

consist  of f lexible asphalt  pavem ent  via m ill and over lay of

exist ing pavem ent .  We assum e Dibble will  prov ide the est im at ed

aircraft  f leet  m ix ( including the type and weight  of each aircraft

and growth rat es)  to be used in t he FAARFI ELD pavem ent

analysis of  the Pavem ent  Classif icat ion Rat ing ( PCR)  of  the

exist ing t axiway pavem ent . No addit ional pavem ent  th ickness

design services were request ed at  th is t im e.

Funding Source
We underst and the funding for th is project  will com e f rom

Federal Aviat ion Adm inist rat ion (FAA)  m oneys.

Design  Schedule

We underst and author izat ion to per form  the Geot echnical

Engineer ing Serv ices presented in this proposal will  very likely

be prov ided in Decem ber 2023.

Sit e Locat ion and Ant icipat ed Condit ions

I t em Descr ipt ion

Project  Locat ion

I n form at ion

The project is located at Northern Colorado ( NoCo)  Regional

Airport  at  4900 Earhart  Road in Loveland, Colorado.  Taxiways B

and D are locat ed sout h of t he exist ing airport  term inal area and

east  of  Runway 15-33.

Lat i tude/ Longitude (approxim at e) :  40.4458°  N, 105.0064°  W

( see Exhibit  D)

Exist ing

I m provem ents

The sit e is an exist ing airpor t  with an asphalt -sur faced runway,

t axiways, and t axiway connectors. The sit e also includes

features t ypical of airpor t s, such as l ighted signage, in field

drainage areas, parked aircraf t , hangar st ructures, and

associat ed support  vehicles, such as fuel t rucks, t ugs, and

luggage t ransport s.

Current  Ground

Cover

The exist ing runway, shoulders,  t ax iways, and t axiway

connect ors are sur faced wit h asphalt . The infield drainage areas

are veget at ed w it h grass.

Exist ing

Topogra phy

Based on publicly  available USGS topographic m aps, ground

sur face elevat ions along Taxiway  B gradually  slope down f rom

the east  towards the west  and along Taxiway D gradually slope

down from  the south towards the nor th.

Site  Access
We expect  the sit e,  and all explorat ion locat ions, are accessible

wit h our  t ruck-m ount ed dr il ling equipm ent  and support  vehicles.

96



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

I t em Descr ipt ion

Ex pected

Subsurface

Condit ions

Our  experience near  the v icinit y of  the proposed project and

review of geologic m aps indicat e subsur face condit ions wil l likely

consist  of m edium  to high plast icit y  clay soi ls wit h low t o high

swell pot ent ial over  clayst one bedrock . Bedrock  is ant icipated at

dept hs of  about  11 to 17 feet  below ex ist ing grades.

Groundwat er  levels are ant icipat ed to be about  10 to 20 feet

below ex ist ing grades.

Previous

Geot echnica l

St udies

Previously , Terracon has prepared m ult iple Geot echnical

Engineering Report s for  t he dif ferent  airpor t  im provem ent

project s wit hin the past  25+  years.  Dat a from  these prev ious

studies were considered dur ing preparat ion of  th is proposal.

97



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Exhibit  B -  Scope of Services

Our  proposed Scope of  Services consists of  f ield explorat ion, laboratory  t est ing, and

engineering/ project  delivery . These services are descr ibed in t he following sect ions.

Field Explorat ion

Based on input  provided by Dibble, and our exper ience with  sim i lar  projects in  the

v icinit y  of the project  si te,  we propose the fol lowing f ield explorat ion program  which is

ant icipat ed t o be com plet ed with 1 to 1½  days of  on-sit e act ivit ies.

N um ber  of

Bor ings
Pla nned Bor ing Depth  ( fee t )

1
Planned Loca t ion

2

2
3 10 Along Exist ing Tax iway B

4
3 10 Along Exist ing Tax iway D

1. I ndicat es dept h below ground surface at  the t im e of  our  f ield explorat ion.

Although not  ant icipat ed based on the geology in the v icinit y  of the project  si te,

borings would be term inat ed at  shallower depths if refusal is encount ered.

2. The planned boring locat ions are shown on the at t ached Ant icipa ted

Explor at ion Plan .

3 . Terracon will  ret ain t he services of a subcont ractor  to core t hrough the exist ing

t axiway pavem ent  at  the planned 6 bor ing locat ions with  a por t able cor ing

m achine to prov ide access to com plete the bor ings into the subgrade below t he

exist ing pavem ent .

Pre - Ex plora t ion  Safe t y  Mee t ing a nd Site  Visit : We ant icipate Dibble and t he airport

wil l require all f ield explorat ion crew m em bers including dr il l crew m em bers, f ield

engineers, and cor ing subcont ractor  to at tend a pre- explorat ion m eet ing to discuss

safety and planned operat ions for  the day . We ant icipate th is m eet ing is planned to be

conducted the day  when field operat ions are scheduled. We have included 1 hour  in  our

budget  for  this m eet ing.

I n addit ion to the pre-explorat ion safety m eet ing and prior  to m obil izing our  dr il ling

equipm ent  to the project  sit e,  we also ant icipat e a Ter racon represent at ive wil l v isit  t he

sit e one t im e to meet  with represent at ives of  Dibble and t he airpor t  ( as needed)  to

coordinate our f ield work ,  stake/ m ark bor ing locat ions, assess dril l  r ig access/ regress to

and from  the bor ing locat ions,  and conf irm  public and privat e ut i li t ies have been

appropriat ely  m arked or cleared. I f condit ions ident ified during our  pre-m obil izat ion si te

v isit  t hat  could negat ively im pact  the f ield explorat ion, relat ive to pr ivat e ut i lit ies and/ or

equipm ent  access, we wil l cont act  you to discuss our concerns and opt ions, and

addit ional fees m ay apply .  Any v isit s to the site beyond 1 will  require addit ional fees.

98



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Site  Access: Based on available aerial im agery ,  we expect  the planned boring locat ions

are accessible to our  t ruck-m ount ed dr illing equipm ent  and no sit e clear ing, t ree or

shrub clearing, creat ing (or  regrading)  any  access roads or  dr i l l pads,  repair  of landscape

dam age, or  locat ion of underground ut i lit ies beyond cont act ing Colorado 811 is required.

Terracon m ust  be grant ed access to the site by the property owner . Without  inform at ion

to the cont rary ,  we consider  accept ance of this proposal as author izat ion to access the

property for  conduct ing f ield explorat ion in  accordance with the Scope of Serv ices. Our

proposed fees do not  include t im e to negot iate and coordinate access with  landowners or

t enant s. Ter racon wil l conduct  field serv ices dur ing norm al business hours ( Monday

through Fr iday bet ween 7: 00 am  and 5: 00 pm ) .  I f  our  explorat ion m ust  t ake place over

a weekend or  at  night , please cont act  us so we can adjust  our  schedule and fee.

Bor ing La yout  and Elevat ions: We will use handheld GPS equipm ent  t o locate bor ings

wit h an est im ated hor izont al accuracy of  + / -20 feet .  Field m easurem ents from  exist ing

sit e feat ures m ay be ut i lized. I f available,  approxim at e ground surface elevat ions at  the

bor ing locat ions wil l be obt ained by interpolat ion from  a sit e specif ic,  surveyed

topographic m ap. We can alternat ively coordinat e with your Project  Surveyor to include

locat ions and sur face elevat ions in  project  in form at ion, if request ed.

Subsurface  Explora t ion  Procedures: Aft er cor ing th rough the exist ing pavem ent

sect ion wit h a port able cor ing m achine operated by  t rained personnel, we wil l  advance

bor ings with  a t ruck-m ount ed dr ill  r ig using cont inuous- fl ight  augers ( solid- stem  and/ or

hollow-st em ,  as necessary , depending on subsurface condit ions) . Four sam ples wil l be

obt ained in each bor ing. Soil sam pling is t ypically  per form ed using m odif ied California

barrel and split - barrel sam pling procedures. We will also obt ain  bulk  sam ples of

subsurface m at er ials f rom  auger  cut t ings for  California Bearing Rat io ( CBR) test ing.  The

split - bar rel sam plers are driven in accordance wit h t he st andard penet rat ion test  (SPT) .

For the m odif ied Californ ia bar rel sam pling procedure, a 2½ - inch out er  diam et er ,  split -

bar rel sam pling spoon is used for  sam pling. Modified Cali fornia bar rel sam pling

procedures are sim ilar  t o st andard split - barrel sam pling procedures;  however , blow

count s are t ypically  recorded for  6- inch int ervals for  a t ot al of 12 inches of penet rat ion .

The sam ples will be placed in  appropr iat e containers, t aken to our  soil laboratory  for

t est ing, and classif ied by a Geotechnical Engineer .

I n addit ion, we will observe and record groundwat er  levels dur ing dr il ling operat ions.

Due to t he planned locat ions of  the bor ings in  exist ing t axiways, no provisions have been

m ade to obtain delayed groundwater m easurem ent s.

Our  proposed fee assum es a dril l  r ig can advance bor ings to the proposed dept hs using

the m ethods described previously .  I f dif f icu lt  dr ill ing condit ions are encount ered, we wil l

not ify Dibble as soon as it  appears costs will  exceed our proposed fee t o discuss other

dr illing alt ernat ives.

99



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Our  explorat ion t eam  will prepare field bor ing logs as par t  of st andard dril l ing operat ions

including sam pling depths, penet rat ion dist ances, and ot her  relevant  sam pling

in form at ion . Field logs include v isual classif icat ions of  m at er ials observed dur ing dr ill ing

and our  int erpretat ion of subsur face condit ions between sam ples.

One Dynamic Cone Penet rom et er  ( DCP)  t est  wil l be per form ed at  each bor ing locat ion

using a Kessler Dual- Mass or  Single- Mass DCP in general accordance wit h ASTM D6951

Standard Test  m ethod for Use of t he Dynam ic Cone Penet rom et er  in  Shallow Pavem ent

Applicat ions. The resu lt s of t he DCP test ing will  be used to supplem ent  our

recom m endat ions for  the subgrade support  charact er ist ics of the t axiway pavem ents.

Proper t y D ist urbance : Ter racon will  t ake reasonable effort s to reduce dam age to the

property.  However ,  it  should be understood that  in  the norm al course of our  work som e

disturbance could occur including rut t ing of t he ground surface and dam age to

landscaping, and/ or pavem ents. Rut t ing on  the order of 3 to 4  inches or  m ore m ay be

possible under dry  sur face condit ions.  Our  dr i l l r igs wil l advance an approx im at ely 4 to

8- inch diam eter  ver t ical borehole at  the t est  locat ions.

We will backfill  bor ings with  cem ent it ious f lowable backfi ll upon com plet ion . Pavem ents

w il l be pat ched with non- shr ink  grout  dyed black . Patched concret e wil l likely not  ent irely

m at ch the ex ist ing pavem ent  color or t exture. Our  services do not  include repair  of  the

sit e beyond back fil ling our  boreholes and pat ching exist ing pavem ent s/ surfaces. Excess

auger  cut t ings wil l be placed in st eel drum s and disposed of off - sit e.

Safet y

The geotechnical explorat ion is proposed to be conduct ed on the airside of the fence at

an  act ive airpor t  dur ing the author ized work  hours of about  7  am  t o 5  pm . We have

assum ed coordinat ion ef for t s with the airpor t  and the FAA will be conducted by Dibble to

provide t he explorat ion crews safe access to the taxiways. Ter racon wil l  abide by  all

safety  and regulatory requirem ent s prior  to and dur ing the explorat ion. We assum e

Terracon will  be not if ied of any requirem ent s wit h reasonable not ice to accom m odat e the

requirem ent s in t he explorat ion act iv it ies.  Al l dr illing r igs and support  vehicles will  be

equipped w ith flashing yellow beacons.  The m ast  of t he dr i l l r ig will  be af fixed wit h an

orange and whit e checkered flag t o aler t  approaching aircraft . We assum e a specif ic

m axim um  dr il l r ig m ast  height  is not  required. Terracon and our  subcont ractors w ill  t ake

reasonable m easures to prevent  the int roduct ion  of  foreign obj ect  debr is (FOD)  which

m ay dam age aircraft .

Terracon is not  aware of environm ent al concerns at  th is project  sit e that  would creat e

health  or  safety hazards associated with  our  explorat ion program ;  thus, our  Scope

considers standard OSHA Level D Personal Prot ect ion Equipm ent  ( PPE)  appropriat e. Our

Scope of Serv ices does not  include environm ent al sit e assessm ent  services, but

100



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

ident if icat ion of unusual or  unnatural m ater ials observed while dr illing wil l be noted on

our logs and discussed in our  repor t .

Explorat ion  effor t s require bor ings into the subsur face;  therefore, Terracon will com ply

wit h local regulat ions to request  a ut il i t y  locat ion  service through Colorado 811 ( CO811) .

We will consult  wit h the owner/ client  regarding pot ent ial ut il it ies or  ot her  unm arked

underground hazards. Based upon t he result s of t his consu lt at ion, we will consider  the

need for alternat ive subsur face explorat ion m ethods as t he safety  of  our field crew is a

pr ior it y .

Due to t he presence of  exist ing st ructures near t he planned bor ing locat ions, Terracon

wil l h ire a pr ivat e u t ili t y  locat ing com pany to locate pr ivat e u t il it ies in  the v icinit y  of  the

proposed bor ings. However,  we not e that  the pr ivat e ut il it y  com pany cannot  locat e

pr ivat e ut il it ies that  do not  have t racer  wires. Ut ili t ies that  m ay not  include t racer wires

include ut il i t ies ut i lizing PVC pipe, such as storm  sewers, sanit ary  sewers, et c. I t  wil l be

the responsibilit y of t he owner t o locat e these ut ilit ies and provide t he locat ions to

Terracon. Terracon will not  be responsible for  dam age to ut i lit ies that  Colorado 811 and

the pr ivate ut ilit y  com pany could not  locate.

The detect ion of underground ut i lit ies is dependent  upon t he com posit ion  and

const ruct ion of the ut ilit y  line;  som e ut ili t ies are com prised of non-elect r ically  conduct ive

m at er ials and m ay not  be readily  detect ed. The use of  a pr ivate ut i l it y  locat e service

would not  rel ieve the landowner / client  of  their responsibi lit ies in  ident ify ing pr ivat e

underground ut i lit ies.

Laborat ory Test ing

The project  engineer / geologist  w ill  rev iew field dat a and assign laborat ory t ests t o

underst and the engineering proper t ies of  var ious soil and rock ( if any )  st rat a. Exact

t ypes and num ber of  t ests cannot  be defined unt il com plet ion of  f ieldwork,  but  we

ant icipat e the following laboratory test ing m ay be perform ed:

■ Visual classif icat ion

■ Wat er  cont ent

■ Dry  unit  weight

■ At terberg lim it s

■ Grain  size analysis

■ One-dim ensional swell

■ Unconfined com pressive st rength

■ Chem ical analyses – pH, su lfat es,  chlor ide ion , sulfide ion , redox , tot al salt s, and

elect r ical resist iv it y

101



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

■ Moisture-densit y  relat ionship (m odif ied Proctor)

■ California Bearing Rat io ( CBR;  3 point )

Our  laboratory test ing program  includes examinat ion of soil sam ples and asphalt  cores

by  an engineer .  Based on the result s of our  f ield and laboratory program s, we w ill

describe and classify soil  sam ples in accordance with t he Un if ied Soil  Classificat ion

System (USCS) .

I f bedrock  sam ples are obt ained, rock classificat ion will be conduct ed using locally

accepted pract ices for  engineering purposes.

Soil and rock ( if  any)  sam ples obt ained during our  f ieldwork  wil l  be disposed of af ter

laboratory test ing is com plet e unless a specif ic request  is m ade to t em porar ily  store the

sam ples for  a longer  period.

Engineer ing and Project  Delivery

The result s of our  f ield and laboratory  program s will  be evaluat ed,  and a geot echnical

engineering report  will be prepared under  t he superv ision of a licensed professional

engineer.  The geot echnical engineer ing report  wil l provide the following:

■ Site and proj ect  descript ions

■ Boring logs wit h field and laboratory  dat a

■ Asphalt  core phot ographs

■ DCP test  result s

■ St rat if icat ion based on v isual soil  ( and rock , i f any)  classif icat ion

■ Groundwat er  levels observed dur ing and aft er the com plet ion of  dr i lling

■ Sit e Locat ion  and Explorat ion  Plans

■ Subsurface explorat ion  procedures

■ Descr ipt ion  of  subsurface condit ions

■ Recom m endat ions regarding t he Pavem ent  Classif icat ion Rat ing ( PCR)  as

determ ined in  general accordance with the procedures of  AC 150/ 5335-5D using

t he FAARFI ELD pavem ent  soft ware

■ Recom m endat ions regarding pavem ent  m ater ials specif icat ions ( as needed)

I n addit ion to an em ailed report , your project  w il l  also be delivered using our Client

Por t a l.  Upon in it iat ion ,  we provide you and your design t eam  the necessary  link and

password to access the website ( if  not  prev iously  regist ered) .  Each project  includes a

calendar t o t rack the schedule, an int eract ive sit e m ap, a l ist ing of t eam  m em bers,

access t o the project  docum ents as t hey are uploaded to the sit e,  and a collaborat ion

port al. We welcom e the opportuni t y  to have project  k ickoff conversat ions w ith the t eam

102



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

to discuss key elem ents of  the project  and dem onst rat e feat ures of t he port al .  The

t ypical delivery  process includes the following:

■ Project  Planning –  Proposal inform at ion , schedule and ant icipat ed explorat ion plan

■ Site Charact er izat ion  – Findings of the sit e explorat ion and laboratory result s

■ Geot echnical Engineer ing Report

When our  serv ices are com plet ed, we wil l upload a print able version of our com plet ed

Geot echnical Engineering repor t ,  including the professional engineer ’s seal and

signature, which docum ents our  serv ices. Previous subm it t als, collaborat ion, and the

report  are m aint ained in our  syst em . This allows futu re reference and int egrat ion into

subsequent  aspect s of  our services as t he project  goes t hrough final design and

const ruct ion.

Addit ional Serv ices

I n addit ion to the serv ices noted above, the following are of ten associat ed wit h

geot echnical engineering services. Fees for serv ices not ed above do not  include t he

following:

Review  of  Pla ns and Specif ica t ions:  Our  geot echnical report  and associat ed verbal

and writ t en com m unicat ions wil l be used by  others in the design t eam to develop plans

and speci ficat ions for  const ruct ion. Review of project  plans and specif icat ions is a vit al

par t  of our geot echnical engineer ing serv ices.  This consist s of  rev iew of  proj ect  plans

and specif icat ions related to sit e preparat ion and pavem ent  const ruct ion. Our review w ill

include a wr it t en st at em ent  conveying our opinions relat ing t o the plans and

specif icat ions’ consist ency  w it h  our geot echnical engineering recom m endat ions.

Observa t ion  and Test ing of  Pert inent  Const ruct ion  M at er ia ls:  Developm ent  of  our

geotechn ical engineer ing recom m endat ions and report  rel ies on an int erpretat ion of soil

condit ions. Our  assessm ent  is based on widely spaced explorat ion locat ions and t he

assum pt ion that  const ruct ion  m ethods will be per form ed in a m anner suff icient  to m eet

our expect at ions and consist ent  with  recom m endat ions m ade at  the t im e the

geotechnical engineer ing repor t  is issued. We should be retained t o conduct  const ruct ion

observat ions,  and per form / docum ent  associated m at er ials t est ing, for  sit e preparat ion

and pavem ent  const ruct ion. These services allow a m ore com prehensive underst anding

of subsurface condit ions and necessary  docum ent at ion of const ruct ion to confirm  and/ or

m odify  ( when necessary )  the assum pt ions and recom m endat ions m ade by our

engineers.

Environm ent a l Assessm ent s: Our Scope for  this project  does not  include, either

specif ically  or  by im plicat ion, an environm ental assessm ent  of the sit e int ended to

ident ify  or  quant ify pot ent ial sit e cont am inant s.  I f  t he client / owner is concerned about

103



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

t he potent ial for  such condit ions, an environm ent al site assessm ent  should be

conducted. We can provide a proposal for  an environm ent al assessm ent , if  desired.

104



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Exhibit  C -  Com pensat ion and Project  Schedule

Com pensat ion

Based upon our  underst anding of  the sit e, t he project  as sum m arized in Exhibit  A, and

our planned Scope of  Services descr ibed in Exhibit  B, our  base fee is shown in  the

following t able:

Task Lum p Sum  Fee
2

Project  Managem ent $2,575

Subsurface Explorat ion
1 $10,435

Laborat ory Test ing $5,320

Analysis and Draft Repor t  Preparat ion $4,220

Final Report  and Analysis Preparat ion $1,400

Subtot a l: Project  Managem ent ,  Subsurface Explorat ion ,

Laborat ory Test ing, Geotechnical Analysis and Report ing
$23,950

Pr ivat e Ut i lit y  Locat ing

( est im at ed fee for  4  hours at  $250/ hour  +  15 percent )
3 $1,150

Pavem ent  Cor ing Serv ices

( est im at ed fee for  10 hours at  $200/ hour +  15 percent )
3 $2,300

Tota l Est im ated Fees $27,400

1. The lum p sum  fee considers one dr ill  r ig m obilizat ion  and no unexpected onsit e

delays. I f  addit ional dr il l r ig m obilizat ions are required, an addit ional fee of

$1,250 would be invoiced. A dril l  crew plus drill  r ig and field engineer  st andby

rat e of  $500 per hour  would be invoiced for  unexpect ed delays.

2. Proposed fees not ed above are ef fect ive for  90 days f rom  the dat e of the

proposal.  We underst and author izat ion for  this work is ant icipated to be

provided in Decem ber  2023.

3. Pr ivat e ut i lit y  locat ing and pavem ent  cor ing serv ice fees wil l be invoiced at  cost

plus 15 percent .

Aft er  subm it t al of t he final geot echnical engineer ing report ,  any  request s for  subsequent

revisions t o the repor t  or  updat es to the recom m endat ions or pavem ent  analysis will  be

considered addit ional consu lt at ion serv ices. Addit ional consultat ion  will  be invoiced using

cur rent  hourly  bill ing rat es of  the applicable Ter racon personnel.

105



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Addit ional serv ices not  par t  of t he est im at ed base fee include the following:

Addit iona l Serv ices ( see  Exh ibit  B)
Proposed

Fee

I n it ia l for

Author iza t ion

Plans and Specificat ions Review (Per  Set ) TBD
1

Const ruct ion  Mat erials Test ing Services TBD
2

Environm ent al Assessm ent  Services TBD
3

1. To Be Determined – A separate proposal for review of project plans and specificat ions

can be provided upon request .

2. To Be Determined – A separate proposal for the observat ion and test ing of pert inent

construct ion materials can be provided upon complet ion of our plans and

specificat ions review.

3. To Be Determined – A separate proposal for environmental assessment services can

be provided upon request .

Our  Scope of  Services does not  include services associat ed wit h sit e clearing,  wet

ground condit ions, t ree or  shrub clear ing, or repair  of / dam age t o exist ing landscape, or

pavem ent s. I f  such services are desired by t he owner / client , we should be not if ied so we

can adjust  our  Scope of  Services.

Unless inst ructed otherwise, we will  subm it  our  invoice(s)  to the address shown at  the

beginning of  this proposal.  I f  condit ions are encount ered that  require Scope of Serv ices

revisions and/ or  result  in  higher fees,  we wil l  cont act  you for  approval,  pr ior  to init iat ing

serv ices. A supplem ent al proposal st at ing the m odified Scope of Services as well as i t s

ef fect  on our  fee wil l be prepared. We will  not  proceed without  your aut hor izat ion.

Project  Schedule

We developed a schedule to com plet e the Scope of Services based upon our  exist ing

availabilit y and underst anding of  your project  schedule. However , our  schedule does not

account  for  delays in  f ield explorat ion beyond our cont rol,  such as weat her condit ions,

delays result ing from  ut il it y  clearance, or  lack of perm ission to access the bor ing

locat ions. I n  the event  the schedule provided is inconsist ent  with  your  needs, please

cont act  us so we m ay consider  alt ernat ives.

Delive ry on  Client  Por ta l Schedule
1 , 2

Kickoff Call with Client About 2 to 3 days aft er  not ice to proceed ( NTP)

Site Layout About  4  t o 6 days aft er NTP

106



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Delive ry on  Client  Por ta l Schedule
1 , 2

Public Ut i lit y  Locat es Cleared About 8 to 12 days af ter NTP

Field Explorat ion Com plet ed About  15 to 20 days aft er  NTP
3

Laborat ory Test ing Com pleted
About 10 to 12 days aft er  com plet ion of  the field

program

Geot echnical Engineer ing Report
About 15 to 20 days aft er  com plet ion of  f ield

program
3

1. Upon receipt  of  your not ice t o proceed, we will act ivat e t he schedule com ponent

on Client  Por t a l with specif ic,  ant icipat ed dates for  the delivery  point s noted

above as well as other pert inent  event s.

2. Standard workdays. We will  m aint ain an act iv it ies calendar within on Client

Por t a l. The schedule w ill  be updat ed to m aintain a cur rent  awareness of our

plans for  delivery .

3. Post ing dat e can be affected by dr il l r ig availabil it y  at  the t im e we are given

not ice to proceed.  Any advanced not ice of  Ter racon ’s select ion  to per form  this

work will  allow for  the t im ely scheduling of  a dr ill  r ig to per form  the f ield work .

107



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Not e to Preparer :  This is a large t able with out side borders. Just  cl ick inside the t able

above this t ex t  box , t hen past e your GI S Toolbox  im age.

When paragraph m arkers are tu rned on you m ay  not ice a line of  hidden t ex t  above

and outside the t able – please leave that  alone. Lim it  edit ing to inside the t able.

Exhibit  D –  Site Locat ion

DI AGRAM I S FOR GENERAL LOCATI ON ONLY, AND I S NOT I NTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTI ON PURPOSES MAP PROVI DED BY MI CROSOFT BI NG MAPS

108



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t her n  Colo r ado  Reg ional  Ai rpo r t  Tax iw ay  B &  D Rehabi l it at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235064

Not e to Preparer :  This is a large t able with out side borders. Just  cl ick inside the t able

above this t ex t  box , t hen past e your GI S Toolbox  im age.

When paragraph m arkers are tu rned on you m ay  not ice a line of  hidden t ex t  above

and outside the t able – please leave that  alone. Lim it  edit ing to inside the t able.

Exhibit  E –  Ant icipated Explorat ion Plan

DI AGRAM I S FOR GENERAL LOCATI ON ONLY, AND I S NOT I NTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTI ON PURPOSES MAP PROVI DED BY MI CROSOFT BI NG MAPS

109



p 303.872.5756 2696 South Colorado Blvd, Suite 330 d ib b leco r p .co m  

f 303.353.4068 Denver, CO 80222 

 

 

October 27, 2023 
 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport 

4900  Earhart Road 

Loveland, CO 80538 
 

Attention: David Rupel 

Interim Airport Director 
 

RE: ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL 

  City Project Number: TBD 

  FAA AIP No. TBD 

  Design and Bid Phase Services 

  GA Taxilan e s  Re h abilitatio n   
  

We appreciate the opportunity to provide design and bid services for the GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation project 
at the Northern CO Regional Airport (FNL).   

Dibble, as the prime consultant, is proposing to complete the Scope of Work as included in this proposal for 
as follows: 

A. De s ign  an d Bid Ph as e  Se rvice s : 

1. Dibble (Civil)………………………………………………………………………… 

2. NorthStar Engineering and Surveying (Survey)……………………….. 

3. Terracon (Geotechnical)…………………….………………………………….. 

Subto tal……………… 

 

Transmitted herewith is our proposed Scope of Work, Project Exhibit, Pre-design Construction Cost Estimate, 

Fee Summary, Derivation of Fee Proposal, Estimated Manhours matrix, Estimated Direct Costs worksheet, 

and full subconsultant proposals for your review.  
 

We are very grateful for the opportunity to work with FNL on this project.  If you need additional information 

or have questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

J ared Bass, P.E.        

Vice President - Sr. Project Manager     

$40 ,903.66

$9,500 .00

$19,950 .00

$ 70 ,3 53 .6 6

110



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   GA Ta xila n es  R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 1 of 5          

 
 

SCOPE OF W ORK 

Northern CO Regional Airport  

GA Taxilanes Rehabilitat ion 

FAA AI P No. TBD 

October 2 7 , 2 0 2 3  
In tro ductio n  
 
Dibble (Engineer) has been requested by the Northern CO Regional Airport (FNL or Airport) to provide design 
and bid phase services for the GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation project. This project will be designed alongside the 
federally-funded Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation  project and will be a separate bid schedule with that project. 
 
This project will consist of approximately 7,500  SY mill and overlay of the existing pavement on Taxilanes 
Northrop and Stearman serving two hangar developments on the southeast side of the airport, (limits identified 
on the attached Project Exhibit).  FNL anticipates funding the entire project, (design, bid, and construction phases 
services) with local Airport funds.  The current estimated total project cost is approximately $600k. 
 
This project schedule will be consistent with the Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation  project schedule that consists 
of a 4-month design phase (December 2023 –  March 2024), and bid phase in March-April 2024, with a 120-
calendar day bid hold, (notice of award required by end of August 2024).   
 
The following Dibble staff are expected on this project: 

 Quality Manager –  Ken Snyder 

 Senior Project Manager –  J ared Bass 

 Senior Engineer –  Nora Sami 

 Project Engineers –  Derek Williams and Kurt Dalton 

 Senior Designer –  Travis Woodman  

 Administrative Assistant –  J im Hodge 
 
The following subconsultants are anticipated on this project (their respective proposals are attached): 

 Survey: NorthStar Engineering and Surveying 

 Geotechnical: Terracon 
 

Design Phase Services ( Lum p Sum )  

 

1 )  General Project  Managem ent  and Pre- Design Tasks: 
 
a) Project Management and Administration: provide and direct all project management and coordination 

of the design team and provide coordination between design team members, the Airport, and other 
interested stakeholders, including the FAA (CSPP and 7460  reviews).  Administration tasks such as file 
coordination and miscellaneous project communications throughout the course of the design phase and 
project printing and packaging at each submittal level will also be included under this task.  

 
b) Project Meetings:  The following are anticipated meetings throughout the design phase and the 

anticipated staff for each meeting: 

i. Internal Design Kick-Off Meeting: this meeting will be held at the beginning of the project to 
review the scope of work, design schedule, design budget, and critical design elements that 
require coordination with various airport stakeholders.  The team will also coordinate 
Geotechnical efforts with FNL staff.   

ii. 30% Design Review Meeting:  this meeting will be held with FNL and Dibble Team members to 
review comments received on the 30% design documents and the next critical steps in the 
process.  

111



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   GA Ta xila n es  R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 2  of 5          

iii. 100% Design Review Meeting:  this meeting will be held with FNL and Dibble Team members to 
review the final submittal items and obtain approval to move into the Bid Phase.  

 

2 )  Design Start - Up and Data Collect ion: 
 

a) Existing As-Built Document Research: gather and review all available as‐built or record drawings, utility 
maps, surveys, design plans, studies, reports and miscellaneous projects at the airport, relevant to this 
project.  This item shall also consist of reviewing the existing data available for the current pavement and 
subsoil conditions.  All this information will be coordinated with the surveyors and geotechnical 
engineers so that any specific data important to the design of this project can be identified and obtained 
during the field activities. 

 
b) Private and City Utility Coordination:  coordinate with the known private and City utilities that are on 

the airport (water, wastewater, drainage, and electrical, and Public Works departments), specifically 
within or adjacent to the project limits.  Plans shall be modified to include all received information from 
those departments on the plans.   

 
c) Base Map Development and Coordination: develop multiple CAD basemaps including demolition, 

geometric layouts, paving and grading, and utility infrastructure features collected from the topographic 
field survey, existing design files, field investigations (pictures and notes), and record drawings.  Also 
included in this item is the setup of all construction plan sheets including survey, pavement sections, 
pavement marking details, notes, etc.  All work will be consistent with FAA and City standards, as 
applicable. 

 
d)  Survey Coordination and Review: all survey work shall be conducted in compliance with FAA AC 150-

5300-16/ 17/ 18. Survey efforts shall include documentation of the survey methodology used for data 
collection and accuracies thereof, along with use of existing Airport Geodetic Control, Primary and 
Secondary Airport Control benchmarks, (PACS and SACS).  The survey shall utilize a robotic total 
station, GPS, and differential leveling, collecting topographic features along the project areas, (NAD 83 
and NAVD 88, US Survey Feet).   
 
All survey data shall meet or exceed the Level 1A horizontal and vertical minimum requirements for 
submittal to the OE/ AAA website. 
 
It is anticipated that the survey will be conducted during the daytime. 

 
e) Geotechnical and Coordination and Review: investigations in the form of drilling test borings will be 

conducted in accordance with FAA AC 150/ 5320-6F. Preparatory work will include coordinating access, 
conducting site reconnaissance of existing conditions and obtaining utility clearances for field borings.  
The FAA AC 150/ 5320-6G Pavem ent Design  recommends cores taken every 200-feet for new or full 
reconstruction of airfield pavements.  Given this is a mill and overlay project we will take four (4) cores 
split between the two taxilanes. 

 
It is anticipated that the geotechnical will be conducted during the daytime. 
 
The geotechnical consultant shall sample four (4) test borings along the existing taxilanes to adequately 
determine pavement and subsoil conditions and provide samples for laboratory testing. Pavement cores 
will be cut before digging and patched after completion.  Non-shrink grout shall be used to fill the cores. 
Depth of investigation shall be 10-feet below existing ground surface, or auger refusal, whichever comes 
first.  
 
Laboratory Analysis:  Conduct sufficient laboratory tests to properly classify soils encountered and 
provide data for engineering design, including: 

 

 Taxilanes Pavement Depths 

 Grain Size Analysis  

 Plasticity Index  

 Moisture Density Relations 

 Existing CBR 

112



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   GA Ta xila n es  R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 3  of 5          

 Existing PCR 

 In-place Density 

 Moisture Content 
 
Geotechnical Report:  Analyze the data obtained from field and laboratory testing and prepare a draft and 
final report presenting all data obtained, including individual Log of Test Borings, and Tabulation of Test 
Data. 
 

3 )  3 0 %  Progress Subm it ta l: 
 

a) 30% Design Plans: progress the design to the 30% level. 30% plans are anticipated to include the 
following:  

 Demolition Plan (1 sheet) 

 Geometric Control Plans (2 sheets) 

 Paving and Grading Plans (2 sheets) 

 Pavement Marking Plans and Details (2 Sheets) 

 Geotechnical Boring Location Map and Boring Logs (2 sheets) 
 

Total Sheet Count estimated at the 30% Submittal = 9 
 

b) 30% Quantities and Engineer’s OPCC: based on the 30% construction plans and technical specifications, 
the Engineer will develop a 30% Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC).  The unit pricing for 
each line item will be based on recent bid tabulations from comparative projects, locations, materials, 
and quantities available at that time.   

 
c) Draft Engineer’s Design Memo: The draft engineer’s design memo shall provide the design criteria and 

standards used in developing the construction documents (i.e. plans and technical specifications) and 
document the work and results of investigative efforts.   
 

d) Draft Contract Documents and Technical Specification: The draft contract documents and technical 
specifications will be developed with the federally-funded Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation  project. 

 
e) FAA FAARFIELD Existing Pavement Section Analysis: the Engineer will coordinate the data from the 

geotechnical investigations and provide an analysis of the existing pavement sections and subgrade 
conditions. The Engineer will also calculate new PCR’s for the existing pavement sections and 
anticipated life cycle. 

 
f) Draft Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP): a Draft CSPP will be developed with the federally-

funded Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation  project. 
 

g) 30% Internal QA/ QC Project Review: in addition to the continual quality assurance reviews performed 
by senior practice staff, Dibble will perform additional quality control reviews prior to each submittal 
utilizing standardized checking processes by a Senior QC Manager.  Each subconsultant will be 
responsible for their own Quality Control, however, the Senior QC Manager will review all combined 
project documents for consistency amongst the design elements before each submittal as well. 
 

h) 30% Plan-In-Hand Site Visit: perform a plans-in-hand site visit to visually compare the plans and survey 
data to existing field conditions.  Design elements will be reviewed and/ or confirmed in the field such as 
utility infrastructure and structures (visible in the field), pavement markings, grades, project limits, 
drainage conditions, etc.  Inconsistencies found during the field investigations (if any) will be corrected 
on the construction documents.  

 

4 )  1 0 0 %  Final Docum ents ( Bid Ready) : 
 

a) 100% Final Plans: sealed, 100% plans shall have all internal and external review comments by the Airport 
and FAA (CSPP and 7460  reviews) incorporated and addressed.  The plans will be prepared for the 
bidding phase. 
 

113



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   GA Ta xila n es  R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 4  of 5          

b) Final Contract Documents and Technical Specification: the final bid contract documents and technical 
specifications will be developed with the federally-funded Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation  project. 
 

c) 100% Quantities and Engineer’s OPCC: based on the final construction plans and technical specifications, 
the Engineer shall provide a final bidding schedule in the contract documents and an OPCC based on a 
unit price basis, reflecting recent bid tabulations from comparative projects, locations, materials, and 
quantities available at that time. 
 

d) Final Engineer’s Design Memo: The final engineer’s design memo shall provide some design criteria and 
standards used in developing the construction documents (i.e. plans and technical specifications) and 
document the work and results of investigative efforts.   
 

e) Final Internal QA/ QC Project Review: in addition to the continual quality assurance reviews performed by 
senior practice staff, Dibble will perform additional quality control reviews prior to each submittal 
utilizing standardized checking processes by a Senior QC Manager.  Each subconsultant will be 
responsible for their own Quality Control, however, the Senior QC Manager will review all combined 
project documents for consistency amongst the design elements before each submittal as well. 

 

Bid Phase Services ( Lum p Sum )  
 

5 )  Bid Phase Services: these efforts will be performed jointly with the federally-funded Taxiw ays B and 

D Rehabilitation  project. 
 

a) Bid Phase Management and Administration: Provide all project management and coordination of the 
design team and the FNL and FAA during the 1-month bidding phase.   
 

b) Pre-Bid Meeting and Site Visit: Attend the pre-bid meeting and assist the Airport in conducting the 
meeting.  The Engineer, upon the direction of the Airport, will provide a brief overview of the project and 
contract components, identifying important elements within the documents that the Contractors should 
be particularly familiar with prior to submitting a bid.  The Engineer shall also assist the Airport in 
developing and submitting the pre-bid meeting minutes to all plan holders. 
 
The Engineer will also assist the Airport with the airfield site visit for all interested parties. 
 

c) Bid Addenda: Pending contractors’ reviews, comments, and questions, the Engineer will assist the Airport 
in developing, issuing any necessary addenda, and notifying all planholders/ bidders. Addenda may 
include revision to construction documents (i.e. plans and technical specifications).  It is anticipated that 
a maximum of two (2) addenda will be issued for this project. 
 

d) Contractor Questions: The Engineer will coordinate, address, and appropriately respond to all contractor 
communications and questions during the bidding process.  Responses will be submitted through 
addenda as needed.  All communication will follow the Airport regulations and requirements. 
 

e) Bid Opening Meeting: The Engineer will attend the bid opening meeting to assist the Airport and City in 
reviewing and organizing the bidding documents from each contractor. 
 

f) Bid Tabulation and Letter of Recommendation of Award: The Engineer will evaluate each bid submitted 
for mathematical/ calculative errors and for comparative purposes against the Engineer’s OPCC and other 
bids submitted.  The Engineer will provide a bid summary letter stating all inconsistencies and results and 
a recommendation for the lowest responsible, responsive bidder.  Included with this effort will be the 
review and evaluation support of the other contract components such as the DBE subcontractor 
evaluation.  
 
The Engineer will further assist the Airport and City with review of the bidder’s compliance with the other 
required contract documents included in the bidding documents. 

 

 

 

114



No r t her n  CO R eg io n a l Air p o r t                                   GA Ta xila n es  R eha b ili t a t io n

Dib b le    Sco p e  o f W o r k                                                                                            Page 5  of 5          

6 )  Miscellaneous and Assum pt ions:  

a) Design Schedule: this proposal (design and bid phase only) is based on a 4-month design phase 
(December 2023 –  March 2024).  The bid phase is anticipated to occur March-April 2024 with a bid hold 
of 120-calendar days (notice of award required by end of August 2024).   

b) All plans are to be prepared in AutoCAD Civil 3D 2021.  

c) This proposal has been prepared to reflect effort to produce plans and specifications for a single bid 
package, (i.e. no alternates). 

d) The following number of trips are anticipated by the Project Manager for the Design Phase to cover all the 
on-site meetings identified in this scope.  These efforts will be performed jointly with the federally-funded 
Taxiw ays B and D Rehabilitation  project, therefor the direct costs identified below will not be included in 
this proposal. 

1. Design Phase –  3 Trips (two staff members each trip): 

i. Project Kick-Off Meeting  

ii. 30% Project Review Meeting and Site Visit 

iii. Final Site Visit and Plan Review 

2. Bid Phase –  2 Trips 

i. Pre-Bid Meeting 

ii. Bid Submittal 
 

7 )  Exclusions To This Scope of W ork: 

a) Construction Phase Services. 

b) Landscape, Irrigation, and Environmental Design Services. 

c) Structural Engineering, Mechanical, or Architectural Design Services. 

d) Revisions to the most current offsite watershed hydrology model(s). 

e) Drainage design. 

f) FEMA Letters of Map Revision. 

g) Permit-Ready Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP) (Contractor’s Responsibility). 

h) Single bid Phase effort (Bid Phase in early 2024) 

i) Utility Locating or potholing. 

j) Federal activities such as environmental, modifications to standards, FAA meetings, etc. 

115



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

Ta
xi

la
ne

 N
or

th
ro

p

Ta
xi

la
ne

 S
te

ar
m

an

Ta
xi

la
ne

 G
ru

m
m

an

General Aviation Apron

Taxiway A

Ta
xi

w
ay

 B

Taxiway D

Ea
rh

ar
t R

d

Lindbergh Dr

Terminal Area

Commercial Apron

Legend:

Scale based on a 11"x17" sheet.

Northern Colorado Rgnl'
GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation
Project Exhibit
Date: 10.17.23

0' 200' 400'

N

Existing Facilities

Existing Property Line

GA Taxilanes Rehab

Notes:
· N/A

116



CIVIL
1 Contractor Quality Control 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00

2 Mobilization 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00

3 Sawcut AC Pavement (Full Depth Depth) 500 LF $10.00 $5,000.00

4 Mill AC Pavement (Full Depth) 7,500 SY $10.00 $75,000.00

5 AC Pavement (4‐inch Depth) 188 TON $200.00 $37,500.00

6 Subgrade Prep 7,500 SY $25.00 $187,500.00

7 Tack Coat 7,500 SY $4.00 $30,000.00

8 Pavement Marking 1,500 SF $4.00 $6,000.00

$406,000.00

Electrical
9 Electrical 0 LS $0.00 $0.00

$0.00

$406,000.00

$75,000.00

$481,000.00

$75,000.00

$50,000.00

$0.00

$606,000.00

Airport Admin

Civil Subtotal

PROJECT TOTAL

Engineering

Construction Admin

Electrical Subtotal

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL

Misc & Other Unknown Items

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

PRE‐DESIGN COST ESTIMATE

NORTHERN CO REGIONAL AIRPORT
GA TAXILANES MILL & OVERLAY

LINE 
No. DESCRIPTION

APPROX. 
QTY. UNIT

UNIT           
PRICE AMOUNT

10/23/2023 Page 1
117



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation Task Number: TBD
Design and Bid Phase Services Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: TBD

Date: 10/27/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

Dibble Subs

A. Design and Bid Phase Services
Fee Type

1 Dibble…………………………………………………………………………………… $40,903.66 Lump Sum $40,903.66
2 NorthStar Engineering and Survey (Survey)…………………………… $9,500.00 Lump Sum $9,500.00
3 Terracon (Geotech)………………………………………………………………… $19,950.00 Lump Sum $19,950.00

TOTAL Dibble Subconsultants
Total…………………………………………………………….……………………… $70,353.66 $40,903.66 $29,450.00

Summary

118



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation Task Number: TBD
Design and Bid Phase Services Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: TBD

Date: CDOT Number: TBD

1 Principal $295.00

2 Senior Project Manager $225.01

3 Project Manager $205.02

4 Senior Engineer $205.02

5 Quality Manager $295.00

6 Project Engineer $172.01

7 Senior Designer $146.99

8 Admin Assistant $85.01

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES DIRECT COSTS

Item Cost
1 Submittal Printing (Dibble)……………………………………………………… $0.00
2 Travel (Dibble)………………………………………………………………………… $0.00
3 Meals (Dibble)………………………………………………………………………… $0.00

Sub‐Total for Direct Costs..................................................... $0.00

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES SUBCONSULTANTS

Firm Cost
1 NorthStar Engineering and Survey (Survey)……………………………… $9,500.00
2 Terracon (Geotech)………………………………………………………………… $19,950.00

Sub‐Total for Subconsultants: ............................................. $29,450.00

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES TOTAL FEE

TOTAL FEE........................................................................ $70,353.66

10/27/2023

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES SUMMARY

Classification Total
Hours

Billing
Rates

Total
Costs

0 $0.00

56 $12,600.56

0 $0.00

52 $10,661.04

16 $4,720.00

36 $6,192.36

40 $5,879.60

10 $850.10

Totals: 210 $40,903.66

Type of
Compensation
Direct Cost
Direct Cost
Direct Cost

Type of
Compensation

Lump Sum
Lump Sum

119



Firm: Dibble Engineering Contract Number: TBD
On‐Call Engineering  Project Number: TBD

Project: GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation Task Number: TBD
Design and Bid Phase Services Amendment Number: N/A
Northern Colorado Regional Airport FAA Number: TBD

Date: 10/27/2023 CDOT Number: TBD

SENIOR 
PROJECT PROJECT SENIOR  QUALITY PROJECT SENIOR ADMIN 

TASK PRINCIPAL MANAGER MANAGER ENGINEER MANAGER ENGINEER DESIGNER ASSISTANT

1   General Project Management and Pre‐Design Tasks

1a Project Management & Administration 8 8 16

1b Project Meetings 2 2 2 2 2 10

2   Design Start‐Up and Data Collection

2a Existing As‐Built Document Research 2 4 4 10

2b Private and City Utility Coordination 2 4 6

2c Base Map Development and Coordination 2 4 6 12

2d Survey Coordination and Review 2 2 2 6

2e Geotechnical Coordination and Review 4 4 8

3   30% Progress Submittal

3a 30% Design Plans 4 4 4 16 28

3b 30% Quantities and Engineer's OPCC 2 4 4 2 12

3c Draft Engineer's Design Memo 2 4 4 2 12

3d Draft Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 2 2 4

3e FAA FAARFIELD Existing Pavement Section Analysis 6 8 14

3f Draft Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) 2 2 2 6

3g 30% Internal QA/QC Project Review 8 8

3h 30% Plan‐In‐Hand Site Visit 2 2 4

4  100% Final Documents (Bid Ready)

4a 100% Final Plans 2 4 4 6 16

4b Final Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 2 2 4

4c 100% Quantities and Engineer's OPCC 2 2 2 2 8

4d Final Engineer's Design Memo 2 2 2 6

4e Final Internal QA/QC Project Review 8 8

5  Bid Phase Services

5a Bid Phase Management and Administration 2 2

5b Pre‐Bid Meeting and Site Visit 2 2

5c Bid Addenda 2 2

5d Contractor Questions 2 2

5e Bid Opening Meeting 2 2

5f Bid Tabulation and Letter of Recommendation of Award 2 2

TOTAL HOURS BY CLASSIFICATION 0 56 0 52 16 36 40 10 210

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES ‐ ESTIMATED   MANHOURS

TOTAL HOURS
BY TASK

120



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17 015 15 
October 20, 2023 
 
Dibble Engineering 
2696 South Colorado Boulevard, Suite 585 
Denver, CO  80222 
 
Attn: Jared Bass, Senior Project Manager 
 
Via: email:  <jared.bass@dibblecorp.com> 
 
Re: Loveland FNL GA Taxiland Rehab Surveying Support services. 
 
We are pleased to present this “Work Authorization Agreement” for performing Professional 
Engineering and Surveying services with regard to the above referenced project.  Please find a 
list below of the services that are to be provided:  
 
TASK A: ASBUILT AREAS OF GA Taxilane, THE LIMITS OF WHICH ARE DESCRIBED 

BELOW AND ON EXHIBIT PROVIDED BY DIBBLE INCLUDING: 
 

1. All survey work to be executed in compliance with FAA AC 150-5300-
16/17/18, documenting the survey methodology used for data collection 
and accuracies thereof (Pictures and Notes), along with use of existing 
Airport Geodetic Control, PACS and SACS.  The survey shall utilize a 
robotic total station, GPS, and differential leveling, collecting topographic 
features along the project areas based on NAD 83 Horizontal coordinates 
and NAVD 88 vertical datum.  Coordinates shall be area ground modified 
State Plane, Colorado South Zone.  The survey shall meet the vertical and 
horizontal tolerances of a Level 1A survey. 

2. Edge of asphalt in highlighted area 
3. Taxiway pavement 50’ grid, and centerline 
4. All electrical lighting, signage, and handholds/manholes 
5. All pavement markings 
6. Locations of soil samples/cores on runway pavement, if applicable 
7. Final deliverable:  preconstruction “Asbuilt” basemap in AutoCAD 2021 or 

later format. 
 

TOTAL TASK A: (lump sum) ...................................................................................... $7900.00  

 
 

111 E. 5th Street (719) 544-6823 
Pueblo, CO 81003 (719) 544-6825 Fax 

Michael L Cuppy, P.E., P.L.S. 

121



TASK B: Survey Control Sheet,  to include: 
 

1. Prepare Survey Control Sheet and update for 2 submittals per FAA criteria and 
specifications. 

2. Survey Control sheet to meet all requirements outline in Task A item 1. 
 

TOTAL TASK B: (lump sum) ..................................................................................... $1,600.00  

 
THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL (A formal Proposal for 
any of these services can and will be prepared at Client request): 
   

1. Asbuilt survey of any item not specifically listed above.  
 

General Conditions 
NorthStar Engineering and Surveying, Inc. (“NorthStar”) will perform the services listed above, 
subject to the conditions listed below. Our fees for providing these services will be as indicated 
above. Any additional services required to complete the project will be billed per our current 
Time and Materials rates. Any additional work required by NorthStar or by the Client to complete 
the project shall be acknowledged by the Client and made a portion of the Work Authorization 
Agreement (“Agreement”).  This Agreement may not be amended, nor any obligations 
hereunder waived, except by written agreement signed by all parties to the Agreement. 
 
NorthStar Services 
NorthStar will perform its services in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by other design professionals in the same geographic area as the 
underlying project.  
 
NorthStar does not have control over, and is not responsible for, construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures. 
 
Construction observation services are not a part of this Agreement unless specifically identified 
above. Construction staking or survey control staking is not construction observation, nor is it an 
inspection, ratification, or approval of prior work performed by others, including but not limited 
to, design and/or construction professionals.  
 
Estimates of cost are NorthStar’s opinions of probable cost, based on NorthStar’s experience 
and familiarity with the construction industry.  NorthStar cannot guarantee that bids or final 
construction costs will not vary from NorthStar’s estimate or opinion. 
 
Payment    
Any permit fees or title company fees are the responsibility of the client and are not included in 
this Agreement. Also, all direct reimbursable expenses incurred in performance of this project 
will be invoiced at cost plus ten percent. 
 
NorthStar’s policy is to invoice the address listed above by the 1st day of every month. Payment 
is due on receipt of invoice and to be received no later than the 25th day of that month. Client 
shall advise if a different invoice date is required.  
 

122



The Client agrees that the balance stated on the invoice from NorthStar to Client is correct, 
conclusive, and binding on the Client, unless the Client notifies NorthStar of objections or 
inaccuracies within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.  
 
Payment not received by NorthStar by the 25th day of the month will cause all work to stop on 
the project, and an assessment of interest at the rate of two percent monthly.  
 
Client agrees to pay NorthStar’s costs of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fees, for any 
amounts that remain unpaid 90 days after billing.  
 
In the event the Client wishes to terminate the services of NorthStar, the Client shall pay 
NorthStar Time and Materials rates up to the date of termination.  
 
Limitation of Liability/Damages 
NorthStar’s total liability to Client, for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages 
arising out of this Agreement shall not exceed the amount of the fee paid by Client to NorthStar.  
NorthStar’s tender of payment in this amount shall constitute a fulfillment and complete 
satisfaction of any and all of NorthStar’s liabilities, obligations, representations or warranties 
related to or arising from this Agreement.  
 
NorthStar and Client mutually agree to waive all claims of consequential damages arising from 
claims, disputes, or other matters related to this Agreement.   
 
Statute of Limitations 
The statute of limitations for any claims arising from NorthStar’s work shall begin to run as of the 
date that NorthStar submits an invoice for 100% of the fee listed above. 
 
Indemnity 
The Client shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless NorthStar and its personnel from and 
against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of NorthStar’s work, provided that any 
such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in whole or in part by the negligent act or 
omission of the Client, or anyone directly or indirectly retained or employed by the Client (except 
NorthStar).  This indemnification includes, but is not limited to, claims or losses due to the 
presence of hazardous materials.  This indemnification includes, but is not limited to, claims 
alleged to have arisen from the contractor’s performance or the alleged failure of the 
contractor’s work to conform to the design intent and the contract or project documents. 
 
Instruments of Service 
NorthStar provides services, the scope of which are set forth above, not a product.  Sketches, 
designs, computations, survey notes, reports, specifications, and other original documents of 
any sort are instruments of that service; they are the written depiction of NorthStar’s intellectual 
process. NorthStar retains sole and exclusive ownership of these documents, unless the 
documents are required to be filed for public record by a governmental agency having proper 
jurisdiction.  
 
Any use or reuse of original or altered physical documents or electronic files or CADD 
adaptation of NorthStar plans or documents for any use other than the specific purpose 
intended by NorthStar, without the prior written permission of NorthStar, is prohibited.  The 
Client agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless NorthStar from any and all claims, suits, 

123



or liability arising from the unauthorized use of NorthStar’s work by person or entities not party 
to this Agreement.  
 
Additional Provisions 
Client agrees that NorthStar shall be entitled to recover all costs incurred in enforcing any 
provision of this Agreement, including court costs and attorney’s fees.   
 
 
This Agreement is not intended to be, and shall be construed to be, intended for the benefit of 
any person or entity that is not a signatory party to this Agreement.  No person or entity, other 
than signatory parties, will have any right or cause of action under this Agreement.  
  
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. Venue for any litigation 
arising from this Agreement shall be in the Pueblo County District Court. 
 
 
With the exception of actions by NorthStar to recover amounts due and owing, all other disputes 
or claims arising from this Agreement shall be submitted first to non-binding mediation, and then 
to binding arbitration if mediation is unsuccessful.  Arbitration shall be conducted by a single 
arbitrator, mutually chosen by the parties.  If the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, a party 
seeking enforcement of this arbitration agreement may request, as part of a petition for 
enforcement, that a Pueblo County District Court judge appoint an arbitrator.   
 
If any clause or provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected 
thereby and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Please review this Work Authorization Agreement carefully, for it represents a binding contract 
when signed.  If this Agreement is acceptable, please have a duly authorized representative 
sign on the space provided below and return the original to us as notice of authorization to 
proceed.  We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. 
 
NorthStar Engineering and Surveying, Inc. 
 

 
 
Michael L. Cuppy, P.E., P.L.S. 
President/Principal 
 
Accepted By: _____________________________ 
 
Title: ___________________________________ 
Date: ________________________________ 
 
 
 

124



111 East 5th 

Street  

 

 

SCHEDULE OF STANDARD TIME AND MATERIAL RATES 
(January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2024) 

 

OFFICE ENGINEERING AND PLANNING:  
Principal .............................................................................................. $180.00/hr.  
Registered Professional Engineer (Project Manager) ......................... $150.00/hr.  
Licensed Land Surveyor (Project Manager). ...................................... $140.00/hr.  
Project Engineer (EI)/Surveyor (SI) ................................................... $125.00/hr.  
Engineer/Planner ................................................................................. $110.00/hr.  
Designer / GIS .................................................................................... $ 100.00/hr.  
AutoCAD Technician ......................................................................... $ 90.00/hr.  
Accounting .......................................................................................... $ 70.00/hr.  
Clerical ................................................................................................ $ 50.00/hr.  
Messenger ........................................................................................... $ 35.00/hr.  

FIELD ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING:  
3-Man Survey Crew ............................................................................ $175.00/hr.  

Overtime Rate ........................................................................ $200.00/hr.  
2-Man Survey Crew ............................................................................ $160.00/hr.  

Overtime Rate ........................................................................ $180.00/hr.  
1-Man Survey Crew ............................................................................ $125.00/hr.  

Overtime Rate ........................................................................ $145.00/hr.  
Construction Manager ......................................................................... $130.00/hr.  
Construction Inspector ........................................................................ $115.00/hr.  
Survey Crew – Out of Town Drive Time ........................................... $120.00/hr.  
GPS Equipment: Standard Survey Crew Rate Plus ............................ $ 50.00/hr.  

REIMBURSABLE RATES:  
Blueline Prints ...................................................................................... $ 0.70/sq.ft.  
Mylar Prints ......................................................................................... $ 2.85/sq.ft.  
Color Bond ........................................................................................... $ 2.20/sq.ft.  
Xerox Copies ....................................................................................... $ 0.20/ea.  
Color Copies (8.5x11) .......................................................................... $ 2.25/ea.  
Large Xerox Copies ............................................................................. $ 2.20/ea.  

SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES AND SPECIAL EQUIPMENT:  
Mileage – Trucks and Autos ................................................................ $ 0.60/mile  
Direct Costs plus 15%  

 

NOTE: In the event Principals are involved for an extended period on a project, rates charged 
will be commensurate with work performed. 

 

Michael L. Cuppy, P.E., P.L.S. 

(719) 544-6823 

Fax (719) 544-6825 

125



1901 Sharp Point  Dr ive, Suite C

Fort  Collins, Colorado 80525

P ( 970)  484-0359

F (970)  484-0454

Ter ra con.com

Facilities  |  Environmental  | Geotechnical | Materials

Pro p o sa l Co v e r Pa g e

Oct ober 27, 2023

Dibble & Associat es Consult ing Engineers,  I nc.

2696 South Colorado Bou levard, Suit e 585

Denver , Colorado 80222

At tn : Mr.  Jared Bass,  P.E.

P: ( 303)  872-5756

E: j ared.bass@dibblecorp.com

RE: Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services

Northern Colorado Regional Airport  GA Taxilanes Rehabil it at ion

4900 Earhart  Road

Loveland,  Colorado

Terracon Proposal No. P20235066

Dear  Mr . Bass:

We appreciate the opportunit y  to subm it  this proposal to Dibble & Associates Consult ing

Engineers,  I nc. ( Dibble)  t o provide Geot echnical Engineering services for the project

referenced above. The fol lowing are exhibit s to this proposal.

Exhibit  A Project  Underst anding

Exhibit  B Scope of Services

Exhibit  C Com pensat ion  and Project  Schedule

Exhibit  D Site Locat ion and Nearby Geot echnical Dat a

Exhibit  E Ant icipated Explorat ion Plan

Our  est im at ed base fee to per form  the Scope of Services descr ibed in  this proposal is

$19,950. Fees associat ed w ith private ut i lit y  locat ing and pavem ent  cor ing services are

included in our  est im ated base fee provided above. However ,  t hey  will be invoiced at

cost  plus 15 percent  so our proposed fee m ay change slight ly . Exhibit  C includes det ails

of our fees and considerat ion of  addit ional serv ices as well as a general breakdown of

our ant icipated schedule.

126



127



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Exhibit  A –  Project  Understanding

Our  Scope of  Services is based on our understanding of  the project  as descr ibed by

Dibble and the ant icipat ed condit ions as described below. We have not  v isited the

project  site to confirm  the inform at ion prov ided.  Aspect s of the project ,  undefined or

assum ed, are highlight ed as shown below. We request  Dibble and/ or  the design t eam

ver ify  all inform at ion pr ior  to our  ini t iat ion of f ield explorat ion act iv it ies.

Planned Const ruct ion

I t em Descr ipt ion

I n form at ion

Provided

The proj ect  inform at ion descr ibed below is based on t he

following:

■ Em ailed request  for  a proposal received f rom  Dibble on

Oct ober 20, 2023 wit h a det ailed scope of  work

■ FNL GA Taxilanes Rehab – Project  Exhibit  10.17.23.pdf

■ Em ail ccom m unicat ion with  Dibble

Proje ct

Descr ipt ion

The GA t ax ilanes at  t he Northern Colorado (NoCo)  Regional

Airport  are const ruct ed of asphalt  pavem ent . This proj ect

includes the planned rehabil it at ion of the t ax ilanes by m il l and

over lay.  Approxim ately  860 feet  of  Taxilane Northrup and 680

feet  of  Taxilane Stearnm an are planned for rehabil it at ion. We

underst and the m ill  and over lay wil l be non-st ructural and no

changes are planned to the overall pavem ent  thicknesses. We

also underst and no pavem ent  condit ion assessm ent  is required

for  this work . A pavem ent  condit ion assessm ent  of airport

pavem ent s was per form ed in 2022 by the Colorado Departm ent

of Transpor tat ion ( CDOT) . The planned m ill and over lay

operat ion is based on the result s of  CDOT’s assessm ent .

We do not  ant icipate any other  im provem ent s ( i .e. ,  st ruct ures,

ut il it ies, et c. )  are planned as part  of  t h is project .

Grading/ Slopes

Due to t he planned m ethod of rehabil it at ion, we ant icipat e

m inor cut s and fil ls on the order of 1 foot  or  less ( if  any)  will be

required to ach ieve proposed grades for th is project .

128



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

I t em Descr ipt ion

Pa vem ent s

New t axilane pavem ent  planned as par t  of t h is proj ect  wil l

consist  of f lexible asphalt  pavem ent  via m ill and over lay of

exist ing pavem ent .  We assum e Dibble will  prov ide the est im at ed

aircraft  f leet  m ix ( including the type and weight  of each aircraft

and growth rat es)  to be used in t he FAARFI ELD pavem ent

analysis of  the Pavem ent  Classif icat ion Rat ing ( PCR)  of  the

exist ing t axilane pavem ent .  No addit ional pavem ent  thickness

design services were request ed at  th is t im e.

Funding Source
We underst and the funding for  this project  will com e from the

NoCo Regional Airport  m oneys.

Design  Schedule

We underst and author izat ion to per form  the Geot echnical

Engineer ing Serv ices presented in this proposal will  very likely

be prov ided in Decem ber 2023.

Sit e Locat ion and Ant icipat ed Condit ions

I t em Descr ipt ion

Project  Locat ion

I n form at ion

The proj ect is located at Northern Colorado ( NoCo)  Regional

Airport  at  4900 Earhart  Road in Loveland, Colorado.  Taxilanes

Northrop and St earnm an are locat ed south of  the exist ing

airport  t erm inal area and east  of  Runway 15-33.

Lat i tude/ Longitude (approxim at e) :  40.4447°  N, 105.0048°  W

( see Exhibit  D)

Exist ing

I m provem ents

The sit e is an exist ing airpor t  with an asphalt -sur faced runway,

t axiways, t axiway  connectors,  and taxilanes. The sit e also

includes features t ypical of  airpor t s, such as light ed signage,

infield drainage areas,  parked aircraft ,  hangar st ruct ures,  and

associat ed support  vehicles, such as fuel t rucks, t ugs, and

luggage t ransport s.

Current  Ground

Cover

The exist ing runway, shoulders,  t ax iways, t ax iway  connectors,

and taxilanes are sur faced wit h asphalt .  The inf ield drainage

areas are veget at ed w it h grass.

Exist ing

Topogra phy

Based on publicly  available USGS topographic m aps, ground

sur face elevat ions in the area of t he t axilanes gradually  slope

down from  the southeast  t owards the nor thwest .

Site  Access
We expect  the sit e,  and all explorat ion locat ions, are accessible

wit h our  t ruck-m ount ed dr il ling equipm ent  and support  vehicles.

129



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

I t em Descr ipt ion

Ex pected

Subsurface

Condit ions

Our  experience near  the v icinit y of  the proposed project and

review of geologic m aps indicat e subsur face condit ions wil l likely

consist  of m edium  to high plast icit y  clay soi ls wit h low t o high

swell pot ent ial over  clayst one bedrock . Bedrock  is ant icipated at

dept hs of  about  11 to 17 feet  below ex ist ing grades.

Groundwat er  levels are ant icipat ed to be about  10 to 20 feet

below ex ist ing grades.

Previous

Geot echnica l

St udies

Previously , Terracon has prepared m ult iple Geot echnical

Engineering Report s for  t he dif ferent  airpor t  im provem ent

project s wit hin the past  25+  years.  Dat a from  these prev ious

studies were considered dur ing preparat ion of  th is proposal.

130



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Exhibit  B -  Scope of Services

Our  proposed Scope of  Services consists of  f ield explorat ion, laboratory  t est ing, and

engineering/ project  delivery . These services are descr ibed in t he following sect ions.

Field Explorat ion

Based on input  provided by Dibble, and our exper ience with  sim i lar  projects in  the

v icinit y  of the project  si te,  we propose the fol lowing f ield explorat ion program  which is

ant icipat ed t o be com plet ed with  1  day of on- site act iv i t ies.

N um ber  of

Bor ings
Pla nned Bor ing Depth  ( fee t )

1
Planned Loca t ion

2

2
3 10

Along Exist ing Tax ilane

Northrop

2
3 10

Along Exist ing Tax ilane

Stearnm an

1. I ndicat es dept h below ground surface at  the t im e of  our  f ield explorat ion.

Although not  ant icipat ed based on the geology in the v icinit y  of the project  si te,

borings would be term inat ed at  shallower depths if refusal is encount ered.

2. The planned boring locat ions are shown on the at t ached Ant icipa ted

Explor at ion Plan .

3 . Terracon will  ret ain t he services of a subcont ractor  to core t hrough the exist ing

t axilane pavem ent  at  the planned 4 bor ing locat ions with a port able cor ing

m achine to prov ide access to com plete the bor ings into the subgrade below t he

exist ing pavem ent .

Pre - Ex plora t ion  Safe t y  Mee t ing a nd Site  Visit : We ant icipate Dibble and t he airport

wil l require all f ield explorat ion crew m em bers including dr il l crew m em bers, f ield

engineers, and coring subcont ractors t o at t end a pre-explorat ion  m eet ing to discuss

safety and planned operat ions for  the day . We ant icipate th is m eet ing is planned to be

conducted the day before or  the day when f ield operat ions are scheduled.

I n addit ion to the pre-explorat ion safety m eet ing and prior  to m obil izing our  dr il ling

equipm ent  to the project  sit e,  we also ant icipat e a Ter racon represent at ive wil l v isit  t he

sit e one t im e to meet  with represent at ives of  Dibble and t he airpor t  ( as needed)  to

coordinate our f ield work ,  stake/ m ark bor ing locat ions, assess dril l  r ig access/ regress to

and from  the bor ing locat ions,  and conf irm  public and privat e ut i li t ies have been

appropriat ely  m arked or cleared. I f condit ions ident ified during our  pre-m obil izat ion si te

v isit  t hat  could negat ively im pact  the f ield explorat ion, relat ive to pr ivat e ut i lit ies and/ or

131



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

equipm ent  access, we wil l cont act  you to discuss our concerns and opt ions, and

addit ional fees m ay apply .  Any v isit s to the site beyond 1 will  require addit ional fees.

Site  Access: Based on available aerial im agery ,  we expect  the planned boring locat ions

are accessible to our  t ruck-m ount ed dr illing equipm ent  and no sit e clear ing, t ree or

shrub clearing, creat ing (or  regrading)  any  access roads or  dr i l l pads,  repair  of landscape

dam age, or  locat ion of underground ut i lit ies beyond cont act ing Colorado 811 is required.

Terracon m ust  be grant ed access to the site by the property owner . Without  inform at ion

to the cont rary ,  we consider  accept ance of this proposal as author izat ion to access the

property for  conduct ing f ield explorat ion in  accordance with the Scope of Serv ices. Our

proposed fees do not  include t im e to negot iate and coordinate access with  landowners or

t enant s. Ter racon wil l conduct  field serv ices dur ing norm al business hours ( Monday

through Fr iday bet ween 7: 00 am  and 5: 00 pm ) .  I f  our  explorat ion m ust  t ake place over

a weekend or  at  night , please cont act  us so we can adjust  our  schedule and fee.

Bor ing La yout  and Elevat ions: We will use handheld GPS equipm ent  t o locate bor ings

wit h an est im ated hor izont al accuracy of  + / -20 feet .  Field m easurem ents from  exist ing

sit e feat ures m ay be ut i lized. I f available,  approxim at e ground surface elevat ions at  the

bor ing locat ions wil l be obt ained by interpolat ion from  a sit e specif ic,  surveyed

topographic m ap. We can alternat ively coordinat e with your Project  Surveyor to include

locat ions and sur face elevat ions in  project  in form at ion, if request ed.

Subsurface  Explora t ion  Procedures: Aft er cor ing th rough the exist ing pavem ent

sect ion wit h a port able cor ing m achine operated by  t rained personnel, we wil l  advance

bor ings with  a t ruck-m ount ed dr ill  r ig using cont inuous- fl ight  augers ( solid- stem  and/ or

hollow-st em ,  as necessary , depending on subsurface condit ions) . Four sam ples wil l be

obt ained in each bor ing. Soil sam pling is t ypically  per form ed using m odif ied California

barrel and split - barrel sam pling procedures. We will also obt ain  bulk  sam ples of

subsurface m at er ials f rom  auger  cut t ings for  California Bearing Rat io ( CBR) test ing.  The

split - bar rel sam plers are driven in accordance wit h t he st andard penet rat ion test  (SPT) .

For the m odif ied Californ ia bar rel sam pling procedure, a 2½ - inch out er  diam et er ,  split -

bar rel sam pling spoon is used for  sam pling. Modified Cali fornia bar rel sam pling

procedures are sim ilar  t o st andard split - barrel sam pling procedures;  however , blow

count s are t ypically  recorded for  6- inch int ervals for  a t ot al of 12 inches of penet rat ion .

The sam ples will be placed in  appropr iat e containers, t aken to our  soil laboratory  for

t est ing, and classif ied by a Geotechnical Engineer .

I n addit ion, we will observe and record groundwat er  levels dur ing dr il ling operat ions.

Due to t he planned locat ions of  the bor ings in  exist ing t axilanes, no provisions have

been m ade to obt ain delayed groundwat er m easurem ent s.

Our  proposed fee assum es a dril l  r ig can advance bor ings to the proposed dept hs using

the m ethods described previously .  I f dif f icu lt  dr ill ing condit ions are encount ered, we wil l

132



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

not ify Dibble as soon as it  appears costs will  exceed our proposed fee t o discuss other

dr illing alt ernat ives.

Our  explorat ion t eam  will prepare field bor ing logs as par t  of st andard dril l ing operat ions

including sam pling depths, penet rat ion dist ances, and ot her  relevant  sam pling

in form at ion . Field logs include v isual classif icat ions of  m at er ials observed dur ing dr ill ing

and our  int erpretat ion of subsur face condit ions between sam ples.

One Dynamic Cone Penet rom et er  ( DCP)  t est  wil l be per form ed at  each bor ing locat ion

using a Kessler Dual- Mass or  Single- Mass DCP in general accordance wit h ASTM D6951

Standard Test  m ethod for Use of t he Dynam ic Cone Penet rom et er  in  Shallow Pavem ent

Applicat ions. The resu lt s of t he DCP test ing will  be used to supplem ent  our

recom m endat ions for  the subgrade support  charact er ist ics of the t axilane pavem ent s.

Proper t y D ist urbance : Ter racon will  t ake reasonable effort s to reduce dam age to the

property.  However ,  it  should be understood that  in  the norm al course of our  work som e

disturbance could occur including rut t ing of t he ground surface and dam age to

landscaping, and/ or pavem ents. Rut t ing on  the order of 3 to 4  inches or  m ore m ay be

possible under dry  sur face condit ions.  Our  dr i l l r igs wil l advance an approx im at ely 4 to

8- inch diam eter  ver t ical borehole at  the t est  locat ions.

We will backfill  bor ings with  cem ent it ious f lowable backfi ll upon com plet ion . Pavem ents

w il l be pat ched with non- shr ink  grout  dyed black . Patched concret e wil l very l ikely not

ent irely  m at ch the exist ing pavem ent  color  or t ex ture.  Our services do not  include repair

of the site beyond backfill ing our  boreholes and pat ching exist ing pavem ents/ sur faces.

Excess auger cut t ings will  be placed in  steel drum s and disposed of  off - site.

Safet y

The geotechnical explorat ion is proposed to be conduct ed on the airside of the fence at

an  act ive airpor t  dur ing the author ized work  hours of about  7  am  t o 5  pm . We have

assum ed coordinat ion ef for t s with the airpor t  and the FAA will be conducted by Dibble to

provide t he explorat ion crews safe access to the t axilanes. Ter racon will abide by all

safety  and regulatory requirem ent s prior  to and dur ing the explorat ion. We assum e

Terracon will  be not if ied of any requirem ent s wit h reasonable not ice to accom m odat e the

requirem ent s in t he explorat ion act iv it ies.  Al l dr illing r igs and support  vehicles will  be

equipped w ith flashing yellow beacons.  The m ast  of t he dr i l l r ig will  be af fixed wit h an

orange and whit e checkered flag t o aler t  approaching aircraft . We assum e a specif ic

m axim um  dr il l r ig m ast  height  is not  required. Terracon and our  subcont ractors w ill  t ake

reasonable m easures to prevent  the int roduct ion  of  foreign obj ect  debr is (FOD)  which

m ay dam age aircraft .

133



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Terracon is not  aware of environm ent al concerns at  th is project  sit e that  would creat e

health  or  safety hazards associated with  our  explorat ion program ;  thus, our  Scope

considers standard OSHA Level D Personal Prot ect ion Equipm ent  ( PPE)  appropriat e. Our

Scope of Serv ices does not  include environm ent al sit e assessm ent  services, but

ident if icat ion of unusual or  unnatural m ater ials observed while dr illing wil l be noted on

our logs and discussed in our  repor t .

Explorat ion  effor t s require bor ings into the subsur face;  therefore, Terracon will com ply

wit h local regulat ions to request  a ut il i t y  locat ion  service through Colorado 811 ( CO811) .

We will consult  wit h the owner/ client  regarding pot ent ial ut il it ies or  ot her  unm arked

underground hazards. Based upon t he result s of t his consu lt at ion, we will consider  the

need for alternat ive subsur face explorat ion m ethods as t he safety  of  our field crew is a

pr ior it y .

Due to t he presence of  exist ing st ructures near t he planned bor ing locat ions, Terracon

wil l h ire a pr ivat e u t ili t y  locat ing com pany to locate pr ivat e u t il it ies in  the v icinit y  of  the

proposed bor ings. However,  we not e that  the pr ivat e ut il it y  com pany cannot  locat e

pr ivat e ut il it ies that  do not  have t racer  wires. Ut ili t ies that  m ay not  include t racer wires

include ut il i t ies ut i lizing PVC pipe, such as storm  sewers, sanit ary  sewers, et c. I t  wil l be

the responsibilit y of t he owner t o locat e these ut ilit ies and provide t he locat ions to

Terracon. Terracon will not  be responsible for  dam age to ut i lit ies that  Colorado 811 and

the pr ivate ut ilit y  com pany could not  locate.

The detect ion of underground ut i lit ies is dependent  upon t he com posit ion  and

const ruct ion of the ut ilit y  line;  som e ut ili t ies are com prised of non-elect r ically  conduct ive

m at er ials and m ay not  be readily  detect ed. The use of  a pr ivate ut i l it y  locat e service

would not  rel ieve the landowner / client  of  their responsibi lit ies in  ident ify ing pr ivat e

underground ut i lit ies.

Laborat ory Test ing

The project  engineer / geologist  w ill  rev iew field dat a and assign laborat ory t ests t o

underst and the engineering proper t ies of  var ious soil and rock ( if any )  st rat a. Exact

t ypes and num ber of  t ests cannot  be defined unt il com plet ion of  f ieldwork,  but  we

ant icipat e the following laboratory test ing m ay be perform ed:

■ Visual classif icat ion

■ Wat er  cont ent

■ Dry  unit  weight

■ At terberg lim it s

■ Grain  size analysis

■ One-dim ensional swell

134



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

■ Unconfined com pressive st rength

■ Chem ical analyses – pH, su lfat es,  chlor ide ion , sulfide ion , redox , tot al salt s, and

elect r ical resist iv it y

■ Moisture-densit y  relat ionship (m odif ied Proctor)

■ California Bearing Rat io ( CBR)

Our  laboratory test ing program  includes examinat ion of soil sam ples and asphalt  cores

by  an engineer .  Based on the result s of our  f ield and laboratory program s, we w ill

describe and classify soil  sam ples in accordance with t he Un if ied Soil  Classificat ion

System (USCS) .

I f bedrock  sam ples are obt ained, rock classificat ion will be conduct ed using locally

accepted pract ices for  engineering purposes.

Soil and rock ( if  any)  sam ples obt ained during our  f ieldwork  wil l  be disposed of af ter

laboratory test ing is com plet e unless a specif ic request  is m ade to t em porar ily  store the

sam ples for  a longer  period.

Engineer ing and Project  Delivery

The result s of our  f ield and laboratory  program s will  be evaluat ed,  and a geot echnical

engineering report  will be prepared under  t he superv ision of a licensed professional

engineer.  The geot echnical engineer ing report  wil l provide the following:

■ Site and proj ect  descript ions

■ Boring logs wit h field and laboratory  dat a

■ Asphalt  core phot ographs

■ DCP test  result s

■ St rat if icat ion based on v isual soil  ( and rock , i f any)  classif icat ion

■ Groundwat er  levels observed dur ing and aft er the com plet ion of  dr i lling

■ Sit e Locat ion  and Explorat ion  Plans

■ Subsurface explorat ion  procedures

■ Descr ipt ion  of  subsurface condit ions

■ Recom m endat ions regarding t he Pavem ent  Classif icat ion Rat ing ( PCR)  as

determ ined in  general accordance with the procedures of  AC 150/ 5335-5D using

t he FAARFI ELD pavem ent  soft ware

■ Recom m endat ions regarding pavem ent  m ater ials specif icat ions ( as needed)

I n addit ion to an em ailed report , your project  w il l  also be delivered using our Client

Por t a l.  Upon in it iat ion ,  we provide you and your design t eam  the necessary  link and

password to access the website ( if  not  prev iously  regist ered) .  Each project  includes a

135



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

calendar t o t rack the schedule, an int eract ive sit e m ap, a l ist ing of t eam  m em bers,

access t o the project  docum ents as t hey are uploaded to the sit e,  and a collaborat ion

port al. We welcom e the opportuni t y  to have project  k ickoff conversat ions w ith the t eam

to discuss key elem ents of  the project  and dem onst rat e feat ures of t he port al .  The

t ypical delivery  process includes the following:

■ Project  Planning –  Proposal inform at ion , schedule and ant icipat ed explorat ion plan

■ Site Charact er izat ion  – Findings of the sit e explorat ion and laboratory result s

■ Geot echnical Engineer ing Report

When our  serv ices are com plet ed, we wil l upload a print able version of our com plet ed

Geot echnical Engineering repor t ,  including the professional engineer ’s seal and

signature, which docum ents our  serv ices. Previous subm it t als, collaborat ion, and the

report  are m aint ained in our  syst em . This allows futu re reference and int egrat ion into

subsequent  aspect s of  our services as t he project  goes t hrough final design and

const ruct ion.

Addit ional Serv ices

I n addit ion to the serv ices noted above, the following are of ten associat ed wit h

geot echnical engineering services. Fees for serv ices not ed above do not  include t he

following:

Review  of  Pla ns and Specif ica t ions:  Our  geot echnical report  and associat ed verbal

and writ t en com m unicat ions wil l be used by  others in the design t eam to develop plans

and speci ficat ions for  const ruct ion. Review of project  plans and specif icat ions is a vit al

par t  of our geot echnical engineer ing serv ices.  This consist s of  rev iew of  proj ect  plans

and specif icat ions related to sit e preparat ion and pavem ent  const ruct ion. Our review w ill

include a wr it t en st at em ent  conveying our opinions relat ing t o the plans and

specif icat ions’ consist ency  w it h  our geot echnical engineering recom m endat ions.

Observa t ion  and Test ing of  Pert inent  Const ruct ion  M at er ia ls:  Developm ent  of  our

geotechn ical engineer ing recom m endat ions and report  rel ies on an int erpretat ion of soil

condit ions. Our  assessm ent  is based on widely spaced explorat ion locat ions and t he

assum pt ion that  const ruct ion  m ethods will be per form ed in a m anner suff icient  to m eet

our expect at ions and consist ent  with  recom m endat ions m ade at  the t im e the

geotechnical engineer ing repor t  is issued. We should be retained t o conduct  const ruct ion

observat ions,  and per form / docum ent  associated m at er ials t est ing, for  sit e preparat ion

and pavem ent  const ruct ion. These services allow a m ore com prehensive underst anding

of subsurface condit ions and necessary  docum ent at ion of const ruct ion to confirm  and/ or

m odify  ( when necessary )  the assum pt ions and recom m endat ions m ade by our

engineers.

136



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Environm ent a l Assessm ent s: Our Scope for  this project  does not  include, either

specif ically  or  by im plicat ion, an environm ental assessm ent  of the sit e int ended to

ident ify  or  quant ify pot ent ial sit e cont am inant s.  I f  t he client / owner is concerned about

the potent ial for  such condit ions, an environm ent al site assessm ent  should be

conducted. We can provide a proposal for  an environm ent al assessm ent , if  desired.

137



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Exhibit  C -  Com pensat ion and Project  Schedule

Com pensat ion

Based upon our  underst anding of  the sit e, t he project  as sum m arized in Exhibit  A, and

our planned Scope of  Services descr ibed in Exhibit  B, our  base fee is shown in  the

following t able:

Task Lum p Sum  Fee
2

Project  Managem ent $1,845

Subsurface Explorat ion
1 $6,590

Laborat ory Test ing $3,725

Analysis and Draft Repor t  Preparat ion $3,940

Final Report  and Analysis Preparat ion $1,375

Subtot a l: Project  Managem ent ,  Subsurface Explorat ion ,

Laborat ory Test ing, Geotechnical Analysis and Report ing
$17,475

Pr ivat e Ut i lit y  Locat ing

( est im at ed fee for  3  hours at  $250/ hour  +  15 percent )
3 $865

Pavem ent  Cor ing Serv ices

( est im at ed fee for  7  hours at  $200/ hour  +  15 percent )
3 $1,610

Tota l Est im ated Fees $19,950

1. The lum p sum  fee considers one dr ill  r ig m obilizat ion  and no unexpected onsit e

delays. I f  addit ional dr il l r ig m obilizat ions are required, an addit ional fee of

$1,250 would be invoiced. A dril l  crew plus drill  r ig and field engineer  st andby

rat e of  $500 per hour  would be invoiced for  unexpect ed delays.

2. Proposed fees not ed above are ef fect ive for  90 days f rom  the dat e of the

proposal.  We underst and author izat ion for  this work is ant icipated to be

provided in Decem ber  2023.

3. Pr ivat e ut i lit y  locat ing and pavem ent  cor ing serv ice fees wil l be invoiced at  cost

plus 15 percent .

Aft er  subm it t al of t he final geot echnical engineer ing report ,  any  request s for  subsequent

revisions t o the repor t  or  updat es to the recom m endat ions or pavem ent  analysis will  be

considered addit ional consu lt at ion serv ices. Addit ional consultat ion  will  be invoiced using

cur rent  hourly  bill ing rat es of  the applicable Ter racon personnel.

138



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Addit ional serv ices not  par t  of t he est im at ed base fee include the following:

Addit iona l Serv ices ( see  Exh ibit  B)
Proposed

Fee

I n it ia l for

Author iza t ion

Plans and Specificat ions Review (Per  Set ) TBD
1

Const ruct ion  Mat erials Test ing Services TBD
2

Environm ent al Assessm ent  Services TBD
3

1. To Be Determined – A separate proposal for review of project plans and specificat ions

can be provided upon request .

2. To Be Determined – A separate proposal for the observat ion and test ing of pert inent

construct ion materials can be provided upon complet ion of our plans and

specificat ions review.

3. To Be Determined – A separate proposal for environmental assessment services can

be provided upon request .

Our  Scope of  Services does not  include services associat ed wit h sit e clearing,  wet

ground condit ions, t ree or  shrub clear ing, or repair  of / dam age t o exist ing landscape, or

pavem ent s. I f  such services are desired by t he owner / client , we should be not if ied so we

can adjust  our  Scope of  Services.

Unless inst ructed otherwise, we will  subm it  our  invoice(s)  to the address shown at  the

beginning of  this proposal.  I f  condit ions are encount ered that  require Scope of Serv ices

revisions and/ or  result  in  higher fees,  we wil l  cont act  you for  approval,  pr ior  to init iat ing

serv ices. A supplem ent al proposal st at ing the m odified Scope of Services as well as i t s

ef fect  on our  fee wil l be prepared. We will  not  proceed without  your aut hor izat ion.

Project  Schedule

We developed a schedule to com plet e the Scope of Services based upon our  exist ing

availabilit y and underst anding of  your project  schedule. However , our  schedule does not

account  for  delays in  f ield explorat ion beyond our cont rol,  such as weat her condit ions,

delays result ing from  ut il it y  clearance, or  lack of perm ission to access the bor ing

locat ions. I n  the event  the schedule provided is inconsist ent  with  your  needs, please

cont act  us so we m ay consider  alt ernat ives.

Delive ry on  Client  Por ta l Schedule
1 , 2

Kickoff Call with Client About 2 to 3 days aft er  not ice to proceed ( NTP)

Site Layout About  4  t o 6 days aft er NTP

139



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Facilities  | Environmental | Geotechnical |  Materials

Delive ry on  Client  Por ta l Schedule
1 , 2

Public Ut i lit y  Locat es Cleared About 8 to 12 days af ter NTP

Field Explorat ion Com plet ed About  15 to 20 days aft er  NTP
3

Laborat ory Test ing Com pleted
About 10 to 12 days aft er  com plet ion of  the field

program

Geot echnical Engineer ing Report
About 15 to 20 days aft er  com plet ion of  f ield

program
3

1. Upon receipt  of  your not ice t o proceed, we will act ivat e t he schedule com ponent

on Client  Por t a l with specif ic,  ant icipat ed dates for  the delivery  point s noted

above as well as other pert inent  event s.

2. Standard workdays. We will  m aint ain an act iv it ies calendar within on Client

Por t a l. The schedule w ill  be updat ed to m aintain a cur rent  awareness of our

plans for  delivery .

3. Post ing dat e can be affected by dr il l r ig availabil it y  at  the t im e we are given

not ice to proceed.  Any advanced not ice of  Ter racon ’s select ion  to per form  this

work will  allow for  the t im ely scheduling of  a dr ill  r ig to per form  the f ield work .

140



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Not e to Preparer :  This is a large t able with out side borders. Just  cl ick inside the t able

above this t ex t  box , t hen past e your GI S Toolbox  im age.

When paragraph m arkers are tu rned on you m ay  not ice a line of  hidden t ex t  above

and outside the t able – please leave that  alone. Lim it  edit ing to inside the t able.

Exhibit  D –  Site Locat ion

DI AGRAM I S FOR GENERAL LOCATI ON ONLY, AND I S NOT I NTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTI ON PURPOSES MAP PROVI DED BY MI CROSOFT BI NG MAPS

141



Pr op osa l fo r  Ge ot e ch n ica l  En gin e e r in g  Se rv i ce s

Nor t hern  Colo r ado  Reg ion al  Ai rpo r t  GA Tax ilanes Rehabil i t at ion |  Lov eland,  Colo rado

October  27,  2023 |  Ter r acon  Proposal  No.  P20235066

Not e to Preparer :  This is a large t able with out side borders. Just  cl ick inside the t able

above this t ex t  box , t hen past e your GI S Toolbox  im age.

When paragraph m arkers are tu rned on you m ay  not ice a line of  hidden t ex t  above

and outside the t able – please leave that  alone. Lim it  edit ing to inside the t able.

Exhibit  E –  Ant icipated Explorat ion Plan

DI AGRAM I S FOR GENERAL LOCATI ON ONLY, AND I S NOT I NTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTI ON PURPOSES MAP PROVI DED BY MI CROSOFT BI NG MAPS

142



 

 

EXHIBIT B – CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION AND WAIVER 

 

DIRECTIONS: 
 

 If the Contractor is NOT required under Colorado law to carry workers’ compensation 
insurance and DOES NOT carry it, this exhibit MUST be completed and attached to the 
Contract. 

 
 If the Contractor IS required under Colorado law to carry workers’ compensation 

insurance and DOES carry it, this exhibit IS NOT REQUIRED and may be discarded. 
 

 

The Contractor certifies to the Cities that it is not required to carry workers’ compensation 
insurance under the Colorado Workers’ Compensation Act.  The Contractor acknowledges that it 
will be engaging in activities that may expose it to risk of bodily injury.  The Contractor affirms 
that it is physically capable of performing the activities and that all necessary precautions to 
prevent injury to the Contractor and others will be taken.  The Contractor shall not hold either of 
the Cities liable for any injuries that may arise during or resulting from the work performed under 
the Contract, and the Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Cities from all 
such claims. 
 

Contractor 

 
   By: ____________________________________ 

 
     Title: ____________________________________ 
 
     Date: ____________________________________ 
 
STATE OF ________________ ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF ________________ ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________________, 
20  by __________________________________________________.  

          (Insert name of individual signing on behalf of the Contractor) 

 

      ___________________________ 

     Notary’s official signature 
S E A L 

      ___________________________ 

      Commission expiration date  
 

143



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 6 

MEETING DATE: November 16, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Aaron Ehle 

 

TITLE 

Remote Tower Update 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Informational 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Neutral 
 

SUMMARY 

This is an informational item. The Remote Tower Project is a proof-of-concept 

developmental program supported by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

Colorado Department of Transportation. The project’s goal is to create a technologically 

advanced air traffic control tower solution for airports to be certified by the FAA. In 

October, Searidge Technologies, the company that was selected to develop the system 

at FNL, notified the FAA that it was pulling out of the project, citing an unclear path to 

certification.  

 

Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Aeronautics Director, Dave Ulane, and 

the State’s Remote Tower Project Manager, Bill Payne, will be in attendance to discuss 

the status of the project, future options for continued development of the remote tower 

facility, as well as potential options for a traditional air traffic control tower. 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 

CDOT Press Release 

144



  

 

 

October 18, 2023 

 

Northern Colorado Regional Airport 

Remote Tower Project Paused - 

Controlled Airspace to Continue 

 

 

A view above the center camera mast for the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL) 

Remote Tower Project. While the project is being paused, controlled airspace will continue 

at the airport.  

145



LOVELAND - Since 2015, the Colorado Department of Transportation’s (CDOT) Division 

of Aeronautics (State), the Northern Colorado Regional Airport (FNL), and the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) have been collaborating on an innovative effort to bring 

remote air traffic control tower technology to FNL and Colorado. This technology uses 

video cameras and other sensing technologies to emulate the operational safety and 

efficiency benefits of a traditional air traffic control tower but with additional flexibility 

and capabilities at a much lower capital and operational cost than a traditional air 

traffic control tower. 

 

In 2018, the FAA selected Searidge Technologies of Ottawa, Canada to be the remote 

tower technology provider at FNL, and in March 2020, a mobile air traffic control tower 

was installed in advance of a structured testing and evaluation program to eventually 

certify and operate a permanent remote tower at FNL.  Unfortunately, a number of 

circumstances have occurred that have impacted the program, including the COVID-19 

pandemic and related multi-year FAA travel restrictions, as well as continually 

changing FAA standards for remote tower certification. As a result, Searidge 

Technologies has advised the FAA that they will terminate work on the FNL remote 

tower program. 

 

As this transition occurs over the next several weeks, the state, FNL, and the FAA will 

collaborate on a new path forward that preserves existing air traffic control services at 

FNL for the foreseeable future.  During this time, future options will be evaluated for 

continued development of the remote tower facility at FNL as well as potential options 

for a traditional air traffic control tower.  Significant interest exists from other remote 

tower technology providers to continue development at FNL, and the state and FNL 

will be working closely with the FAA to explore this option as the preferred alternative. 

 

“While we are disappointed to see Searidge leave the remote tower program, we 

remain optimistic that the cost-effective benefits of remote tower technology will have 

tremendous value to Colorado’s future aviation system, and we intend to vigorously 

support future development of the technology,” said CDOT’s Aeronautics Director 

David Ulane.  

 

“FNL has a well-deserved reputation for innovation, safety, and development and the 

Remote Tower is a great example of that focus. The Remote Tower has already 

provided an exceptional, innovative pathway to meet the operational demands of our 

growing airport in a safe, cost-effective, and timely way,” said David Ruppel, Northern 

Colorado Regional Airport interim director. “While this news is unfortunate, we are 

146



 

confident that with the FAA’s ongoing support, CDOT’s commitment to this project and 

our airport, as well as interest from other highly qualified vendors, we will be able to 

carry this effort forward.” 

 

For more information please contact: 

 

Dave Ruppel, Interim Airport Manager 

Northern CO Regional Airport 

970.962.2850 | David.Ruppel@cityofloveland.org 

 

David Ulane, Director 

Colorado Division of Aeronautics  

303.512.5254 | David.Ulane@state.co.us 

 

 

Under the Direction of the Colorado Aeronautical Board, the Colorado Department of 

Transportation’s Division of Aeronautics supports Colorado's multi-modal 

transportation system by advancing a safe, efficient, and effective statewide air and 

space system through collaboration, investment, and advocacy. In partnership with 

the Federal Aviation Administration, 76 public-use airports, and a diverse group of 

aviation system users, the Division also works to promote aviation safety and 

education through the efficient administration of the Colorado Aviation Fund. 

 

FNL is a commercially certified regional airport supporting over 110,000 annual 

flight operations, with over 200 hangars and over 300 based aircraft. It is one of 14 

commercial airports in Colorado and has not only supported numerous commercial 

airlines in the past but with the addition of a new Terminal, wider runways, and the 

future certification of the Remote Tower system will continue to be the 

transportation hub for Northern Colorado. FNL supports over 1,072 jobs, 

$51,914,000 in annual payroll, and $160,874,000 in Business revenue.  
 

  

 

 

Upcoming CAB Meetings  

147

mailto:David.Ruppel@cityofloveland.org
mailto:David.Ruppel@cityofloveland.org
mailto:David.Ulane@state.co.us
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3Dc7123cfd23-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=n2ZHma_LYt17HfxHijurEra3PE9BXs8XB34wL2BIi2A&e=


 

December 13, 2023 

1:00 p.m. 

General Meeting 
Colorado Division of 

Aeronautics 
 

 

 

If you have an event you would like 

to add to the Colorado Aviation 

Events Calendar, please 

email Hetty.Carlson@state.co.us 
 

 

   
 

 

  
  

 

 

Share 

 

 

 

Tweet 

 

 

 

Forward 

 

 

   

 

 

Colorado Division of Aeronautics | 5126 Front Range Parkway | Watkins, CO 80137 | 303.512.5250 

Colorado-Aeronautics.org 

 

Want to change how you receive these emails? 

You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list. 
 

 

148

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D34d8afaf34-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=FZylF76sRDvv91yLXZ0XD8KRGeN2-inzHYPmnxuOHv0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D34d8afaf34-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=FZylF76sRDvv91yLXZ0XD8KRGeN2-inzHYPmnxuOHv0&e=
mailto:Hetty.Carlson@state.co.us
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D31d83bad47-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=RKRVNAxkZkURmbFPvoexFMLkf6-Gx9ccdGa8-FJaxd0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D24b8d0cc33-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=kYXAGg3eseAkJLNC49bB2mdbGhlsyzTf6f1MyUboedw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__us16.forward-2Dto-2Dfriend.com_forward-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D02a334b836-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=gaR-abGBdiLJejpWb2j3K08fA2fx_EeR-fkHz-NSI5o&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D89a0661ee5-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=WIFQGhXkdJ6noIa5QMLgsrB1-w2vw24kS1R2_rptDhQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_profile-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D6f4d3d430b-26e-3D5180a39311-26c-3D02a334b836&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=Mg-ctEYMfQeTJ84lJo4T6PjZKLkLpnOiXYBQTJvJeWM&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_unsubscribe-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D6f4d3d430b-26e-3D5180a39311-26c-3D02a334b836&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=l2zyqUNoSjX-CU6UQ186zQqi4HnGgi8ALvp9QQebDgQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3Dfcfed6bd8b-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=t-mHghl5_s1oSgSRYdmd-TT-gxwOPw-4jlRh0NyfFY8&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3Da303673e09-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=aiU5egkftt0d9M01oTdiV3PsRE-i_xeKgcrwYk1REKY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D16ee4502dd-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=f4KBbn6qfX_5OzW9DWAJ1h6xEbPd9z6zuJZy04idrIc&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D6118478781-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=wrwR7k2fr678jpeMTFdM23DBxxXQrpUOv39lSQeEm04&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3Dcbf0de79e0-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=x33HR00i7_qipVNNAEvqzcgEIM3E3xbo4e-Rc20u7t8&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D5593795aa5-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=ywVZ2a0EqWLBDaspAxLBGaQrLMN2oRzp9iFwR7cKEx4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__state.us16.list-2Dmanage.com_track_click-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D8bba10ff54-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=0VWZi68oceYdjjaDh4FbBsbyjlreuvYALEKR3cONPRo&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__us16.forward-2Dto-2Dfriend.com_forward-3Fu-3Db4d4ab81cda1d77ccd692af2f-26id-3D02a334b836-26e-3D5180a39311&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=EVkOJHos04Bye5gniDDSaTKG6xcdqpwgWnR7CCYZs3Y&m=9VUTUpB7r8i_-PMHJEjCnEsh_6qnfeJQf8xDxWg7rA3ZAX9WDJoMnAb_NFnnIM1S&s=gaR-abGBdiLJejpWb2j3K08fA2fx_EeR-fkHz-NSI5o&e=


 

149



 

 
 
 

              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission  

 

 

 

ITEM NUMBER: 7 

MEETING DATE: November 16, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Kate Morgan, Airport Executive Assistant 

 

TITLE 

2024 Rates and Fees Recommendation to City Councils for Adoption 
 

RECOMMENDED AIRPORT COMMISSION ACTION 

Recommend the 2024 Airport rates and fees for adoption by the City Councils 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

Positive budget impact expected from increased revenues 
 

SUMMARY 

The Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the Cities requires that each City 

Council approve the Airport rates and fees which contribute revenue to Airport budget. 

The process includes the annual adjustment of some rates and fees, such as land lease 

rates and hangar lease rates, using the Consumer Price Index as published by the US 

Bureau of Labor Statistics. The annual adjustment was 8.11% for 2023. 

 

Staff also performed a badge fee analysis and comparison study with other local 

airports. Results of the cost comparison study are shown in the graphs below. 

 

 

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$35

$39

$45

$50

$55

$0 $10 $20 $30 $40 $50 $60

NORTHERN COLORADO REGIONAL (FNL)

CHEYENNE REGIONAL (CYS)

PROVO MUNICIPAL (PVU)

ST. GEORGE REGIONAL (SGU)

PUEBLO MEMORIAL (PUB)

OGDEN-HINCKLEY (OGD)

AVERAGE 

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL (GJT)

ROCKY MOUNTAIN METRO (BJC)

YAMPA VALLEY REGIONAL (HDN)

AOA Badge Cost

150



              

Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 

Adjustments to the airport security badge pricing as outlined in the attachment are 

recommended to stay consistent with other airports in the region and to adequately 

cover expenses. Airport staff recommend increasing the AOA badge fee to $25.  

 

Hangar lease fees for A and B hangars should be removed from the list since those T-

hangars are being demolished. 

 

ATTACHMENT 

Rates & Fees Comparison Current vs. Proposed 

$10

$15

$20

$25

$25

$25

$25

$28

$30

$35

$0 $5 $10 $15 $20 $25 $30 $35 $40

PUEBLO MEMORIAL (PUB)

NORTHERN COLORADO REGIONAL (FNL)

CHEYENNE REGIONAL (CYS)

YAMPA VALLEY REGIONAL (HDN)

ROCKY MOUNTAIN METRO (BJC)

OGDEN-HINCKLEY (OGD)

PROVO MUNICIPAL (PVU)

AVERAGE 

ST. GEORGE REGIONAL (SGU)

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL (GJT)

AOA Rebadge Cost

$25

$50

$50

$100

$100

$100

$100

$111

$150

$150

$0 $20 $40 $60 $80 $100 $120 $140 $160

NORTHERN COLORADO REGIONAL (FNL)

GRAND JUNCTION REGIONAL (GJT)

PUEBLO MEMORIAL (PUB)

YAMPA VALLEY REGIONAL (HDN)

ROCKY MOUNTAIN METRO (BJC)

OGDEN-HINCKLEY (OGD)

PROVO MUNICIPAL (PVU)

AVERAGE 

JACKSON HOLE (JAC)

ST. GEORGE REGIONAL (SGU)

Lost Badge Cost

151



Airport Fees: 2023 2024 Difference

Fuel Flowage Fee, Off-Airport, whichever is greater:

Percentage of actual cost, after taxes 10% 10% -$                  

or Per Gallon 0.08$                    0.08$                     -$                  

Fuel Flowage Fee, On-Airport, whichever is greater:

Percentage of actual cost, before taxes 6% 6% -$                  

or Per Gallon 0.06$                    0.06$                     -$                  

*Lesser amount applies to scheduled Air Carriers

Airport Security Access Badge Pricing:

SIDA badge, New 120.00$                120.00$                -$                  

Includes costs for fingerprings, badge, prox card, training requirements, & admin

AOA badge, New & Renewals 15.00$                  25.00$                   10.00$              

Includes costs for badge, prox card, & administration

Tier I penalty (Replacement Badge) 25.00$                  50.00$                   25.00$              

Tier II penalty (Replacement Badge) 75.00$                  100.00$                25.00$              

Property Leasing:

Land Lease, to be increased annualy by CPI:

Improved, per square foot 0.464$                  0.501$                   0.04$                

Unimproved, per square foot 0.327$                  0.353$                   0.03$                

Intent to lease deposit (minimum and per additional acre) 1,000.00$            1,000.00$             -$                  

Terminal Concession Lease, per square foot 15.00$                  15.00$                   -$                  

Hangar Leasing:

T-Hangar Lease:

"A" per month 249.00$                N/A

"B" per month 292.00$                N/A

"C" per month 308.00$                308.00$                -$                  

Hangar Waiting List Application Fee, per hangar type 25.00$                  25.00$                   -$                  

Airline Charges:

Landing Fees, per 1,000 pounds of certified gross landing weight 0.95$                    0.95$                     -$                  

Applies to scheduled and unscheduled aircraft in excess of 90,000 pounds

Terminal Builiding Use, per flight 55.00$                  55.00$                   -$                  

Applies to scheduled and unscheduled Air Carriers or Charter aircraft

Passenger Facility Charges, per passenger 4.50$                    4.50$                     -$                  

ARFF (Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting) Standby Fees:

Applies to scheduled and unscheduled Air Carriers.

Index B, per flight 100.00$                100.00$                -$                  

Index C, per flights 150.00$                150.00$                -$                  

NORTHERN COLORADO REGIONAL AIRPORT

152


	DRAFT Agenda 11-16-2023B
	meeting Agenda

	Commission Packet 2023-11-16P
	Commission Packet 2023-11-16P
	Sign In Sheet 10-19-2023
	Commission Packet 2023-11-16
	Commission Minutes 10-18-2023
	Airport Commission Meeting Item 2
	Preliminary Monthly Statement 10-31-2023
	Airport Monthly Statement New

	November Combined Director's Report.
	November Report 2023.pdf
	Report Highlights
	Airport Activity Dashboard
	Airport Owned T-Hangars Update
	Remote Tower
	Terminal
	Foundation work continues with installation of the final Grade Beams to support the slab installation in early December. Grade Beams, concrete placement and formwork removal are complete on about most of the project. Backfilling and final preparation ...
	The DiTesco construction summary is attached.
	Airport Scheduled Events
	Attachments

	FNL Airport Terminal Monthly Report_October 2023.pdf
	Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 11_10_23.pdf
	Photos

	Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 11_03_23.pdf
	Photos

	Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 10_27_23.pdf
	Photos

	Weekly Report - FNL Airport Terminal 10_20_23.pdf
	Photos

	November ARFF Update
	Progress Report #28_103123.pdf
	October 31, 2023
	From:  William E. Payne, P.E.
	To: Colorado Division of Aeronautics
	Effort this Period: The OSA is still in draft form and is continuing to be developed as the project proceeds toward System Design Approval.
	Effort this Period:  The OVR Version 2.1 has been issued.
	Effort this Period: Participated in the FAA TechOps review and commented on the Remote Tower Requirements Document and prepared comments on OVR 2.1.  Completed.

	Winter Operations Presentation Pilots 2023.pdf
	FNL Winter Operations �Annual Operator Training
	Agenda
	Introduction
	2023 Updates
	FAA Regulatory Requirements
	Snow Event Planning
	Snow Event Planning
	Pre-Planning Snow Event
	Pavement Priorities
	Snow Removal Equipment
	Airfield Snow Removal Equipment�
	Committed to Safe Snow Placement
	Runway Condition Reporting Changes�
	Slide Number 14
	Additional Questions?


	Airport Commission Meeting Item 4
	EAS_Power_Terminal (11-13-23)
	OFFICIAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LOVELAND

	297-012 EASEMENT DESCRIPTION 2023-09-11
	297-012 EASEMENT EXHIBIT 2023-09-011
	Sheets and Views
	Tabloid Horiz


	Airport Commission Meeting Item 5 D&B Rehab
	Taxiway & Taxilane Rehabilitation
	Airport Services Contract_Dibble TWYBD
	Contractor
	Signature:  ______________________________
	Printed Name: ______________________________
	Northern Colorado Regional Airport Commission acting on behalf of the City of Loveland, Colorado and the City of Fort Collins, Colorado
	Signature:  ______________________________
	Printed Name: ______________________________
	Title:   ______________________________
	ATTEST:
	City Clerk
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	Assistant City Attorney
	EXHIBIT A – Services
	Engineering Services Proposal Taxiways B and D Rehabilitation 37 pages and
	Engineering Services Proposal GA Taxilanes Rehabilitation 33 pages
	___________________________
	Notary’s official signature
	S E A L
	___________________________
	Commission expiration date
	FNL TW B & D Rehab - Proposal_10.27.23.pdf
	FNL TW B&D Rehab - Project Exhibit.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	11x17 Exhibit


	FNL - GA Taxilanes Rehab - Project Exhibit 10.17.23.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	11x17 Exhibit



	FNL GA Taxilanes Rehab - Proposal_10.27.23.pdf
	FNL - GA Taxilanes Rehab - Project Exhibit 10.17.23.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	11x17 Exhibit




	Item 6 - Remote Tower Update
	CDOT-Remote-Tower-Update
	Item 7 - 2024 Rates and Fees
	2024 Fee Schedule
	Airport





